
Village of Gilberts 
Village Hall: 87 Galligan Road, Gilberts, Illinois 60136 

Ph. 847-428-2861      Fax: 847-428-2955 
www.villageofgilberts.com 

 
 

Posted on April 14, 2023 at: 
Village of Gilberts, 87 Galligan Road, Gilberts, IL 60136   

VILLAGE BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Tuesday, April 18, 2023 - 7:00 p.m. - Village Hall Board Room 

In accordance with recent amendments to the Open Meetings Act that authorize remote meeting attendance 
during the COVID-19 pandemic, the Village President has determined that it is not prudent or practical to conduct 

an in-person meeting for all members of the Board and the public due to the pandemic. Therefore, some of the 
Village Board members may attend this meeting by electronic means, in compliance with the amended OMA.  

In order to comply with the Governor’s executive orders regarding limitations on gatherings and to ensure social 
distancing, members of the public are encouraged to attend the meeting remotely via video or audio as follows: 

Zoom (video and/or audio): https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82589743474  
Meeting ID: 825 8974 3474 

Dial-In (audio): (312) 626-6799 
Members of the public can also submit written comments via email at info@villageofgilberts.com. Any comments 

received by 5:00 p.m. on April 18, 2023 will be submitted into the record of the meeting. 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
1. CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
2. ROLL CALL / ESTABLISH QUORUM 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT* 
4. RECOGNITION 

A. Recognition of Trustees Lou Hacker, Dan Corbett and Dave LeClercq Sr. 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. A Motion to approve Minutes from the March 21, 2023 Regular Village Board Meeting 
B. A Motion to ratify Bills & Payroll dated April 4, 2023 
C. A Motion to approve Bills & Payroll dates April 18, 2023 
D. A Motion to approve the March 2023 Treasurer’s Report 
E. A Motion to approve Resolution 11-2023, a Resolution for General Maintenance Under the 

Illinois Highway Code (Motor Fuel Tax) 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS; ITEMS FOR APPROVAL  
A. Public Hearing on the Proposed Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2023 Budget 

B. An Ordinance Amending the Village of Gilberts Fiscal Year (Ordinance 02-2023) 

C. An Ordinance Adopting the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2023 Budget (Ordinance 03-
2023) 

D. An Ordinance Amending the Fiscal Year 2023 Budget Ending April 30, 2023 (Ordinance 04-
2023) 

E. Public Hearing on a Proposed Fourth Amendment to the Annexation and Development 
Agreement for Gilberts Town Center (Red Barn Animal Hospital) 

F. An Ordinance Approving a Fourth Amendment to the Annexation and Development 
Agreement for Gilberts Town Center (Ordinance 05-2023) (Red Barn Animal Hospital) 

http://www.villageofgilberts.com/
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82589743474
mailto:info@villageofgilberts.com


 April 18, 2023 – Village Board Meeting Agenda 

Posted on April 14, 2023 at: 
Village of Gilberts, 87 Galligan Road, Gilberts, IL 60136 

G. An Ordinance Approving a Variance from The Gilberts Unified Development Ordinance (Red 
Barn Animal Hospital – Northwest Corner of Route 72 and Center Drive) (Ordinance 06-2023)  

H. An Ordinance Approving a Variance from The Gilberts Unified Development Ordinance (Pub 
72 – 38 East Higgins Road) (Ordinance 07-2023) 

I. An Ordinance Approving a Special Use Permit and Variances (Cruisin’ Gilberts – 11 Galligan 
Road) (Ordinance 08-2023) 

J. An Ordinance Approving a Purchase and Sale Agreement for the Property Commonly Known 
as 55 Galligan Road for Public Purposes (Ordinance 09-2023) 

7. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
A. Conservancy Park 1 Site Plan Review 

8. STAFF REPORTS 
9. TRUSTEES’ REPORTS 
10.  PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
11.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

*Public Comment Policy 
Anyone indicating a desire to speak during Public Comments portion of the Village Board Meeting will be acknowledged 
by the Village President. All remarks are to be addressed to the Village President and Board of Trustees as a whole, not 
to any specific person(s).   To ensure that everyone who wishes to speak has the opportunity to do so, please limit your 
comments to five minutes. Additional time may be granted at the discretion of the Village President.  If you have written 
comments, please provide a copy to the Village President. If there are a number of individuals present to speak on the 
same topic, please designate a spokesperson that can summarize the issue.  During Public Comments, the Village 
President, Trustees and Staff will listen to comments and will not engage in discussion. The Village President or Trustees 
may ask questions to better understand your concern, suggestion or request. Please direct any personnel concerns to the 
Village Administrator before or after the meeting.  The Village of Gilberts complies with the Americans Disabilities Act 
(ADA). For accessibility Assistance, please contact the Village Clerk at the Village Hall, telephone number is 847-428-
2861”. Assistive services will be provided upon request.  



 

03/21/2023                                                                  Page 1 of 3 
Village Board Meeting Minutes 

 
 

VILLAGE OF GILBERTS 
VILLAGE BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY, MARCH 21, 2023 
Village Hall: 87 Galligan Road, Gilberts, IL 60136 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
President Zambetti called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. He proceeded to lead those present in the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2. ROLL CALL / ESTABLISH QUORUM 
Village Clerk Kelly Mastera called roll. Roll call of Board members present: Trustees LeClercq, 
Corbett, Allen, Hacker, and Redfield were present, as was President Zambetti. Also present were 
Administrator Brian Bourdeau, Management Analyst Riley Lynch, Public Works Director Wade 
Kretsinger, Finance Director Taunya Fischer, and Police Chief Todd Block. Trustee Coats was 
absent.  
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT – None. 

4.    CONSENT AGENDA 
A. A Motion to approve Minutes from the March 7, 2023 Regular Village Board Meeting 
B. A Motion to approve Bills & Payroll dated March 21, 2023 
C. A Motion to approve the February 2023 Treasurer’s Report 

 
President Zambetti asked if any Board wished to remove an item from the Consent Agenda. No 
removals were requested. 
 
A Motion to Approve Consent Agenda items 4.A-C as presented was made by Trustee Allen and 
seconded by Trustee Redfield. Roll call votes - Aye: (5) Trustees LeClercq, Corbett, Allen, 
Hacker, and Redfield / Nay: 0 /Absent: (1) Coats /Abstained: 0 
 

5.   ITEMS FOR APPROVAL –  
 

A. An Ordinance Approving an Amendment to the Special Use / Variance Request for St. 
Peter’s Lutheran Church (Ordinance 01-2023) 

Management Analyst Lynch provided a brief overview of this item that had appeared before 
the Plan Commission.  

A Motion to Approve Item 5.A. was made by Trustee Allen and seconded by Trustee 
Redfield. Roll call votes - Aye: (5) Trustees LeClercq, Corbett, Allen, Hacker, and Redfield 
/ Nay: 0 / Absent: (1) Coats / Abstained: 0 
 



 

03/21/2023                                                                  Page 2 of 3 
Village Board Meeting Minutes 

B. A Resolution Authorizing the Payment of Certain Routine and Recurring Expenses 
(Resolution 09-2023) 
 
A Motion to Approve Item 5.B. was made by Trustee Hacker and seconded by Trustee 
LeClercq. Roll call votes - Aye: (5) Trustees LeClercq, Corbett, Allen, Hacker, and Redfield 
/ Nay: 0 / Absent: (1) Coats / Abstained: 0 
 

C. A Resolution Authorizing Approval of an Agreement with Rubbercycle for the 
Purchase of Rubber Mulch for Memorial Park in an Amount Not to Exceed $16,200 
(Resolution 10-2023) 
 
A Motion to Approve Item 5.C. was made by Trustee Hacker and seconded by Trustee 
Redfield. Roll call votes - Aye: (5) Trustees LeClercq, Corbett, Allen, Hacker, and Redfield 
/ Nay: 0 / Absent: (1) Coats / Abstained: 0 
 

6.   ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION –  
 

A. Presentation and Review of the Village’s MS-4 Permit (Village Engineer) 

Village Engineer Jon Zabrocki and another Robinson Engineering engineer, Emily Bergner, 
were in attendance. Engineer Bergner gave a presentation to the Village Board regarding the 
Village’s MS-4 stormwater permit, status, and its annual requirements.  
 
B. Presentation of the Stormwater Assessment in the Gilberts Glen Subdivision (Village 

Engineer) 
 

Village Engineer Jon Zabrocki gave a brief overview of the stormwater assessment in the 
Gilberts Glen subdivision. Engineer Bergner then gave a presentation to the Village Board 
explaining the overview of the project which consisted of details regarding the location, drainage 
system, and drainage and flooding concerns. She then provided details for the existing conditions 
analysis which included information on the background and data gathering, tributary drainage 
areas and hydrology, and the evaluation of detention and drainage system and hydraulics. 
Engineer Bergner then presented different options to the Board regarding alternatives analysis 
and cost estimates for each alternative.  
 
Trustee Corbett asked if a particular property had been looked at, which lead to a subsequent 
discussion among Board members and Engineer Zabrocki regarding stormwater runoff and 
conveyance and how that could impact potential future developers, land use, development 
agreements, and annexation scenarios.   
 
C. Presentation and Discussion of the Proposed FYE 12/31/2023 Budget 

Administrator Bourdeau explained this is the second part to the discussion, picking up where 
they left off at the last Village Board meeting. He and Public Works Director Kretsinger went 
over at a high level the Public Works budget as well as some of the capital expenses in 
particular regarding money toward vehicle replacement. Administrator Bourdeau also 
mentioned projects like the painting for the Public Works Building, the purchase of a gator, and 



 

03/21/2023                                                                  Page 3 of 3 
Village Board Meeting Minutes 

setting aside money toward future upgraded park signs. There was a brief discussion regarding 
what monies are legally restricted and what aren’t. Administrator Bourdeau also discussed 
upcoming road projects, motor fuel tax (MFT) dollars, and bond proceeds. In addition, they 
discussed the road maintenance program.  

7.   STAFF REPORTS –  
 

Clerk Mastera – Reminded people about the upcoming Easter Egg Hunt and Breakfast with the  
Bunny at the Eagles Club on Saturday, April 1.  Explained that early voting started and 
that people could find information on the Kane County Clerk’s website for specific dates, 
times, and locations.  

  
Public Works Director Kretsinger – Updated the Board on Well #5 electrical issues. 

 
 Finance Director Fischer and Chief Block – Had no additional reports. 
 

Management Analyst Lynch – Stated the consultants are putting together the feedback from the  
virtual Village Hall toward the Comprehensive Plan. Said he will be on the local radio 
station on Thursday to promote Community Days.  
 

Administrator Bourdeau – Told the Board that Kane County is planning on distributing the  
Economic Interest Statement forms at the end of the month, and that he and Clerk 
Mastera will keep an eye out them.  
– Stated that the Village received confirmation from the National Fitness Campaign that 
the Village was awarded a $50,000 grant toward the creation of an outdoor fitness gym. 
He said that the Board will need to decide if the Village will move forward and supply 
the additional funds. The Board briefly discussed the amount of the additional funds. 
– Let the Board know that on April 18th Analyst Lynch will most likely be presenting the 
Board with plans for the Conservancy Park 1. President Zambetti and Analyst Lynch 
briefly discussed the timeline for the park plans being put out for bids, and potentially 
when the work might be started. 

 
[Around 8:40 p.m. Trustee LeClercq exited the Zoom meeting.] 
 
8.   TRUSTEES’ REPORTS – No reports this evening. 
9.   PRESIDENT’S REPORT – No report this evening. 
10. EXECUTIVE SESSION - None. 
11. ADJOURNMENT  

There being no further public business to discuss, a motion to adjourn from the public meeting was 
made by Trustee Corbett and seconded by Trustee Redfield at 8:47 p.m.  Voice vote carried 
unanimously, Aye: (5) / Nay: 0 / Absent: (1) Coats / Abstained: 0 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

_Kelly Mastera_ 
Kelly Mastera, Village Clerk 



INVOICE APPROVAL BY DEPT FOR VILLAGE OF GILBERTS 1/2Page: 03/31/2023 01:22 PM
User: lsiegbahn
DB: Gilberts

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 04/04/2023 - 04/04/2023
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

Department: 00 GENERAL FUND

9,620.91 MFT RESOLUTIONCOMPASS MINERALS AMERICA
1,509.86 EMPLOYEE DENTAL CONTRIBUTIONIPBC - INTERGOVERNMENTAL PERSONN

21,216.01 EMPLOYEE HEALTH INS. CONTRIBUTIPBC - INTERGOVERNMENTAL PERSONN
55.91 EMPLOYEE LIFE INSURANCEIPBC - INTERGOVERNMENTAL PERSONN

32,402.69 Total: 00 GENERAL FUND

Department: 01 ADMINISTRATIVE

68.06 COMMUNICATIONSAT&T U-VERSE
100.00 GROUP HEALTH INS BENEFIT PLANNING CONSULTANTS,
20.25 OFFICE SUPPLIESCARDUNAL OFFICE SUPPLY
348.75 CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCURRENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
80.00 DUESEASTERN ILLINOIS UNIVERSITY

3,066.24 STATE UNEMPL TAX IL DEPT OF EMPLOYMENT SECURITY
257.60 LEGAL NOTICESPADDOCK PUBLICATIONS
140.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICESRICHARD SPINKER

14,460.00 REIMBURSED EXPENSESROBINSON ENGINEERING, LTD.
4,560.00 VILLAGE PLANNER SERVICESTESKA ASSOCIATES INC
7,665.80 REIMBURSED EXPENSESULTRA STROBE COMMUNICATIONS
2,267.03 73 INDUSTRIAL PRINCIPALUNION NATIONAL BANK OF ELGIN
1,243.51 73 INDUSTRIAL INTERESTUNION NATIONAL BANK OF ELGIN

34,277.24 Total: 01 ADMINISTRATIVE

Department: 02 POLICE

1,609.30 MAINTENANCE VEHICLESACTION AUTO WORKS INC
386.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICESFOX VALLEY SECURITY SYSTEMS
39.88 OFFICE SUPPLIESMENARDS - CARPENTERSVILLE
508.30 COMMUNITY RELATIONSPOSITIVE PROMOTIONS
315.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICESRICHARD SPINKER
37.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICESTHE BUG MAN, INC
667.50 MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENTULTRA STROBE COMMUNICATIONS
281.08 COMMUNICATIONSVERIZON WIRELESS

3,844.06 Total: 02 POLICE

Department: 03 PUBLIC WORKS

735.02 STREETLIGHTINGAEP ENERGY
382.00 DUESAPWA
879.66 STREETLIGHTINGCOMMONWEALTH EDISON
60.00 MAINTENANCE STREETSED'S RENTAL AND SALES INC.
15.36 MAINTENANCE VEHICLESMENARDS - ELGIN
8.78 MAINTENANCE VEHICLESNAPA AUTO PARTS

68.50 MAINTENANCE VEHICLESPOMP'S TIRE SERVICE, INC.
140.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICESRICHARD SPINKER

1,761.77 MAINTENANCE VEHICLESSARGENTS EQUIPMENT
94.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICESTHE BUG MAN, INC
685.00 MAINTENANCE BUILDINGTRI-COUNTY PREFERRED GARAGE

4,830.09 Total: 03 PUBLIC WORKS

Department: 06 PARKS

46.24 UTILITIESAEP ENERGY
104.95 MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENTRUSSO POWER EQUIPMENT

151.19 Total: 06 PARKS

Department: 10 WATER SYSTEMS

23.12 UTILITIESAEP ENERGY
3,704.31 UTILITIESCOMMONWEALTH EDISON

692.65 MAINTENANCE PARTS & MATERIALSCONSERV FS, INC.



INVOICE APPROVAL BY DEPT FOR VILLAGE OF GILBERTS 2/2Page: 03/31/2023 01:22 PM
User: lsiegbahn
DB: Gilberts

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 04/04/2023 - 04/04/2023
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

286.57 UTILITIESCONSTELLATION NEWENERGY, INC
56,397.00 WATER METERSFERGUSON WATERWORKS

105.53 MAINTENANCE PARTS & MATERIALSMENARDS - CARPENTERSVILLE
634.71 UTILITIESNICOR

1,340.60 LABORATORY TESTINGPACE ANALYTICAL SERVICES
349.30 LAB SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENTUSA BLUEBOOK

2,141.25 CHEMICALSVIKING CHEMICAL COMPANY

65,675.04 Total: 10 WATER SYSTEMS

Department: 20 WASTEWATER SYSTEMS

25.43 UTILITIESAEP ENERGY
576.30 OUTSIDE SERVICESALTERNATE POWER INDUSTRIES INC

11,482.37 UTILITIESCONSTELLATION NEWENERGY, INC
99,888.00 CAPITAL EQUIPMENTDAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES

714.03 UTILITIESNICOR
8,825.00 CAPITAL EQUIPMENTOKEH ELECTRIC CO.

875.95 LAB SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENTUSA BLUEBOOK

122,387.08 Total: 20 WASTEWATER SYSTEMS

263,567.39 *** GRAND TOTAL ***



INVOICE APPROVAL BY DEPT FOR VILLAGE OF GILBERTS 1/2Page: 04/13/2023 02:59 PM

User: TFISCHER

DB: Gilberts
EXP CHECK RUN DATES 04/18/2023 - 04/18/2023

BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

Department: 00 GENERAL FUND

193.20 ESCROWS PAYABLEPADDOCK PUBLICATIONS

18,563.50 ESCROWS PAYABLEROBINSON ENGINEERING, LTD.

18,756.70 Total: 00 GENERAL FUND

Department: 01 ADMINISTRATIVE

82.58 COMMUNICATIONSB&B NETWORKS, INC. 

68.97 OPERATING EXPENSECARD SERVICES

1,152.70 COMMUNITY RELATIONSCARD SERVICES

600.00 TRAINING EXPENSECARD SERVICES

42.60 REIMBURSED EXPENSESCARD SERVICES

166.39 OFFICE SUPPLIESCARDUNAL OFFICE SUPPLY

930.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCURRENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

364.00 REIMBURSED EXPENSESKANE COUNTY RECORDER

171.01 COMMUNICATIONSVERIZON WIRELESS

3,578.25 Total: 01 ADMINISTRATIVE

Department: 02 POLICE

337.55 MAINTENANCE VEHICLESACTION AUTO WORKS INC

82.58 COMMUNICATIONSB&B NETWORKS, INC. 

200.02 TRAINING EXPENSECARD SERVICES

63.44 OPERATING EXPENSECASH

33.50 GASOLINECASH

408.00 DISPATCHINGMOTOROLA INC.

3,410.00 TRAINING EXPENSERAY O'HERRON

151.00 MAINTENANCE VEHICLESSEC OF STATE/DEPT OF POLICE

400.00 LEGAL EXPENSESTEPHEN D. TOUSEY LAW OFFICE

91.00 MAINTENANCE VEHICLESSWIFT WASH, LLC

210.95 COMMUNICATIONSVERIZON WIRELESS

2,491.75 GASOLINEWRIGHT EXPRESS FSC

7,879.79 Total: 02 POLICE

Department: 03 PUBLIC WORKS

82.58 COMMUNICATIONSB&B NETWORKS, INC. 

249.91 MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENTC&L RENTALS

125.98 UNIFORMS CARD SERVICES

50.76 MAINTENANCE BUILDINGCARD SERVICES

40.95 CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCENTURY SPRINGS

131.79 STREETLIGHTINGCOMMONWEALTH EDISON

915.00 MAINTENANCE STREETSELMUND & NELSON CO.

859.89 CONTRACTUAL SERVICESENVIRONMENTAL SYSTEMS RESEARCH

15.99 OPERATING EXPENSEMENARDS - CARPENTERSVILLE

76.96 GASOLINENAPA AUTO PARTS

41.74 MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENTPOMP'S TIRE SERVICE, INC.

175.51 COMMUNICATIONSVERIZON WIRELESS

1,005.78 GASOLINEWRIGHT EXPRESS FSC

3,772.84 Total: 03 PUBLIC WORKS

Department: 04 BUILDING

2,650.00 BUILDING PERMIT EXPENSEROBINSON ENGINEERING, LTD.

31,490.64 BUILDING PERMIT EXPENSESAFEBUILT, LLC 

34,140.64 Total: 04 BUILDING

Department: 06 PARKS

944.55 MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENTCHERRY VALLEY LANDSCAPE CENTER I

2,736.42 CAPITAL EQUIPMENTPLAYGROUND BORDERS DIRECT

736.95 MAINTENANCE GROUNDSVULCAN MATERIALS COMPANY



INVOICE APPROVAL BY DEPT FOR VILLAGE OF GILBERTS 2/2Page: 04/13/2023 02:59 PM

User: TFISCHER

DB: Gilberts
EXP CHECK RUN DATES 04/18/2023 - 04/18/2023

BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

4,417.92 Total: 06 PARKS

Department: 08 GARBAGE HAULING

65,319.99 GARBAGE HAULING EXPENSEMDC ENVIRONMENTAL SVCS.

65,319.99 Total: 08 GARBAGE HAULING

Department: 10 WATER SYSTEMS

10.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICESAQUA BACKFLOW, INC.

82.58 COMMUNICATIONSB&B NETWORKS, INC. 

430.80 MAINTENANCE PARTS & MATERIALSBATTERIES PLUS

6,202.58 UTILITIESCONSTELLATION NEWENERGY, INC

215.21 SMALL TOOLS AND EQUIPMENTFERGUSON WATERWORKS

523.60 MAINTENANCE PARTS & MATERIALSMENARDS - CARPENTERSVILLE

1,563.10 LABORATORY TESTINGPACE ANALYTICAL SERVICES

7,773.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICESSOLUTIENT TECHNOLOGIES, LLC

266.95 COMMUNICATIONSVERIZON WIRELESS

333.19 GASOLINEWRIGHT EXPRESS FSC

17,401.01 Total: 10 WATER SYSTEMS

Department: 20 WASTEWATER SYSTEMS

190.05 UNIFORMS CARD SERVICES

3,055.22 MAINTENANCE PARTS & MATERIALSLESMAN

4,293.38 LABORATORY TESTINGSUBURBAN LABORATORIES

7,171.50 CAPITAL EQUIPMENTTROJAN UV

214.00 LAB SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENTUSA BLUEBOOK

333.20 GASOLINEWRIGHT EXPRESS FSC

15,257.35 Total: 20 WASTEWATER SYSTEMS

170,524.49 *** GRAND TOTAL ***



Village of Gilberts 
Village Hall 

87 Galligan Road, Gilberts, Illinois 60136 
Ph. 847-428-2861      Fax: 847-428-2955 

www.villageofgilberts.com 
 

Memorandum 
 

TO:    Village President Zambetti and Village Board of Trustees 

CC:  Brian Bourdeau, Village Administrator 

FROM:  Taunya Fischer, Finance Director 

DATE: April 13, 2023 

SUBJECT: March 31, 2023 Treasurer’s Report 

Here is a brief snapshot of the Village’s Budget vs. Actual as of March 31, 2023 for the 
General and Water Funds.  
 

General Fund Budget Actual 
% BDGT 

Used 
Revenues   5,750,856.00    5,973,408.05 104% 
Expenditures   5,468,988.00    4,573,936.91 84% 
Net of Rev & Exp       281,868.00    1,399,471.14  
    

Water Fund Budget Actual 
% BDGT 

Used 
Revenues   3,673,811.00        2,203,610.45 60% 
Expenditures   3,673,811.00        2,694,610.34 73% 
Net of Rev & Exp                   0.00          (490,999.89)  

 
The percent of fiscal year completed for this report is 92%. The General Fund revenues 
are at 104% and expenditures are at 84%; Water Fund revenues are at 60% and 
expenditures are at 73%. Looking at all funds, village-wide revenues are at 77%; and 
expenditures are at 80%. To date, $877,417 of the $1M in ARPA funds have been used 
for the approved expenditures within both the General and Water funds. 
 
As the 2022 road program is a significant portion of the Village-wide expenditures this 
fiscal year, the Net of Revenues & Expenditures for All Funds is also shown with the 
Infrastructure Fund excluded at the bottom of the SUMMARY page. This gives the Board 
a more concise view on all the other funds.   
 
Also included in this report for March 31, 2023 are: 
Revenue and Expense Budget vs. 03/31/23 YTD chart 
Summary – All Funds report 
Detail – All Funds report 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Taunya Fischer, Finance Director 



GENERAL REVENUES

GENERAL EXPENDITURES

WATER REVENUES

WATER EXPENDITURES

TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS

TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS

5,750,856 

5,468,988 

3,673,811 

3,673,811 

14,925,084 

13,747,581 

5,973,408 

4,573,937 

2,203,610 

2,694,610 

11,422,887 

11,055,852 

Village of Gilberts Revenues vs. Expenditures

2022-23 Budget vs. YTD as of 3/31/2023

 YTD AS OF 3/31/2023  2022-23 BUDGET



ACTIVITY FOR

2022-23 YTD BALANCE MONTH AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER  BUDGET 03/31/2023 03/31/2023 BALANCE USED

Fund 01 - GENERAL FUND:

TOTAL REVENUES 5,750,856.00    5,973,408.05     (195,127.70)       (222,552.05)      104

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,468,988.00    4,573,936.91     (296,760.64)       895,051.09       84

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 281,868.00        1,399,471.14     101,632.94        (1,117,603.14)  

Fund 11 - COMMUNITY DAYS:

TOTAL REVENUES 78,400.00          77,017.23          -                      1,382.77           98

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 63,766.00          66,045.02          -                      (2,279.02)          104

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 14,634.00          10,972.21          -                      3,661.79           

Fund 12 - INFRASTRUCTURE FUND:

TOTAL REVENUES 3,369,200.00    521,200.51        56,731.58          2,847,999.49    15

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,322,022.00    2,600,754.42     24,757.18          721,267.58       78

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 47,178.00          (2,079,553.91)   31,974.40          2,126,731.91    

Fund 15 - CAPITAL PROJECTS:

TOTAL REVENUES 85,000.00          323,363.25        -                      (238,363.25)      380

TOTAL EXPENDITURES -                      -                      -                      -                     0

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 85,000.00          323,363.25        -                      (238,363.25)      

Fund 20 - WATER SYSTEM:

TOTAL REVENUES 3,673,811.00    2,203,610.45     106,817.82        1,470,200.55    60

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,673,811.00    2,694,610.34     387,656.71        979,200.66       73

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES -                      (490,999.89)       (280,838.89)       490,999.89       

Fund 30 - MFT:

TOTAL REVENUES 477,944.00        407,438.90        33,751.34          70,505.10         85

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 125,000.00        58,994.13          47,245.71          66,005.87         47

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 352,944.00        348,444.77        (13,494.37)         4,499.23           

Fund 31 - PERFORMANCE BOND:

TOTAL REVENUES 45.00                  4,647.13            699.47                (4,602.13)          10327

TOTAL EXPENDITURES -                      4.31                    0.40                    (4.31)                  100

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 45.00                  4,642.82            699.07                (4,597.82)          

Fund 34 - TIF#1 CENTRAL REDEVELOPMENT:

TOTAL REVENUES 200,400.00        244,891.52        65.94                  (44,491.52)        122

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 101,000.00        50,000.00          50,000.00          51,000.00         50

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 99,400.00          194,891.52        (49,934.06)         (95,491.52)        

Fund 35 - TIF#2 HIGGINS ROAD IND. PARK:

TOTAL REVENUES 886,650.00        940,272.51        61.57                  (53,622.51)        106

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 802,550.00        849,493.47        550.00                (46,943.47)        106

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 84,100.00          90,779.04          (488.43)              (6,679.04)          

Fund 40 - DRUG FORFEITURE PD ACCOUNT:

TOTAL REVENUES 10.00                  2,823.58            3.37                    (2,813.58)          28236

TOTAL EXPENDITURES -                      12,124.27          7,665.80            (12,124.27)        100

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 10.00                  (9,300.69)           (7,662.43)           9,310.69           

Fund 43 - POLICE PENSION FUND:

TOTAL REVENUES 402,768.00        724,214.08        -                      (321,446.08)      180

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 190,444.00        149,888.69        -                      40,555.31         79

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 212,324.00        574,325.39        -                      (362,001.39)      

TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS 14,925,084.00  11,422,887.21   3,003.39            3,502,196.79    77

TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS 13,747,581.00  11,055,851.56   221,115.16        2,691,729.44    80

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 1,177,503.00    367,035.65        (218,111.77)       810,467.35       

NET LESS INFRASTRUCTURE FUND 1,130,325.00    2,446,589.56     (250,086.17)       (1,316,264.56)  

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR GILBERTS VILLAGE

PERIOD ENDING 03/31/2023 - SUMMARY

% Fiscal Year Completed: 91.78



ACTIVITY FOR

2022-23 YTD BALANCE MONTH AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION  BUDGET 03/31/2023 03/31/2023 BALANCE USED

Fund 01 - GENERAL FUND

Revenues

Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

01-00-3010 PROPERTY TAX 1,289,412.00     1,287,419.77     -                       1,992.23            100

01-00-3020 PERSONAL PROPERTY REPL TAX 350.00                1,006.99             84.47                   (656.99)              288

01-00-3030 TAX-SALES 400,000.00        528,090.45         45,419.49           (128,090.45)      132

01-00-3040 TAX-STATE INCOME 1,049,096.00     1,234,412.73     72,914.51           (185,316.73)      118

01-00-3041 STATE LOCAL USE TAX 294,064.00        313,822.94         38,341.83           (19,758.94)         107

01-00-3043 CANNABIS USE TAX 15,498.00           11,976.80           1,035.48             3,521.20            77

01-00-3060 LICENSE-LIQUOR 11,900.00           13,900.00           -                       (2,000.00)           117

01-00-3090 PULLTABS & JAR GAMES TAX 675.00                1,027.31             -                       (352.31)              152

01-00-3100 FEE-BUSINESS REGISTRATION 3,800.00             3,996.00             25.00                   (196.00)              105

01-00-3110 FEE-CABLE FRANCHISE 55,000.00           44,108.62           -                       10,891.38          80

01-00-3140 UTIL TAX-ELECTRIC 170,000.00        180,470.13         14,788.21           (10,470.13)         106

01-00-3150 ULT TAX-GAS 95,000.00           185,762.24         25,975.33           (90,762.24)         196

01-00-3160 CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION 8,300.00             10,130.00           1,100.00             (1,830.00)           122

01-00-3180 ULIT TAX-COMMUNICATIONS 65,000.00           60,264.10           4,861.04             4,735.90            93

01-00-3200 ZBA/PLAN.COMM. HEARINGS -                       3,500.00             1,500.00             (3,500.00)           100

01-00-3210 MISCELLANEOUS INCOME 5,000.00             45,588.04           6,277.85             (40,588.04)         912

01-00-3211 PLANNED USE OF FUND RESERVES 549,510.00        -                       -                       549,510.00        0

01-00-3220 FINES-COURT 17,000.00           19,251.19           774.00                (2,251.19)           113

01-00-3230 FINES-OTHER 5,000.00             4,512.00             1,685.00             488.00               90

01-00-3240 FINES-CODE BUILDING -                       1,350.00             -                       (1,350.00)           100

01-00-3250 FEES-BUILDING PERMITS 26,288.00           136,905.52         20,766.00           (110,617.52)      521

01-00-3260 OVERWT/SIZE PERMIT FEE 4,000.00             2,370.00             540.00                1,630.00            59

01-00-3280 BUILDING ENGINEERING FEES -                       27,962.60           6,780.00             (27,962.60)         100

01-00-3290 RECYCLING LICENSE 2,500.00             2,500.00             2,500.00             -                      100

01-00-3330 PARK PAVILION RENTAL 250.00                765.00                15.00                   (515.00)              306

01-00-3410 INTEREST EARNED 2,000.00             300,867.21         46,026.95           (298,867.21)      15043

01-00-3440 PARK IMPACT FEES 19,860.00           116,992.00         30,948.00           (97,132.00)         589

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR GILBERTS VILLAGE

PERIOD ENDING 03/31/2023 - DETAIL

% Fiscal Year Completed: 91.78

Page 1 of 19



ACTIVITY FOR

2022-23 YTD BALANCE MONTH AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION  BUDGET 03/31/2023 03/31/2023 BALANCE USED

01-00-3451 GILBERTS POLICE REPORT REQUEST 200.00                250.00                25.00                   (50.00)                125

01-00-3460 MUNICIPAL UTILITY IMPACT FEE 7,500.00             22,000.00           6,000.00             (14,500.00)         293

01-00-3480 ANTENNA RENTAL 66,935.00           65,506.45           8,299.51             1,428.55            98

01-00-3500 GRANT REVENUE 553,908.00        251,563.79         (619,945.30)       302,344.21        45

01-00-3530 VACANT PROP /  BUILDING REGISTRATION 200.00                -                       -                       200.00               0

01-00-3540 RAFFLE LICENSE 60.00                  80.00                   -                       (20.00)                133

01-00-3560 GARBAGE HAULER LICENSE 800.00                200.00                -                       600.00               25

01-00-3580 VIDEO GAMING 130,000.00        147,410.26         15,262.79           (17,410.26)         113

01-00-3590 VIDEO GAMING LICENSE 12,000.00           13,075.00           -                       (1,075.00)           109

01-00-3630 MUNICIPAL IMPACT FEE 41,250.00           132,000.00         33,000.00           (90,750.00)         320

01-00-3680 APPLICATION FEE - POLICE DEPT. 1,000.00             -                       -                       1,000.00            0

01-00-3960 REIMBURSED INCOME -                       794.64                -                       (794.64)              100

01-00-8100 TRANSFERS IN -                       4.31                     0.40                     (4.31)                   100

Total Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND 4,903,356.00     5,171,836.09     (234,999.44)       (268,480.09)      105

Dept 07 - ENHANCED DUI PROGRAM

01-07-3017 ENHANCED DUI - VEHICLE SEIZURE 3,000.00             4,000.00             -                       (1,000.00)           133

Total Dept 07 - ENHANCED DUI PROGRAM 3,000.00             4,000.00             -                       (1,000.00)           133

Dept 08 - GARBAGE HAULING

01-08-3018 GARBAGE REVENUE 800,000.00        760,434.26         39,628.66           39,565.74          95

01-08-3028 FRANCHISE REVENUE -GARBAGE 40,000.00           31,413.99           -                       8,586.01            79

01-08-3080 LATE FEES 4,500.00             5,723.71             243.08                (1,223.71)           127

Total Dept 08 - GARBAGE HAULING 844,500.00        797,571.96         39,871.74           46,928.04          94

TOTAL REVENUES 5,750,856.00     5,973,408.05     (195,127.70)       (222,552.05)      104

Expenditures

Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

01-00-8500 TRANSFERS OUT -                       238,363.25         -                       (238,363.25)      100

Total Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND -                       238,363.25         -                       (238,363.25)      100

Dept 01 - ADMINISTRATIVE

01-01-5010 WAGES-BOARD 24,000.00           19,625.00           1,875.00             4,375.00            82

01-01-5020 WAGES-PLANNING AND ZBA 2,100.00             500.00                -                       1,600.00            24

Page 2 of 19



ACTIVITY FOR

2022-23 YTD BALANCE MONTH AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION  BUDGET 03/31/2023 03/31/2023 BALANCE USED

01-01-5030 WAGES-GENERAL 292,622.00        289,658.21         36,281.80           2,963.79            99

01-01-5032 WAGES - OVERTIME 1,000.00             -                       -                       1,000.00            0

01-01-5040 FICA 19,761.00           18,727.11           2,324.28             1,033.89            95

01-01-5050 MEDICARE 4,621.00             4,379.65             543.58                241.35               95

01-01-5051 STATE UNEMPL TAX 8,000.00             4,287.59             3,146.24             3,712.41            54

01-01-5052 IMRF 31,311.00           30,816.48           3,856.73             494.52               98

01-01-5054 GROUP HEALTH INS 53,688.00           29,416.25           2,577.63             24,271.75          55

01-01-5056 WORKER'S COMP INS 38,000.00           37,182.60           514.50                817.40               98

01-01-5060 OPERATING EXPENSE 3,500.00             1,810.98             264.99                1,689.02            52

01-01-5070 DUES 7,100.00             6,625.00             280.00                475.00               93

01-01-5080 LEGAL NOTICES 1,600.00             902.80                257.60                697.20               56

01-01-5090 COMMUNICATIONS 14,100.00           8,441.86             830.57                5,658.14            60

01-01-5100 POSTAGE 2,300.00             1,400.00             -                       900.00               61

01-01-5110 PRINTING 7,400.00             5,906.25             -                       1,493.75            80

01-01-5150 COMMUNITY RELATIONS 7,000.00             4,964.60             -                       2,035.40            71

01-01-5190 RENTAL-EQUIPMENT 6,693.00             2,256.06             372.23                4,436.94            34

01-01-5200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 4,000.00             2,643.24             262.75                1,356.76            66

01-01-5210 NISRA EXPENSE 900.00                -                       -                       900.00               0

01-01-5220 LEGAL LITIGATION 8,000.00             -                       -                       8,000.00            0

01-01-5230 LEGAL EXPENSE 65,000.00           80,984.45           13,915.00           (15,984.45)         125

01-01-5240 ACCOUNTING SERVICES 40,000.00           43,000.00           -                       (3,000.00)           108

01-01-5252 STORM WATER MGMT. PROFESSIONAL 10,000.00           -                       -                       10,000.00          0

01-01-5270 BANK FEES 175.00                108.37                -                       66.63                  62

01-01-5310 INSURANCE LIABILITY 39,000.00           43,568.00           -                       (4,568.00)           112

01-01-5320 INSURANCE VEHICLES & EQUIP. 10,000.00           9,143.00             -                       857.00               91

01-01-5360 ENGINEERING SERVICES 15,800.00           44,736.25           -                       (28,936.25)         283

01-01-5400 MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT 600.00                -                       -                       600.00               0

01-01-5410 MAINTENANCE BUILDING 4,150.00             1,781.67             298.25                2,368.33            43

01-01-5450 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 35,657.00           31,342.89           2,012.97             4,314.11            88

01-01-5480 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 48,500.00           5,300.34             4,023.40             43,199.66          11

01-01-5491 EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT 3,000.00             1,582.32             -                       1,417.68            53

01-01-5560 VILLAGE PLANNER SERVICES 105,000.00        34,043.51           7,604.72             70,956.49          32

01-01-5580 TRAINING EXPENSE 24,105.00           1,974.22             -                       22,130.78          8

01-01-5661 73 INDUSTRIAL PRINCIPAL 80,200.00           27,074.64           4,648.37             53,125.36          34

Page 3 of 19



ACTIVITY FOR

2022-23 YTD BALANCE MONTH AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION  BUDGET 03/31/2023 03/31/2023 BALANCE USED

01-01-5671 73 INDUSTRIAL INTEREST 15,000.00           15,051.84           2,372.71             (51.84)                100

01-01-5960 REIMBURSED EXPENSES -                       -                       (50,000.00)          -                      0

01-01-8500 TRANSFERS OUT 784,900.00        900.00                (619,945.30)       784,000.00        0

Total Dept 01 - ADMINISTRATIVE 1,818,783.00     810,135.18         (581,681.98)       1,008,647.82    45

Dept 02 - POLICE

01-02-5030 WAGES-POLICE 795,439.00        850,990.45         104,925.91         (55,551.45)         107

01-02-5031 WAGES - HOLIDAY WORKED 25,000.00           19,696.22           2,141.29             5,303.78            79

01-02-5032 WAGES - OVERTIME 20,000.00           15,375.80           2,069.62             4,624.20            77

01-02-5040 FICA 49,317.00           53,180.49           6,622.79             (3,863.49)           108

01-02-5050 MEDICARE 11,534.00           12,437.35           1,548.86             (903.35)              108

01-02-5052 IMRF 4,893.00             4,510.04             563.64                382.96               92

01-02-5054 GROUP HEALTH INS 123,832.00        100,259.48         9,017.12             23,572.52          81

01-02-5058 UNIFORMS 11,800.00           5,711.84             888.24                6,088.16            48

01-02-5060 OPERATING EXPENSE 7,150.00             5,554.79             195.71                1,595.21            78

01-02-5070 DUES 3,460.00             2,970.00             -                       490.00               86

01-02-5090 COMMUNICATIONS 10,000.00           6,364.88             917.75                3,635.12            64

01-02-5110 PRINTING 1,000.00             657.34                53.95                   342.66               66

01-02-5170 PUBLICATIONS/BROCHURES 150.00                106.00                -                       44.00                  71

01-02-5180 SMALL TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT 750.00                244.93                -                       505.07               33

01-02-5190 RENTAL-EQUIPMENT -                       186.11                186.11                (186.11)              100

01-02-5200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,500.00             1,558.13             155.40                941.87               62

01-02-5230 LEGAL EXPENSE 5,500.00             5,072.50             400.00                427.50               92

01-02-5300 DISPATCHING 92,000.00           89,825.00           -                       2,175.00            98

01-02-5370 GASOLINE 28,000.00           27,948.05           2,154.32             51.95                  100

01-02-5390 MAINTENANCE VEHICLES 26,200.00           24,272.99           5,753.73             1,927.01            93

01-02-5400 MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT 3,000.00             2,713.67             667.50                286.33               90

01-02-5410 MAINTENANCE BUILDING 22,350.00           31,632.24           -                       (9,282.24)           142

01-02-5450 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 12,915.00           13,904.77           1,826.95             (989.77)              108

01-02-5480 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 129,750.00        168,005.46         7,942.31             (38,255.46)         129

01-02-5570 COMMUNITY RELATIONS 2,000.00             597.66                508.30                1,402.34            30

01-02-5580 TRAINING EXPENSE 9,550.00             4,690.44             -                       4,859.56            49

01-02-8500 TRANSFERS OUT-POLICE 35,000.00           35,000.00           -                       -                      100

Total Dept 02 - POLICE 1,433,090.00     1,483,466.63     148,539.50         (50,376.63)         104

Page 4 of 19



ACTIVITY FOR

2022-23 YTD BALANCE MONTH AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION  BUDGET 03/31/2023 03/31/2023 BALANCE USED

Dept 03 - PUBLIC WORKS

01-03-5030 WAGES-PPW 238,641.00        219,930.10         24,045.22           18,710.90          92

01-03-5032 WAGES - OVERTIME 14,000.00           14,314.65           3,798.48             (314.65)              102

01-03-5040 FICA 14,796.00           14,189.08           1,707.20             606.92               96

01-03-5050 MEDICARE 3,460.00             3,318.44             399.27                141.56               96

01-03-5052 IMRF 25,535.00           25,013.04           2,959.77             521.96               98

01-03-5054 GROUP HEALTH INS 51,237.00           23,678.60           1,167.40             27,558.40          46

01-03-5058 UNIFORMS 1,500.00             1,252.77             -                       247.23               84

01-03-5060 OPERATING EXPENSE 1,650.00             2,231.70             -                       (581.70)              135

01-03-5070 DUES 370.00                752.00                382.00                (382.00)              203

01-03-5090 COMMUNICATIONS 4,000.00             1,785.36             256.00                2,214.64            45

01-03-5180 SMALL TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT 8,500.00             7,111.33             17.57                   1,388.67            84

01-03-5190 RENTAL-EQUIPMENT 1,500.00             1,487.67             -                       12.33                  99

01-03-5251 NPDES PERMITS 1,000.00             1,000.00             -                       -                      100

01-03-5260 STREETLIGHTING 38,100.00           21,440.65           2,184.78             16,659.35          56

01-03-5370 GASOLINE 15,000.00           16,089.61           1,225.45             (1,089.61)           107

01-03-5380 SIGNS EXPENSE 12,500.00           209.40                -                       12,290.60          2

01-03-5390 MAINTENANCE VEHICLES 25,500.00           28,534.26           4,793.57             (3,034.26)           112

01-03-5400 MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT 15,000.00           7,614.62             908.54                7,385.38            51

01-03-5410 MAINTENANCE BUILDING 11,000.00           8,282.70             5,804.14             2,717.30            75

01-03-5420 MAINTENANCE STREETS 28,000.00           53,408.21           2,369.10             (25,408.21)         191

01-03-5440 MAINTENANCE GROUNDS 3,000.00             3,457.98             -                       (457.98)              115

01-03-5441 TREE/SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT 2,500.00             1,048.48             -                       1,451.52            42

01-03-5450 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 37,555.00           35,236.85           803.46                2,318.15            94

01-03-5461 WEATHER SIREN MAINTENANCE 2,500.00             -                       -                       2,500.00            0

01-03-5480 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 295,000.00        234,919.71         -                       60,080.29          80

01-03-5580 TRAINING EXPENSE 4,750.00             540.98                -                       4,209.02            11

01-03-8500 TRANSFERS OUT 15,000.00           15,000.00           -                       -                      100

Total Dept 03 - PUBLIC WORKS 871,594.00        741,848.19         52,821.95           129,745.81        85

Dept 04 - BUILDING

01-04-5030 WAGES-BUILDING 45,247.00           43,280.56           5,456.10             1,966.44            96

01-04-5040 FICA 2,805.00             2,683.40             338.28                121.60               96

Page 5 of 19



ACTIVITY FOR

2022-23 YTD BALANCE MONTH AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION  BUDGET 03/31/2023 03/31/2023 BALANCE USED

01-04-5050 MEDICARE 656.00                627.57                79.12                   28.43                  96

01-04-5052 IMRF 4,841.00             4,622.13             579.99                218.87               95

01-04-5054 GROUP HEALTH INS 40.00                  36.30                   3.30                     3.70                    91

01-04-5070 DUES 361.00                145.00                -                       216.00               40

01-04-5090 COMMUNICATIONS -                       -                       (433.95)               -                      0

01-04-5200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,000.00             342.29                34.60                   657.71               34

01-04-5250 BUILDING PERMIT EXPENSE 21,030.00           125,979.47         9,959.38             (104,949.47)      599

01-04-5450 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 15,500.00           4,431.14             -                       11,068.86          29

01-04-5580 TRAINING EXPENSE 500.00                -                       -                       500.00               0

Total Dept 04 - BUILDING 91,980.00           182,147.86         16,016.82           (90,167.86)         198

Dept 06 - PARKS

01-06-5030 REG WAGES 24,336.00           12,855.00           945.00                11,481.00          53

01-06-5040 FICA 1,509.00             797.01                58.59                   711.99               53

01-06-5050 MEDICARE 353.00                186.40                13.71                   166.60               53

01-06-5060 OPERATING EXPENSE 250.00                673.69                -                       (423.69)              269

01-06-5090 COMMUNICATIONS 2,520.00             2,359.08             214.48                160.92               94

01-06-5120 UTILITIES 4,200.00             2,864.92             117.41                1,335.08            68

01-06-5190 RENTAL-EQUIPMENT 2,000.00             2,920.80             -                       (920.80)              146

01-06-5211 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 1,800.00             1,275.14             670.00                524.86               71

01-06-5350 MINOR PARK PROJECTS 500.00                -                       -                       500.00               0

01-06-5370 GASOLINE 600.00                600.00                -                       -                      100

01-06-5391 MAINTENANCE-SPORTS/PLAYGROUND  EQUIP. 1,000.00             -                       -                       1,000.00            0

01-06-5400 MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT 2,000.00             1,758.10             515.55                241.90               88

01-06-5410 MAINTENANCE BUILDING 700.00                84.54                   -                       615.46               12

01-06-5440 MAINTENANCE GROUNDS 20,050.00           14,149.70           -                       5,900.30            71

01-06-5450 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 9,500.00             5,600.00             -                       3,900.00            59

01-06-5480 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 110,000.00        16,840.42           -                       93,159.58          15

01-06-8500 TRANSFERS OUT-PARKS 35,000.00           35,000.00           -                       -                      100

Total Dept 06 - PARKS 216,318.00        97,964.80           2,534.74             118,353.20        45

Dept 07 - ENHANCED DUI PROGRAM

01-07-5180 SMALL TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT 2,500.00             -                       -                       2,500.00            0

Total Dept 07 - ENHANCED DUI PROGRAM 2,500.00             -                       -                       2,500.00            0

Page 6 of 19



ACTIVITY FOR

2022-23 YTD BALANCE MONTH AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION  BUDGET 03/31/2023 03/31/2023 BALANCE USED

Dept 08 - GARBAGE HAULING

01-08-5068 GARBAGE HAULING EXPENSE 708,000.00        693,288.00         65,008.33           14,712.00          98

Total Dept 08 - GARBAGE HAULING 708,000.00        693,288.00         65,008.33           14,712.00          98

Dept 89 - GPD DOWN STATE PENSION FUND

01-89-5621 GPD DOWNSTATE PENSION FUND 326,723.00        326,723.00         -                       -                      100

Total Dept 89 - GPD DOWN STATE PENSION FUND 326,723.00        326,723.00         -                       -                      100

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,468,988.00     4,573,936.91     (296,760.64)       895,051.09        84

Fund 01 - GENERAL FUND:

TOTAL REVENUES 5,750,856.00     5,973,408.05     (195,127.70)       (222,552.05)      104

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,468,988.00     4,573,936.91     (296,760.64)       895,051.09       84

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 281,868.00        1,399,471.14     101,632.94        (1,117,603.14)   

Page 7 of 19



ACTIVITY FOR

2022-23 YTD BALANCE MONTH AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION  BUDGET 03/31/2023 03/31/2023 BALANCE USED

Fund 11 - COMMUNITY DAYS

Revenues

Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

11-00-3015 COMMUNITY DAYS DONATIONS 14,000.00           20,400.00           -                       (6,400.00)           146

11-00-3210 OTHER INCOME 17,000.00           22,233.48           -                       (5,233.48)           131

11-00-3211 PLANNED USE OF FUND RESERVES 31,000.00           -                       -                       31,000.00          0

11-00-3520 VENDOR FEES 3,500.00             2,926.00             -                       574.00               84

11-00-3980 BEVERAGE SALES 12,000.00           30,557.75           -                       (18,557.75)         255

11-00-8100 TRANSFERS IN 900.00                900.00                -                       -                      100

Total Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND 78,400.00           77,017.23           -                       1,382.77            98

TOTAL REVENUES 78,400.00           77,017.23           -                       1,382.77            98

Expenditures

Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

11-00-5060 BEVERAGE OPERATIONS 12,466.00           11,105.77           -                       1,360.23            89

11-00-5070 PERMITS & LICENSES 55.00                  40.33                   -                       14.67                  73

11-00-5079 ADVERTISING / MARKETING 3,670.00             2,492.10             -                       1,177.90            68

11-00-5130 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 410.00                416.00                -                       (6.00)                   101

11-00-5159 ENTERTAINMENT 41,065.00           41,465.00           -                       (400.00)              101

11-00-5213 LABOR & OUTSIDE SERVICES -                       4,456.97             -                       (4,456.97)           100

11-00-5610 EQUIPMENT & SERVICES 6,100.00             6,068.85             -                       31.15                  99

Total Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND 63,766.00           66,045.02           -                       (2,279.02)           104

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 63,766.00           66,045.02           -                       (2,279.02)           104

Fund 11 - COMMUNITY DAYS:

TOTAL REVENUES 78,400.00          77,017.23           -                       1,382.77            98

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 63,766.00          66,045.02           -                       (2,279.02)           104

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 14,634.00          10,972.21           -                       3,661.79            

Page 8 of 19



ACTIVITY FOR

2022-23 YTD BALANCE MONTH AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION  BUDGET 03/31/2023 03/31/2023 BALANCE USED

Fund 12 - INFRASTRUCTURE FUND

Revenues

Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

12-00-3031 NON HOME RULE 1% SALES TAX 360,000.00        482,450.12         42,892.25           (122,450.12)      134

12-00-3050 TAX-ROAD AND BRIDGE 9,000.00             9,430.90             -                       (430.90)              105

12-00-3211 PLANNED USE OF FUND RESERVES 3,000,000.00     -                       -                       3,000,000.00    0

12-00-3390 SSA#24 BOND INTEREST -                       27,407.51           13,696.15           (27,407.51)         100

12-00-3410 INTEREST EARNED 200.00                1,911.98             143.18                (1,711.98)           956

Total Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND 3,369,200.00     521,200.51         56,731.58           2,847,999.49    15

TOTAL REVENUES 3,369,200.00     521,200.51         56,731.58           2,847,999.49    15

Expenditures

Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

12-00-5270 BANK FEES -                       475.00                -                       (475.00)              100

12-00-5360 ENGINEERING SERVICES 200,000.00        39,141.00           -                       160,859.00        20

12-00-5480 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 2,800,000.00     2,239,116.76     24,757.18           560,883.24        80

12-00-5490 GO BOND PRINCIPAL 215,000.00        215,000.00         -                       -                      100

12-00-5491 GO BOND INTEREST 107,022.00        107,021.66         -                       0.34                    100

Total Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND 3,322,022.00     2,600,754.42     24,757.18           721,267.58        78

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,322,022.00     2,600,754.42     24,757.18           721,267.58        78

Fund 12 - INFRASTRUCTURE FUND:

TOTAL REVENUES 3,369,200.00     521,200.51        56,731.58           2,847,999.49    15

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,322,022.00     2,600,754.42     24,757.18           721,267.58       78

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 47,178.00          (2,079,553.91)    31,974.40           2,126,731.91    

Page 9 of 19



ACTIVITY FOR

2022-23 YTD BALANCE MONTH AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION  BUDGET 03/31/2023 03/31/2023 BALANCE USED

Fund 15 - CAPITAL PROJECTS

Revenues

Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

15-00-8100 TRANSFERS IN 85,000.00           323,363.25         -                       (238,363.25)      380

Total Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND 85,000.00           323,363.25         -                       (238,363.25)      380

TOTAL REVENUES 85,000.00           323,363.25         -                       (238,363.25)      380

Fund 15 - CAPITAL PROJECTS:

TOTAL REVENUES 85,000.00          323,363.25        -                       (238,363.25)      380

TOTAL EXPENDITURES -                      -                       -                       -                      0

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 85,000.00          323,363.25        -                       (238,363.25)      

Page 10 of 19



ACTIVITY FOR

2022-23 YTD BALANCE MONTH AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION  BUDGET 03/31/2023 03/31/2023 BALANCE USED

Fund 20 - WATER SYSTEM

Revenues

Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

20-00-3022 INCOME - WASTEWATER 750,000.00        678,622.13         34,679.02           71,377.87          90

20-00-3032 INCOME -  WATER 850,000.00        752,366.12         41,744.55           97,633.88          89

20-00-3080 LATE FEES 20,000.00           23,131.43           3,804.26             (3,131.43)           116

20-00-3210 MISCELLANEOUS INCOME -                       361.80                -                       (361.80)              100

20-00-3211 PLANNED USE OF FUND RESERVES 1,256,961.00     -                       -                       1,256,961.00    0

20-00-3310 FEE-TAP-ON - WATER 1,700.00             4,200.00             -                       (2,500.00)           247

20-00-3320 FEE-TAP-ON SEWER -                       23,409.00           -                       (23,409.00)         100

20-00-3360 METER SALES 7,050.00             27,457.55           6,508.91             (20,407.55)         389

20-00-3390 SSA#24 BOND INTEREST 100.00                27,407.73           13,696.14           (27,307.73)         27408

20-00-3410 INTEREST EARNED 4,000.00             46,606.79           6,384.94             (42,606.79)         1165

20-00-3500 GRANT REVENUE -                       619,945.30         619,945.30         (619,945.30)      100

20-00-3980 MISCELANEOUS REVENUE -                       102.60                -                       (102.60)              100

20-00-8100 TRANSFERS IN 784,000.00        -                       (619,945.30)       784,000.00        0

Total Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND 3,673,811.00     2,203,610.45     106,817.82         1,470,200.55    60

TOTAL REVENUES 3,673,811.00     2,203,610.45     106,817.82         1,470,200.55    60

Expenditures

Dept 10 - WATER SYSTEMS

20-10-5030 REG. WAGES 167,175.00        174,700.57         13,059.84           (7,525.57)           105

20-10-5032 WAGES - OVERTIME 7,000.00             10,193.10           10,193.10           (3,193.10)           146

20-10-5040 FICA 10,204.00           10,944.94           1,394.50             (740.94)              107

20-10-5050 MEDICARE 2,386.00             2,559.83             326.11                (173.83)              107

20-10-5052 IMRF 17,609.00           19,746.58           2,471.78             (2,137.58)           112

20-10-5054 GROUP HEALTH INS 38,087.00           32,098.26           2,851.86             5,988.74            84

20-10-5056 WORKER'S COMP INS 16,300.00           15,935.40           220.50                364.60               98

20-10-5058 UNIFORMS 1,300.00             760.90                -                       539.10               59

20-10-5070 DUES 950.00                915.92                -                       34.08                  96

20-10-5080 LEGAL NOTICES 100.00                -                       -                       100.00               0

20-10-5090 COMMUNICATIONS 7,600.00             5,058.02             453.47                2,541.98            67

20-10-5091 JULIE LOCATE SUPPLIES 500.00                -                       -                       500.00               0

20-10-5100 POSTAGE 3,350.00             3,248.47             517.34                101.53               97

Page 11 of 19



ACTIVITY FOR

2022-23 YTD BALANCE MONTH AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION  BUDGET 03/31/2023 03/31/2023 BALANCE USED

20-10-5110 PRINTING 3,100.00             2,846.11             447.51                253.89               92

20-10-5120 UTILITIES 104,000.00        71,786.80           9,258.81             32,213.20          69

20-10-5180 SMALL TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT 4,500.00             1,113.95             85.33                   3,386.05            25

20-10-5190 RENTAL-EQUIPMENT 1,500.00             668.74                186.11                831.26               45

20-10-5200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,000.00             768.78                123.11                231.22               77

20-10-5213 OUTSIDE SERVICES 21,000.00           23,096.45           7,800.00             (2,096.45)           110

20-10-5262 LAB SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 20,000.00           15,303.27           3,539.30             4,696.73            77

20-10-5281 CHEMICALS 80,000.00           61,744.90           17,915.25           18,255.10          77

20-10-5301 MAINT SUPPLIES-JANTORIAL 250.00                29.16                   -                       220.84               12

20-10-5310 INSURANCE LIABILITY 25,000.00           27,855.00           -                       (2,855.00)           111

20-10-5320 INSURANCE VEHICLES & EQUIP. 6,500.00             5,845.00             -                       655.00               90

20-10-5360 ENGINEERING SERVICES 10,000.00           12,540.59           -                       (2,540.59)           125

20-10-5370 GASOLINE 5,000.00             4,026.78             213.17                973.22               81

20-10-5381 MAINTENANCE PARTS & MATERIALS 10,000.00           5,921.98             1,205.00             4,078.02            59

20-10-5390 MAINTENANCE VEHICLES 5,000.00             2,092.51             403.86                2,907.49            42

20-10-5410 MAINTENANCE BUILDING 12,000.00           1,880.62             330.91                10,119.38          16

20-10-5431 HYDRANT MAINTENANCE 5,000.00             -                       -                       5,000.00            0

20-10-5450 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 66,218.00           52,631.73           299.45                13,586.27          79

20-10-5480 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 215,000.00        170,394.55         -                       44,605.45          79

20-10-5510 WATER METERS 56,670.00           141,362.09         56,397.00           (84,692.09)         249

20-10-5520 LABORATORY TESTING 10,000.00           19,233.26           6,127.30             (9,233.26)           192

20-10-5580 TRAINING EXPENSE 3,450.00             712.79                -                       2,737.21            21

20-10-5601 REPAIRS-WATER DISTRIBUTION SYS. 13,500.00           4,347.19             -                       9,152.81            32

20-10-5652 BRINE HAULING EXPENSES 35,000.00           47,968.20           9,467.90             (12,968.20)         137

20-10-5662 IEPA LOAN-PRINCIPAL 25,826.00           26,325.89           13,226.15           (499.89)              102

20-10-5672 IEPA LOAN - INTEREST 7,156.00             6,664.93             3,269.26             491.07               93

Total Dept 10 - WATER SYSTEMS 1,019,231.00     983,323.26         161,783.92         35,907.74          96

Dept 20 - WASTEWATER SYSTEMS

20-20-5030 WAGES 138,461.00        163,312.93         13,507.00           (24,851.93)         118

20-20-5032 WAGES - OVERTIME 7,000.00             8,278.76             8,278.76             (1,278.76)           118

20-20-5040 FICA 8,423.00             10,288.29           1,320.30             (1,865.29)           122

20-20-5050 MEDICARE 1,970.00             2,406.04             308.78                (436.04)              122

20-20-5052 IMRF 14,537.00           18,327.38           2,315.87             (3,790.38)           126

Page 12 of 19



ACTIVITY FOR

2022-23 YTD BALANCE MONTH AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION  BUDGET 03/31/2023 03/31/2023 BALANCE USED

20-20-5054 GROUP HEALTH INS 28,208.00           22,759.37           1,867.71             5,448.63            81

20-20-5058 UNIFORMS 1,300.00             1,339.46             200.00                (39.46)                103

20-20-5090 COMMUNICATIONS 3,800.00             3,639.34             370.74                160.66               96

20-20-5091 JULIE LOCATE SUPPLIES 400.00                -                       -                       400.00               0

20-20-5100 POSTAGE 3,350.00             3,254.87             517.34                95.13                  97

20-20-5110 PRINTING 3,100.00             2,846.09             447.50                253.91               92

20-20-5120 UTILITIES 140,000.00        101,647.99         13,513.51           38,352.01          73

20-20-5180 SMALL TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT 3,500.00             1,834.07             85.33                   1,665.93            52

20-20-5190 RENTAL-EQUIPMENT 3,000.00             533.18                -                       2,466.82            18

20-20-5200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,500.00             780.38                123.10                719.62               52

20-20-5213 OUTSIDE SERVICES 10,000.00           1,618.31             576.30                8,381.69            16

20-20-5251 NPDES PERMITS 20,000.00           17,500.00           -                       2,500.00            88

20-20-5262 LAB SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 8,500.00             6,783.28             875.95                1,716.72            80

20-20-5281 CHEMICALS 50,000.00           47,652.42           9,079.60             2,347.58            95

20-20-5301 MAINT SUPPLIES-JANITORIAL 250.00                94.50                   49.38                   155.50               38

20-20-5360 ENGINEERING SERVICES 10,000.00           3,621.50             -                       6,378.50            36

20-20-5370 GASOLINE 5,000.00             5,874.72             213.16                (874.72)              117

20-20-5381 MAINTENANCE PARTS & MATERIALS 18,000.00           9,710.02             1,984.06             8,289.98            54

20-20-5390 MAINTENANCE VEHICLES 5,000.00             2,501.95             648.34                2,498.05            50

20-20-5410 MAINTENANCE BUILDING 7,000.00             155.96                -                       6,844.04            2

20-20-5450 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 86,831.00           50,631.51           1,832.00             36,199.49          58

20-20-5480 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 2,012,000.00     1,175,443.16     149,440.50         836,556.84        58

20-20-5520 LABORATORY TESTING 30,000.00           38,114.89           18,317.56           (8,114.89)           127

20-20-5580 TRAINING EXPENSE 3,450.00             1,087.79             -                       2,362.21            32

20-20-5602 REPAIRS-W/WATER COLLECTION SYS. 10,000.00           1,469.79             -                       8,530.21            15

20-20-5660 COLLECTION SYS. PUMP MAINT. 20,000.00           7,779.13             -                       12,220.87          39

Total Dept 20 - WASTEWATER SYSTEMS 2,654,580.00     1,711,287.08     225,872.79         943,292.92        64

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,673,811.00     2,694,610.34     387,656.71         979,200.66        73

Fund 20 - WATER SYSTEM:

TOTAL REVENUES 3,673,811.00     2,203,610.45     106,817.82        1,470,200.55    60

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,673,811.00     2,694,610.34     387,656.71        979,200.66       73

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES -                      (490,999.89)       (280,838.89)       490,999.89       

Page 13 of 19



ACTIVITY FOR

2022-23 YTD BALANCE MONTH AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION  BUDGET 03/31/2023 03/31/2023 BALANCE USED

Fund 30 - MFT

Revenues

Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

30-00-3410 INTEREST EARNED 500.00                43,182.22           6,947.00             (42,682.22)         8636

30-00-3449 MFT - REBUILD IL FUNDS -                       75,558.86           -                       (75,558.86)         100

30-00-3450 MOTOR FUEL TAX 477,444.00        288,697.82         26,804.34           188,746.18        60

Total Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND 477,944.00        407,438.90         33,751.34           70,505.10          85

TOTAL REVENUES 477,944.00        407,438.90         33,751.34           70,505.10          85

Expenditures

Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

30-00-5462 MFT RESOLUTION 125,000.00        44,534.13           32,785.71           80,465.87          36

30-00-5463 MFT - REBUILD IL -                       14,460.00           14,460.00           (14,460.00)         100

Total Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND 125,000.00        58,994.13           47,245.71           66,005.87          47

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 125,000.00        58,994.13           47,245.71           66,005.87          47

Fund 30 - MFT:

TOTAL REVENUES 477,944.00        407,438.90        33,751.34           70,505.10          85

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 125,000.00        58,994.13           47,245.71           66,005.87          47

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 352,944.00        348,444.77        (13,494.37)         4,499.23            

Page 14 of 19



ACTIVITY FOR

2022-23 YTD BALANCE MONTH AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION  BUDGET 03/31/2023 03/31/2023 BALANCE USED

Fund 31 - PERFORMANCE BOND

Revenues

Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

31-00-3410 INTEREST EARNED 45.00                  4,647.13             699.47                (4,602.13)           10327

Total Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND 45.00                  4,647.13             699.47                (4,602.13)           10327

TOTAL REVENUES 45.00                  4,647.13             699.47                (4,602.13)           10327

Expenditures

Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

31-00-8500 TRANSFERS OUT -                       4.31                     0.40                     (4.31)                   100

Total Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND -                       4.31                     0.40                     (4.31)                   100

TOTAL EXPENDITURES -                       4.31                     0.40                     (4.31)                   100

Fund 31 - PERFORMANCE BOND:

TOTAL REVENUES 45.00                  4,647.13             699.47                (4,602.13)           10327

TOTAL EXPENDITURES -                      4.31                     0.40                     (4.31)                  100

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 45.00                  4,642.82             699.07                (4,597.82)           

Page 15 of 19



ACTIVITY FOR

2022-23 YTD BALANCE MONTH AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION  BUDGET 03/31/2023 03/31/2023 BALANCE USED

Fund 34 - TIF#1 CENTRAL REDEVELOPMENT

Revenues

Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

34-00-3010 PROPERTY TAX 200,000.00        244,203.52         -                       (44,203.52)         122

34-00-3410 INTEREST EARNED 400.00                688.00                65.94                   (288.00)              172

Total Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND 200,400.00        244,891.52         65.94                   (44,491.52)         122

TOTAL REVENUES 200,400.00        244,891.52         65.94                   (44,491.52)         122

Expenditures

Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

34-00-5061 ADMINISTRATIVE FEES 1,000.00             -                       -                       1,000.00            0

34-00-5074 FACADE GRANT -                       50,000.00           50,000.00           (50,000.00)         100

34-00-5451 MINOR PROJECTS 100,000.00        -                       -                       100,000.00        0

Total Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND 101,000.00        50,000.00           50,000.00           51,000.00          50

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 101,000.00        50,000.00           50,000.00           51,000.00          50

Fund 34 - TIF#1 CENTRAL REDEVELOPMENT:

TOTAL REVENUES 200,400.00        244,891.52        65.94                  (44,491.52)        122

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 101,000.00        50,000.00           50,000.00           51,000.00          50

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 99,400.00          194,891.52        (49,934.06)         (95,491.52)        

Page 16 of 19



ACTIVITY FOR

2022-23 YTD BALANCE MONTH AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION  BUDGET 03/31/2023 03/31/2023 BALANCE USED

Fund 35 - TIF#2 HIGGINS ROAD IND. PARK

Revenues

Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

35-00-3010 PROPERTY TAX 886,000.00        939,557.70         -                       (53,557.70)         106

35-00-3410 INTEREST EARNED 650.00                714.81                61.57                   (64.81)                110

Total Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND 886,650.00        940,272.51         61.57                   (53,622.51)         106

TOTAL REVENUES 886,650.00        940,272.51         61.57                   (53,622.51)         106

Expenditures

Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

35-00-5061 ADMINISTRATIVE FEES 10,550.00           550.00                550.00                10,000.00          5

35-00-5071 TIF NOTE INTEREST 289,643.00        289,643.47         -                       (0.47)                   100

35-00-5081 TIF NOTE PRINCIPAL 502,357.00        559,300.00         -                       (56,943.00)         111

Total Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND 802,550.00        849,493.47         550.00                (46,943.47)         106

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 802,550.00        849,493.47         550.00                (46,943.47)         106

Fund 35 - TIF#2 HIGGINS ROAD IND. PARK:

TOTAL REVENUES 886,650.00        940,272.51        61.57                  (53,622.51)        106

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 802,550.00        849,493.47        550.00                (46,943.47)        106

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 84,100.00          90,779.04           (488.43)               (6,679.04)           

Page 17 of 19



ACTIVITY FOR

2022-23 YTD BALANCE MONTH AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION  BUDGET 03/31/2023 03/31/2023 BALANCE USED

Fund 40 - DRUG FORFEITURE PD ACCOUNT

Revenues

Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

40-00-3164 DRUG FORFEITURE PD -                       2,808.16             -                       (2,808.16)           100

40-00-3410 INTEREST EARNED 10.00                  15.42                   3.37                     (5.42)                   154

Total Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND 10.00                  2,823.58             3.37                     (2,813.58)           28236

TOTAL REVENUES 10.00                  2,823.58             3.37                     (2,813.58)           28236

Expenditures

Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

40-00-5060 OPERATING EXPENSE -                       12,124.27           7,665.80             (12,124.27)         100

Total Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND -                       12,124.27           7,665.80             (12,124.27)         100

TOTAL EXPENDITURES -                       12,124.27           7,665.80             (12,124.27)         100

Fund 40 - DRUG FORFEITURE PD ACCOUNT:

TOTAL REVENUES 10.00                  2,823.58             3.37                     (2,813.58)           28236

TOTAL EXPENDITURES -                      12,124.27           7,665.80             (12,124.27)        100

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 10.00                  (9,300.69)           (7,662.43)           9,310.69            

Page 18 of 19



ACTIVITY FOR

2022-23 YTD BALANCE MONTH AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION  BUDGET 03/31/2023 03/31/2023 BALANCE USED

Fund 43 - POLICE PENSION FUND

Revenues

Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

43-00-3410 INTEREST EARNED -                       2,889.37             -                       (2,889.37)           100

43-00-3421 UNREALIZED GAIN/LOSS -                       160,138.95         -                       (160,138.95)      100

43-00-3490 EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 326,723.00        326,723.00         -                       -                      100

43-00-3491 EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS 76,045.00           234,462.76         -                       (158,417.76)      308

Total Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND 402,768.00        724,214.08         -                       (321,446.08)      180

TOTAL REVENUES 402,768.00        724,214.08         -                       (321,446.08)      180

Expenditures

Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

43-00-5030 RETIREE PENSION PAY -                       103,249.44         -                       (103,249.44)      100

43-00-5040 FICA -                       14,188.86           -                       (14,188.86)         100

43-00-5240 ACCOUNTING SERVICES -                       12,199.98           -                       (12,199.98)         100

43-00-5310 INSURANCE LIABILITY -                       3,887.00             -                       (3,887.00)           100

43-00-5321 PROFESSIONAL FEES 22,444.00           15,043.41           -                       7,400.59            67

43-00-5509 PENSION EXPENSES 168,000.00        -                       -                       168,000.00        0

43-00-5580 TRAINING EXPENSE -                       1,320.00             -                       (1,320.00)           100

Total Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND 190,444.00        149,888.69         -                       40,555.31          79

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 190,444.00        149,888.69         -                       40,555.31          79

Fund 43 - POLICE PENSION FUND:

TOTAL REVENUES 402,768.00        724,214.08        -                       (321,446.08)      180

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 190,444.00        149,888.69        -                       40,555.31          79

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 212,324.00        574,325.39        -                       (362,001.39)      

TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS 14,925,084.00  11,422,887.21   3,003.39             3,502,196.79    77

TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS 13,747,581.00  11,055,851.56   221,115.16        2,691,729.44    80

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 1,177,503.00     367,035.65        (218,111.77)       810,467.35       

Page 19 of 19



fi;;)\ Illinois Department
W of Tr'ansportation

Resolution for Maintenance 

Under the Illinois Highway Code 

Resolution Number Resolution T e 

I ._o_r _ig_in_a_l ___ _, 

Section Number 
I23-00000-00-GM 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of 
Governing Body Type Local Pub lic Agency Type 

Gilberts Illinois that there is hereby appropriated the sum of one hundred 
Name of Loca l Publ ic Agen cy 

twenty-five thousand Dollars ( $125,000.00 
--�------------------------------

0 f Motor Fuel Tax funds for the purpose of maintaining streets and highways under the applicable provisions of Illinois Highway Code from 

05/01 /23 to 04/30/24 ---.B=-e -g ,-
in....,ni -ng....,D"'""a...,.te-- --...,,E,_n ...,.,d i

-n g....,D"'""a....,t -e --

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that only those operations as listed and described on the approved Estimate of Maintenance Costs, 
including supplemental or revised estimates approved in connection with this resolution, are eligible for maintenance with Motor Fuel Tax 
funds during the period as specified above. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Village of Gilberts 
Local Pub lic Agency Type Name of Loca l Pub lic Agen cy 

shall submit within three months after the end of the maintenance period as stated above, to the Department of Transportation, on forms 
available from the Department, a certified statement showing expenditures and the balances remaining in the funds authorized for 
expenditure by the Department under this appropriation, and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk is hereby directed to transmit four ( 4) ceritified originals of this resolution to the district office 
of the Department of Transportation. 

I Kelly Mastera Village Clerk in and for said Village 
---------�N.,_,,a=m..,e�o�f =C=le�rk�------�----,-1, ru:;- al-:--ae.ub,--,--,!lli,,.....c--,..Ac=

g-.e.n.c'-y...I-,,,_,-y_;::;:��-----------_-�--�ce,....aL.e.u-�b.li�-ce..A-,...."g�en- c -y-.:D-y_p -.���---

of Gilberts in the State of Illinois, and keeper of the records and files thereof, as 
------�N -am_e ....,of,...,.L -o -ca..,..

I 
=P....,ub"""

li
_c.._A -ge-n -cy _____ _

provided by statute, do hereby certify the foregoing to be a true, perfect and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the 

President and Board of Trustees of Gilberts at a meeting held on 04/18/23 
Governing Body Type ------,N�a_m _e_ o�f�Lo_ c_a�

I P�u..,..b�
lic-A�g _e_n -cy_____ ---o-,at

,....
e--

1 N TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 18 day of 04/18/2023

(SEAL) 

Pr inted 03/22/23 

---,D...-a_ y__ Month, Yea r 

APPROVED 

Regional Engineer 

._I 

□

_

e

_

p

_

a

-

rtm

-

e

-

nt

_

o

_

f

_

T

-

ra

_

n

_

s

_

p

_

o

_

rta

-

t

-

io

_

n 

_______ __.l D 
BLR 14220 (Rev. 02/08/19) 

11-2023





Village of Gilberts 
Village Hall 

87 Galligan Road, Gilberts, Illinois 60136 
Ph. 847-428-2861      Fax: 847-428-2955 

www.villageofgilberts.com 
 

   
 

To: President Zambetti and the Board of Trustees 
From: Brian Bourdeau, Village Administrator 
 Taunya Fischer, Finance Director 
Date: April 18, 2023 Village Board Meeting 
Re: Items 6A – 6C: Fiscal Year Change and Adoption of the FYE 12/31/2023 Budget 
 
 
Included in the packet are the following budget related items: 
 

A) Public Hearing on the Fiscal Year Ending 12/31/2023 Budget 
 
B) Ordinance to Change the Village’s Fiscal Year 

 
• The Ordinance to change the fiscal year has two components. The first component is the addition 

of a section to our code that specified the Village’s fiscal year as January 1 – December 31. The 
second component is a clarification within the same Title of code relating to the position of Budget 
Officer for the Village. Section 2-6-2(A) provides for the Appointment; Term; Removal of the 
Budget Officer, “A budget officer shall be appointed by the village president, with the advice and 
consent of the board of trustees, for a one-year term expiring on April 30 of each year. Removal 
from office shall be in accordance with applicable state law and applicable contractual provisions, 
if any. The budget officer may concurrently hold another nonconflicting municipal office, either 
elected or appointed.” However, Section 2-6-2(F) provides “The village administrator shall serve 
as budget officer for the village, and is hereby designated and approved as budget officer for the 
village. The budget officer shall serve for a term commensurate with his/her term as village 
administrator. We are recommending the removal of Section 2-6-2(A) in order to provide clarity 
and remove conflicting sections of Village Code.  
 

C) The Fiscal Year Ending 12/31/2023 Budget 
 

• Based upon the March 21 Budget Discussion the following change was made to the budget: 
 

1. Addition of $150,000 in the Capital Fund for the purchase of a F-750 to replace the 2008 
F-550. This was one of the Public Works proposed vehicle purchases discussed. The 
interfund transfer from the General Fund to the Capital Fund was already accounted for 
in the draft budget and as such there is no change to the General Fund due to this item. 
This addition in the Capital Fund is the formal recognition of the expense in the Capital 
Fund; 

2. Minor adjustments in the General Fund to Professional Association Memberships to 
accurately reflect upcoming renewals; 

3. Addition of funds to provide sufficient funding for a FYE 12/31/2023 Merit Pool of 0 – 
2%.  
 

 
 



 
 
 

NOTICE OF A HYBRID PUBLIC HEARING 
On the Adoption of the 

Annual Budget Ordinance 
 for the 

Village of Gilberts 
 
  The Village President of the Village of Gilberts has determined that it is not 
practical or prudent to schedule an exclusively in-person meeting due to local trends 
in the COVID-19 pandemic, therefore, this meeting will be held in a hybrid format in 
accordance with Section 7(e) of the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 Notice is hereby given that the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Gilberts 
will hold a public hearing on the proposed Budget Ordinance for the Village of 
Gilberts for the Fiscal Year May 1, 2023 - December 31, 2023 on April 18, 2023 at 
7:00 p.m. at the Village of Gilberts, 87 Galligan Road, Gilberts, Illinois. Due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic, some or all of the members of the Village Board may 
participate in the hearing remotely. The public is encouraged to attend and 
participate in the public hearing remotely via the following zoom link: 
(https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82589743474) or via phone at (+1 312 626 6799) with the 
meeting ID of (825 8974 3474). Members of the public can also submit written 
comments via email at info@villageofgilberts.com. Any written comments received 
by 5:00 p.m. on April 18, 2023 will be submitted into the record of the meeting, but 
may not appear in their totality in the minutes. A copy of the proposed Budget has 
been available as of March 3, 2023 and is accessible for examination on the Village 
website at www.villageofgilberts.com in the Village Board Packet for the March 7, 
2023 board meeting section of the website or by appointment at Village Hall with 
Kelly Mastera between the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. Monday through Friday.   
 

Kelly Mastera 
 Village Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 

Published in The Daily Herald on _____________. 

mailto:info@villageofgilberts.com


Ordinance No. 03-2023 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

VILLAGE OF GILBERTS 
 

ORDINANCE 03-2023 
 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023 
BUDGET 

 
 WHEREAS, the Village of Gilberts, an Illinois municipal corporation organized and 
operating pursuant to the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/1-1-1, et seq. and all laws 
supplementary thereto; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Village determined that it was in the public interest to provide for the 
budget procedure and adopted such procedure by ordinance as established by law pursuant to 
Illinois Complied Statutes, 65 ILCS 5/8-2-9.1; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Budget Officer has compiled a budget for fiscal year end May 1 to 
December 31, 2023 as provided pursuant to Illinois Complies Statutes, 65 ILCS 5/8-2-9.3; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the corporate authorities have made the proposed May 1 to December 31, 
2023 Budget conveniently available for public inspection at least (10) days prior to the public 
hearing on the budget and copies have been made available; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notices of availability for public inspection of the budget and of the public 
hearing have been given at least ten (10) days prior to the time of the hearing by publication in the 
Daily Herald, a newspaper having general circulation in the municipality; and 
 
 WHEREAS, not less than one week after the publication of the tentative annual budget 
and prior to final action on the budget, the corporate authorities have held at least one (1) public 
hearing on the tentative annual budget, after which the budget may be further revised and passed 
without further inspection or notice of hearing.  
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF GILBERTS, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section One. The fiscal year May 1 to December 31, 2023 Annual Budget attached hereto 
and made a part hereof is hereby passed and adopted by a majority vote of the corporate authorities 
now holding office, including the President of the Board, which passage and approval is before 
the beginning of the fiscal year for May 1 to December 31, 2023. Passage of the May 1 to 
December 31, 2023 Annual Budget Ordinance shall be in lieu of an annual appropriation ordinance 
as required by 65 ILCS 5/8-2-9.1. 
 
 Section Two.  Severability. If any section, paragraph or provision of this ordinance shall 
be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the validity or unenforceability of such 
section, paragraph or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this ordinance. 
 



Ordinance No. 03-2023 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 Section Three. Repeal. All ordinances, resolutions, motions or parts thereof in conflict 
herewith shall be and the same are hereby repealed. 
 
 Section Four. Publication. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect forthwith upon 
its adoption, approval and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law. 
 
PASSED BY ROLL CALL VOTE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES of the Village of 
Gilberts, Kane County, Illinois, this ______day of ________, 2023. 

    Ayes  Nays  Absent  Abstain 
Trustee Dan Corbett  _____  _____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Dave LeClercq _____  _____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Justin Redfield _____  _____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Jeanne Allen  _____  _____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Lou Hacker               _____  _____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Brandon Coats _____  _____  _____  _____ 
 
 
     APPROVED THIS ____ DAY OF April, 2023 
 
 
                                   ___________________________________ 
     Village President, Guy Zambetti 
 (SEAL) 

 

 

ATTEST: _____________________________ 

Village Clerk, Kelly Mastera 

 

Published: _____________________________ 



04/14/2023 02:06 PM

User: TFISCHER

DB: Gilberts

Page: 1/20BUDGET REPORT FOR GILBERTS VILLAGE

2023-24

FINANCE REVIEW

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 01 GENERAL FUND

ESTIMATED REVENUES
Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

1,359,286 PROPERTY TAX01-00-3010
900 PERSONAL PROPERTY REPL TAX01-00-3020

336,000 TAX-SALES01-00-3030
800,000 TAX-STATE INCOME01-00-3040
206,000 STATE LOCAL USE TAX01-00-3041
13,250 CANNABIS USE TAX01-00-3043
13,900 LICENSE-LIQUOR01-00-3060

900 PULLTABS & JAR GAMES TAX01-00-3090
3,800 FEE-BUSINESS REGISTRATION01-00-3100
36,700 FEE-CABLE FRANCHISE01-00-3110
113,400 UTIL TAX-ELECTRIC01-00-3140
67,000 ULT TAX-GAS01-00-3150
40,000 ULIT TAX-COMMUNICATIONS01-00-3180
5,000 MISCELLANEOUS INCOME01-00-3210
11,400 FINES-COURT01-00-3220
2,000 FINES-OTHER01-00-3230
78,000 FEES-BUILDING PERMITS01-00-3250
1,500 OVERWT/SIZE PERMIT FEE01-00-3260
5,000 BUILDING ENGINEERING FEES01-00-3280
500 PARK PAVILION RENTAL01-00-3330

34,000 INTEREST EARNED01-00-3410
26,480 PARK IMPACT FEES01-00-3440

135 GILBERTS POLICE REPORT REQUEST01-00-3451
10,000 MUNICIPAL UTILITY IMPACT FEE01-00-3460
45,072 ANTENNA RENTAL01-00-3480
6,256 GRANT REVENUE01-00-3500

60 RAFFLE LICENSE01-00-3540
400 GARBAGE HAULER LICENSE01-00-3560

104,000 VIDEO GAMING01-00-3580
55,000 MUNICIPAL IMPACT FEE01-00-3630
1,000 TRANSFERS IN01-00-8100

3,376,939   Totals for dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

Dept 07 - ENHANCED DUI PROGRAM
2,000 ENHANCED DUI - VEHICLE SEIZURE01-07-3017

2,000   Totals for dept 07 - ENHANCED DUI PROGRAM

Dept 08 - GARBAGE HAULING
534,000 GARBAGE REVENUE01-08-3018
26,700 FRANCHISE REVENUE -GARBAGE01-08-3028
3,000 LATE FEES01-08-3080

563,700   Totals for dept 08 - GARBAGE HAULING

3,942,639 TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES



04/14/2023 02:06 PM

User: TFISCHER

DB: Gilberts

Page: 2/20BUDGET REPORT FOR GILBERTS VILLAGE

2023-24

FINANCE REVIEW

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 01 GENERAL FUND

APPROPRIATIONS
Dept 01 - ADMINISTRATIVE

16,000 WAGES-BOARD01-01-5010
2,100 WAGES-PLANNING AND ZBA01-01-5020

225,286 WAGES-GENERAL01-01-5030
6,708 FICA01-01-5040
3,529 MEDICARE01-01-5050
22,000 STATE UNEMPL TAX 01-01-5051
23,948 IMRF 01-01-5052
31,936 GROUP HEALTH INS 01-01-5054
42,000 WORKER'S COMP INS 01-01-5056
3,500 OPERATING EXPENSE01-01-5060
7,785 DUES01-01-5070
1,600 LEGAL NOTICES01-01-5080
13,260 COMMUNICATIONS01-01-5090
2,300 POSTAGE01-01-5100
7,400 PRINTING01-01-5110
5,500 COMMUNITY RELATIONS01-01-5150
3,441 RENTAL-EQUIPMENT01-01-5190
2,667 OFFICE SUPPLIES01-01-5200
900 NISRA EXPENSE01-01-5210

50,000 LEGAL EXPENSE01-01-5230
48,000 ACCOUNTING SERVICES01-01-5240

175 BANK FEES01-01-5270
48,000 INSURANCE LIABILITY01-01-5310
11,000 INSURANCE VEHICLES & EQUIP.01-01-5320
25,800 ENGINEERING SERVICES01-01-5360

600 MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT01-01-5400
4,000 MAINTENANCE BUILDING01-01-5410
62,757 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES01-01-5450
8,500 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT01-01-5480
3,000 EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT01-01-5491
40,000 VILLAGE PLANNER SERVICES01-01-5560
24,105 TRAINING EXPENSE01-01-5580
30,000 73 INDUSTRIAL PRINCIPAL01-01-5661
15,000 73 INDUSTRIAL INTEREST01-01-5671
1,050 TRANSFERS OUT01-01-8500

793,847   Totals for dept 01 - ADMINISTRATIVE

Dept 02 - POLICE
650,812 WAGES-POLICE01-02-5030
17,308 WAGES - HOLIDAY WORKED01-02-5031
11,819 WAGES - OVERTIME 01-02-5032
39,633 FICA01-02-5040
9,269 MEDICARE01-02-5050
3,484 IMRF 01-02-5052

108,290 GROUP HEALTH INS 01-02-5054
11,800 UNIFORMS 01-02-5058
2,834 OPERATING EXPENSE01-02-5060
3,460 DUES01-02-5070
6,173 COMMUNICATIONS01-02-5090
1,000 PRINTING01-02-5110
150 PUBLICATIONS/BROCHURES01-02-5170
750 SMALL TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT01-02-5180

2,235 RENTAL-EQUIPMENT01-02-5190
1,667 OFFICE SUPPLIES01-02-5200
3,667 LEGAL EXPENSE01-02-5230
95,000 DISPATCHING01-02-5300
18,700 GASOLINE01-02-5370
17,470 MAINTENANCE VEHICLES01-02-5390
2,000 MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT01-02-5400
13,950 MAINTENANCE BUILDING01-02-5410
12,445 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES01-02-5450
1,400 COMMUNITY RELATIONS01-02-5570
8,950 TRAINING EXPENSE01-02-5580
40,100 TRANSFERS OUT-POLICE01-02-8500

1,084,366   Totals for dept 02 - POLICE

Dept 03 - PUBLIC WORKS
178,177 WAGES-PPW01-03-5030
11,040 WAGES - OVERTIME 01-03-5032
11,580 FICA01-03-5040
2,709 MEDICARE01-03-5050
19,854 IMRF 01-03-5052
21,776 GROUP HEALTH INS 01-03-5054
2,400 UNIFORMS 01-03-5058
2,435 OPERATING EXPENSE01-03-5060
382 DUES01-03-5070



04/14/2023 02:06 PM

User: TFISCHER

DB: Gilberts

Page: 3/20BUDGET REPORT FOR GILBERTS VILLAGE

2023-24

FINANCE REVIEW

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 01 GENERAL FUND

APPROPRIATIONS
Dept 03 - PUBLIC WORKS

1,460 COMMUNICATIONS01-03-5090
7,400 SMALL TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT01-03-5180
2,000 RENTAL-EQUIPMENT01-03-5190
1,000 NPDES PERMITS01-03-5251
25,400 STREETLIGHTING01-03-5260
12,000 GASOLINE01-03-5370
12,500 SIGNS EXPENSE01-03-5380
17,800 MAINTENANCE VEHICLES01-03-5390
10,000 MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT01-03-5400
8,000 MAINTENANCE BUILDING01-03-5410
17,000 MAINTENANCE STREETS01-03-5420
6,000 MAINTENANCE GROUNDS01-03-5440
2,500 TREE/SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT01-03-5441
40,485 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES01-03-5450
2,500 WEATHER SIREN MAINTENANCE01-03-5461
21,000 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT01-03-5480
3,800 TRAINING EXPENSE01-03-5580

265,000 TRANSFERS OUT01-03-8500

706,198   Totals for dept 03 - PUBLIC WORKS

Dept 04 - BUILDING
33,719 WAGES-BUILDING01-04-5030
2,091 FICA01-04-5040
489 MEDICARE01-04-5050

3,584 IMRF 01-04-5052
28 GROUP HEALTH INS 01-04-5054
186 DUES01-04-5070
360 COMMUNICATIONS01-04-5090
700 OFFICE SUPPLIES01-04-5200

80,000 BUILDING PERMIT EXPENSE01-04-5250
12,500 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES01-04-5450

500 TRAINING EXPENSE01-04-5580

134,157   Totals for dept 04 - BUILDING

Dept 06 - PARKS
25,066 REG WAGES01-06-5030
1,554 FICA01-06-5040
363 MEDICARE01-06-5050

2,665 IMRF 01-06-5052
500 OPERATING EXPENSE01-06-5060

2,700 COMMUNICATIONS01-06-5090
4,200 UTILITIES01-06-5120
3,000 RENTAL-EQUIPMENT01-06-5190
1,700 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES01-06-5211
500 MINOR PARK PROJECTS01-06-5350

1,000 GASOLINE01-06-5370
11,000 MAINTENANCE-SPORTS/PLAYGROUND  EQ01-06-5391
2,000 MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT01-06-5400
10,500 MAINTENANCE BUILDING01-06-5410
21,000 MAINTENANCE GROUNDS01-06-5440
9,800 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES01-06-5450
35,000 TRANSFERS OUT-PARKS01-06-8500

132,548   Totals for dept 06 - PARKS

Dept 08 - GARBAGE HAULING
472,000 GARBAGE HAULING EXPENSE01-08-5068

472,000   Totals for dept 08 - GARBAGE HAULING

Dept 89 - GPD DOWN STATE PENSION FUND
253,913 GPD DOWNSTATE PENSION FUND01-89-5621

253,913   Totals for dept 89 - GPD DOWN STATE PENSION FUND

3,577,029 TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

ENDING FUND BALANCE
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

365,610 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 01



04/14/2023 02:06 PM

User: TFISCHER

DB: Gilberts

Page: 4/20BUDGET REPORT FOR GILBERTS VILLAGE

2023-24

FINANCE REVIEW

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 11 COMMUNITY DAYS

ESTIMATED REVENUES
Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

14,000 COMMUNITY DAYS DONATIONS11-00-3015
17,000 OTHER INCOME11-00-3210
8,500 PLANNED USE OF FUND RESERVES11-00-3211
3,500 VENDOR FEES11-00-3520
12,000 VIDEO GAMING LICENSE11-00-3590
17,500 BEVERAGE SALES11-00-3980
1,050 TRANSFERS IN11-00-8100

73,550   Totals for dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

73,550 TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES



04/14/2023 02:06 PM

User: TFISCHER

DB: Gilberts

Page: 5/20BUDGET REPORT FOR GILBERTS VILLAGE

2023-24

FINANCE REVIEW

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 11 COMMUNITY DAYS

APPROPRIATIONS
Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

12,860 BEVERAGE OPERATIONS11-00-5060
70 PERMITS & LICENSES11-00-5070

3,420 ADVERTISING / MARKETING11-00-5079
410 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES11-00-5130

39,700 ENTERTAINMENT11-00-5159
5,200 LABOR & OUTSIDE SERVICES11-00-5213
5,650 EQUIPMENT & SERVICES11-00-5610

67,310   Totals for dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

67,310 TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

ENDING FUND BALANCE
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

6,240 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 11



04/14/2023 02:06 PM

User: TFISCHER

DB: Gilberts

Page: 6/20BUDGET REPORT FOR GILBERTS VILLAGE

2023-24

FINANCE REVIEW

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 12 INFRASTRUCTURE FUND

ESTIMATED REVENUES
Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

320,000 NON HOME RULE 1% SALES TAX12-00-3031
9,000 TAX-ROAD AND BRIDGE12-00-3050

1,050,000 PLANNED USE OF FUND RESERVES12-00-3211
13,500 SSA#24 BOND INTEREST12-00-3390
1,200 INTEREST EARNED12-00-3410

1,393,700   Totals for dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

1,393,700 TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES



04/14/2023 02:06 PM

User: TFISCHER

DB: Gilberts

Page: 7/20BUDGET REPORT FOR GILBERTS VILLAGE

2023-24

FINANCE REVIEW

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 12 INFRASTRUCTURE FUND

APPROPRIATIONS
Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

1,050,000 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT12-00-5480
245,000 GO BOND PRINCIPAL12-00-5490
77,500 GO BOND INTEREST12-00-5491

1,372,500   Totals for dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

1,372,500 TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

ENDING FUND BALANCE
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

21,200 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 12



04/14/2023 02:06 PM

User: TFISCHER

DB: Gilberts

Page: 8/20BUDGET REPORT FOR GILBERTS VILLAGE

2023-24

FINANCE REVIEW

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 15 CAPITAL PROJECTS

ESTIMATED REVENUES
Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

340,100 TRANSFERS IN15-00-8100

340,100   Totals for dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

340,100 TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES



04/14/2023 02:06 PM

User: TFISCHER

DB: Gilberts

Page: 9/20BUDGET REPORT FOR GILBERTS VILLAGE

2023-24

FINANCE REVIEW

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 15 CAPITAL PROJECTS

APPROPRIATIONS
Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

150,000 CAPITAL PROJECTS15-00-5481

150,000   Totals for dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

150,000 TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

ENDING FUND BALANCE
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

190,100 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 15



04/14/2023 02:06 PM

User: TFISCHER

DB: Gilberts

Page: 10/20BUDGET REPORT FOR GILBERTS VILLAGE

2023-24

FINANCE REVIEW

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 20 WATER SYSTEM

ESTIMATED REVENUES
Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

500,000 INCOME - WASTEWATER20-00-3022
567,000 INCOME -  WATER20-00-3032
13,400 LATE FEES20-00-3080
417,751 PLANNED USE OF FUND RESERVES20-00-3211
1,700 FEE-TAP-ON - WATER20-00-3310
1,000 FEE-TAP-ON SEWER20-00-3320
8,000 METER SALES20-00-3360
13,500 SSA#24 BOND INTEREST20-00-3390
20,000 INTEREST EARNED20-00-3410

1,542,351   Totals for dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

1,542,351 TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES



04/14/2023 02:06 PM

User: TFISCHER

DB: Gilberts

Page: 11/20BUDGET REPORT FOR GILBERTS VILLAGE

2023-24

FINANCE REVIEW

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 20 WATER SYSTEM

APPROPRIATIONS
Dept 10 - WATER SYSTEMS

150,084 REG. WAGES20-10-5030
9,250 FICA20-10-5040
2,163 MEDICARE20-10-5050
29,952 IMRF 20-10-5052
25,806 GROUP HEALTH INS 20-10-5054
18,000 WORKER'S COMP INS 20-10-5056
1,800 UNIFORMS 20-10-5058
900 DUES20-10-5070
100 LEGAL NOTICES20-10-5080

5,950 COMMUNICATIONS20-10-5090
2,900 POSTAGE20-10-5100
3,100 PRINTING20-10-5110
60,000 UTILITIES20-10-5120
5,500 SMALL TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT20-10-5180
2,620 RENTAL-EQUIPMENT20-10-5190
700 OFFICE SUPPLIES20-10-5200

3,400 OUTSIDE SERVICES20-10-5213
6,500 LAB SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT20-10-5262
70,000 CHEMICALS20-10-5281

250 MAINT SUPPLIES-JANTORIAL20-10-5301
31,000 INSURANCE LIABILITY20-10-5310
6,000 INSURANCE VEHICLES & EQUIP.20-10-5320
10,000 ENGINEERING SERVICES20-10-5360
4,700 GASOLINE20-10-5370
6,700 MAINTENANCE PARTS & MATERIALS20-10-5381
3,400 MAINTENANCE VEHICLES20-10-5390
8,000 MAINTENANCE BUILDING20-10-5410
1,700 HYDRANT MAINTENANCE20-10-5431
25,960 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES20-10-5450
370,000 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT20-10-5480
24,000 WATER METERS20-10-5510
55,000 LABORATORY TESTING20-10-5520
4,000 TRAINING EXPENSE20-10-5580
7,000 REPAIRS-WATER DISTRIBUTION SYS.20-10-5601
34,000 BRINE HAULING EXPENSES20-10-5652
25,826 IEPA LOAN-PRINCIPAL20-10-5662
7,156 IEPA LOAN - INTEREST20-10-5672

1,023,417   Totals for dept 10 - WATER SYSTEMS

Dept 20 - WASTEWATER SYSTEMS
127,912 WAGES20-20-5030
7,817 FICA20-20-5040
1,828 MEDICARE20-20-5050
13,402 IMRF 20-20-5052
15,511 GROUP HEALTH INS 20-20-5054
1,600 UNIFORMS 20-20-5058
4,050 COMMUNICATIONS20-20-5090
2,900 POSTAGE20-20-5100
2,100 PRINTING20-20-5110
94,000 UTILITIES20-20-5120
5,500 SMALL TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT20-20-5180
2,620 RENTAL-EQUIPMENT20-20-5190
700 OFFICE SUPPLIES20-20-5200

30,000 OUTSIDE SERVICES20-20-5213
20,000 NPDES PERMITS20-20-5251
5,600 LAB SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT20-20-5262
42,000 CHEMICALS20-20-5281

250 MAINT SUPPLIES-JANITORIAL20-20-5301
7,000 ENGINEERING SERVICES20-20-5360
5,000 GASOLINE20-20-5370
10,000 MAINTENANCE PARTS & MATERIALS20-20-5381
3,400 MAINTENANCE VEHICLES20-20-5390
7,000 MAINTENANCE BUILDING20-20-5410
69,744 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES20-20-5450
20,000 LABORATORY TESTING20-20-5520
2,000 TRAINING EXPENSE20-20-5580
7,000 REPAIRS-W/WATER COLLECTION SYS.20-20-5602
10,000 COLLECTION SYS. PUMP MAINT.20-20-5660

518,934   Totals for dept 20 - WASTEWATER SYSTEMS

1,542,351 TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

ENDING FUND BALANCE
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 20



04/14/2023 02:06 PM

User: TFISCHER

DB: Gilberts

Page: 12/20BUDGET REPORT FOR GILBERTS VILLAGE

2023-24

FINANCE REVIEW

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 30 MFT

ESTIMATED REVENUES
Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

453,353 PLANNED USE OF FUND RESERVES30-00-3211
15,000 INTEREST EARNED30-00-3410
212,544 MOTOR FUEL TAX30-00-3450

680,897   Totals for dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

680,897 TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES



04/14/2023 02:06 PM

User: TFISCHER

DB: Gilberts

Page: 13/20BUDGET REPORT FOR GILBERTS VILLAGE

2023-24

FINANCE REVIEW

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 30 MFT

APPROPRIATIONS
Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

125,000 MFT RESOLUTION30-00-5462
453,353 MFT - REBUILD IL30-00-5463

578,353   Totals for dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

578,353 TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

ENDING FUND BALANCE
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

102,544 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 30



04/14/2023 02:06 PM

User: TFISCHER

DB: Gilberts

Page: 14/20BUDGET REPORT FOR GILBERTS VILLAGE

2023-24

FINANCE REVIEW

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 34 TIF#1 CENTRAL REDEVELOPMENT

ESTIMATED REVENUES
Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

316,779 PROPERTY TAX34-00-3010
500 INTEREST EARNED34-00-3410

317,279   Totals for dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

317,279 TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES



04/14/2023 02:06 PM

User: TFISCHER

DB: Gilberts

Page: 15/20BUDGET REPORT FOR GILBERTS VILLAGE

2023-24

FINANCE REVIEW

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 34 TIF#1 CENTRAL REDEVELOPMENT

APPROPRIATIONS
Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

1,000 ADMINISTRATIVE FEES34-00-5061
100,000 FACADE GRANT 34-00-5074

101,000   Totals for dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

101,000 TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

ENDING FUND BALANCE
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

216,279 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 34



04/14/2023 02:06 PM

User: TFISCHER

DB: Gilberts

Page: 16/20BUDGET REPORT FOR GILBERTS VILLAGE

2023-24

FINANCE REVIEW

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 35 TIF#2 HIGGINS ROAD IND. PARK

ESTIMATED REVENUES
Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

943,578 PROPERTY TAX35-00-3010
650 INTEREST EARNED35-00-3410

944,228   Totals for dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

944,228 TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES



04/14/2023 02:06 PM

User: TFISCHER

DB: Gilberts

Page: 17/20BUDGET REPORT FOR GILBERTS VILLAGE

2023-24

FINANCE REVIEW

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 35 TIF#2 HIGGINS ROAD IND. PARK

APPROPRIATIONS
Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

5,550 ADMINISTRATIVE FEES35-00-5061
263,262 TIF NOTE INTEREST35-00-5071
546,738 TIF NOTE PRINCIPAL35-00-5081

815,550   Totals for dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

815,550 TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

ENDING FUND BALANCE
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

128,678 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 35



04/14/2023 02:06 PM

User: TFISCHER

DB: Gilberts

Page: 18/20BUDGET REPORT FOR GILBERTS VILLAGE

2023-24

FINANCE REVIEW

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 40 DRUG FORFEITURE PD ACCOUNT

ESTIMATED REVENUES
Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

15 INTEREST EARNED40-00-3410

15   Totals for dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

15 TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

ENDING FUND BALANCE
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

15 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 40



04/14/2023 02:06 PM

User: TFISCHER

DB: Gilberts

Page: 19/20BUDGET REPORT FOR GILBERTS VILLAGE

2023-24

FINANCE REVIEW

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 43 POLICE PENSION FUND

ESTIMATED REVENUES
Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

253,913 EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS43-00-3490
50,000 EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS43-00-3491

303,913   Totals for dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

303,913 TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES



04/14/2023 02:06 PM

User: TFISCHER

DB: Gilberts

Page: 20/20BUDGET REPORT FOR GILBERTS VILLAGE

2023-24

FINANCE REVIEW

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 43 POLICE PENSION FUND

APPROPRIATIONS
Dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

10,000 PROFESSIONAL FEES43-00-5321
114,000 PENSION EXPENSES43-00-5509

124,000   Totals for dept 00 - GENERAL FUND

124,000 TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

ENDING FUND BALANCE
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

179,913 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 43

ENDING FUND BALANCE - ALL FUNDS
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - ALL FUNDS

8,328,093 APPROPRIATIONS - ALL FUNDS
9,538,672 ESTIMATED REVENUES - ALL FUNDS

1,210,579 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - ALL FUNDS



STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
   ) SS 
COUNTY OF KANE ) 
 

 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF BUDGET & ESTIMATED REVENUES 
 
 
 
I, the undersigned, duly appointed, qualified and acting Finance Director of the Village of Gilberts, 

Kane County, Illinois, do hereby certify that the attached is a true and correct copy of the Budget 

and Estimated Revenues of said Village of Gilberts for the fiscal year beginning May 1, 2023, as 

adopted on April 18, 2023. 

 

 

(SEAL)    Date: __________________ 

 

     _________________________________________ 
     Taunya Fischer, Finance Director 
 
 
 



Village of Gilberts 
Village Hall: 87 Galligan Road, Gilberts, Illinois 60136 

Ph. 847-428-2861      Fax: 847-428-2955 
www.villageofgilberts.com 

Finance & Building Departments  Police Department 
Public Works Facility – Utility Billing  86 Railroad Street 
73 Industrial Drive, Gilberts, IL 60136  Gilberts, IL 60136 
Ph: 847-428-2861  Fax: 847-551-3382  Ph: 847-428-2861  Fax: 847-428-4232 

To: Village President and Board of Trustees 
From: Brian Bourdeau, Village Administrator 
 Taunya Fischer, Finance Director 
Date: Apr 18, 2023 Village Board Meeting 
Re: Item 6.D: Budget Amendment #2 Fiscal Year 04-30-2023 Budget. 
 

Background 
 
As of March 31,2023, the General Fund has a positive fund balance of $1,399,471. With this 
sizable balance and ample fund balance in the General Fund, staff feels it would be prudent to 
move $1,000,000 of these funds into the Infrastructure and Capital Projects funds for future use. 
The recommended transfer is $250,000 to the Infrastructure (Road) Fund and $750,000 to the 
Capital Projects Fund. The following three accounts will be affected with this amendment.  
 

FY 2023 Budget Amendment #2 
Description Account #  Old Amount   New Amount  Reason 
Transfers Out 01-01-8500    784,900.00    1,000,900.00  Fund Balance Transfers 
Transfers In 12-00-8100                  -         250,000.00  Fund Balance Transfers 
Transfers In 15-00-8100                  -         750,000.00  Fund Balance Transfers 

 
For account 01-01-8500; $784,900 was initially included in the budget, however, only $900 has 
been transferred out (Community Days Stage Manager) and the remaining $784,000 will not be. 
The $784,000 is ARPA Funds; however, the Auditors have advised the Village of the preferred 
manner for recognizing this particular grant on the Village’s general ledger. Rather than adding 
the $1,000,000 to the original amount, the corrected amount of $1,000,900 will be entered.  
 
 



Ordinance No. 04-2023 
 

                                               
VILLAGE OF GILBERTS 

                                                                                                  
ORDINANCE 04-2023 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2023 BUDGET FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING APRIL 30, 2023  
  

WHEREAS, the Village of Gilberts, an Illinois municipal corporation (the 
“Village”), situated in Kane County, Illinois, as contemplated under ILCS section 65 of the 
Illinois State Statues, and the passage of this Ordinance constitutes and exercise of the 
Village powers and functions as granted in the Constitution of the State of Illinois; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Village of Gilberts acting by and through its President and Board 
of Trustees has previously approved the Budget Ordinance for the Fiscal Year Ending April 
30, 2023 as a part of Ordinance 07-2022; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is necessary and appropriate to delete, add to, or otherwise change 
certain line items in said Budget Ordinance as provided in this Ordinance; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of 
Trustees of the Village of Gilberts, Kane County, Illinois, as follows: 
 
 Section 1:  That the amendments to the Budget Ordinance for the Fiscal Year 
Ending April 30, 2023 are as follows: 
 
Description Account #    New Budget  
Transfers Out 01-01-8500  is amended to    1,000,900.00  
Transfers In 12-00-8100  is amended to       250,000.00  
Transfers In 15-00-8100  is amended to       750,000.00  

 
  

Section 2. Severability. If any section, paragraph or provision of this ordinance 
shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the validity of unenforceability 
of such section, paragraph or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of 
this ordinance. 
 
 Section 3. Repeal. All ordinances, resolutions, motions or parts thereof in conflict 
herewith shall be and the same are hereby repealed. 
 
 Section 4. Publication. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect forthwith 
upon its adoption, approval and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law. 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance No. 04-2023 
 

 
PASSED BY ROLL CALL VOTE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES of the Village 
of Gilberts, Kane County, Illinois, this ______day of ________, 2023. 
 
 
    Ayes  Nays  Absent  Abstain 
 
Trustee Jeanne Allen  ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Brandon Coats ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Dan Corbett  ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Lou Hacker  ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee David LeClerq ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Justin Redfield ____  ____  _____  _____ 
President Guy Zambetti ____  ____  _____  _____ 
     
    APPROVED this ________ day of __________, 2023 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
      ____________________________ 
      Village President Guy Zambetti 
 
 
 
ATTEST: _________________________ 
  Kelly Mastera, Village Clerk 
 
Published:     _________________________ 
 



Village of Gilberts 
Village Hall 

87 Galligan Road, Gilberts, Illinois 60136 
Ph. 847-428-2861      Fax: 847-428-2955 

www.villageofgilberts.com 
 

1 
 

To: President Zambetti & Board of Trustees. 
From: Riley Lynch, Management Analyst 
Cc: Brian Bourdeau, Village Administrator 
Date: April 18, 2023 Village Board Meeting  
Re: Items 6.E, 6.F, 6.G. – A Public Hearing, Annexation Agreement Amendment, and 

Variance Requests related to Wall Sign Regulations and Red Barn Animal 
Hospital. (Ordinances 05-2023 & 06-2023) 

Summary: 

Red Barn Holdings, LLC is requesting an amendment to the GTC Annexation Agreement and 
zoning variances to allow (1) a wall sign to be installed that does not face an adjacent street, and 
to allow (2) wall signs to protrude higher than 20ft.  

Background: 

Red Barn Holdings, LLC (“Applicant”) 
owns the property known as Unit 1A of 
Gilberts Town Center situated between 
Higgins Road, Center Drive, and Rollyn 
L. Anderson Lane (PIN: 02-24-155-003). 

On April 4th 2022, the Applicant received 
approval of a special use permit to 
operate an animal hospital on this 
property. Since then, construction on the 
main building has progressed and the 
Applicant hopes to open for business at 
this location soon. With the majority of 
the primary structure’s construction complete or nearing completion, the Applicant is looking to 
install 2 face-lit illuminated wall signs to help identify their business (See figures 2 & 3). 

However, the Gilberts Town Center (GTC) Annexation Agreement limits signs to go no higher 
than 20ft. The Village’s UDO has the same restrictions. In order to proceed with the signs as 
proposed, the Applicant is requesting an amendment to the GTC Annexation Agreement and 
zoning variances to allow a wall sign that does not face an adjacent street, and to allow the 2 wall 
signs to protrude higher than 20ft.  

Plan Commission & Public Hearing: 

On April 12th, the Plan Commission held a public hearing to review the Applicant’s zoning relief 
requests. During the hearing the Plan Commission raised questions about the location and height 
of the wall signs. The Applicant specified that the location and height of the signs are necessary 
for visibility, and to avoid obstructing the windows which provide natural light for the reception 
area and rear offices. After the public hearing and sufficient deliberation, the Plan Commission 
passed a unanimous recommendation to the Board that the variances be approved as requested. 

Figure 1 - GIS Snapshot of Red Barn's Property 



April 18th, 2023 Board of Trustees Meeting 

2 
 

 

Attachments: 

• Exhibit 1 – Ordinance 05-2023 Approving A Fourth Amendment to The Annexation and 
Development Agreement for Gilberts Town Center 

• Exhibit 2 – April 12th Plan Commission Packet Material – Red Barn 
• Exhibit 3 – Ordinance 06-2023 Authorizing Variances 

 

Figure 3 – Proposed West-Side Wall Sign 

Figure 2 – Proposed East-Side Wall Sign 



ORDINANCE NO. 05-2023 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FOURTH AMENDMENT TO THE ANNEXATION 
AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR GILBERTS TOWN CENTER 

 
WHEREAS, the Village of Gilberts Board of Trustees and certain other parties entered 

into that certain Annexation Agreement and Development Agreement dated April 27, 2005, and 
recorded on June 13, 2005, in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds of Kane County, Illinois as Doc. 
No. 2005K066197 (“Original Annexation Agreement”), for various parcels of land as described 
in the Original Annexation Agreement as Gilberts Town Center; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Original Annexation Agreement was later amended by the First 

Amendment, dated December 13, 2011, and recorded on January 10, 2012, in the office of the 
Recorder of Deeds of Kane County, Illinois as Doc. No. 2012K001801 (the “First Amendment”); 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Original Annexation Agreement and the First Amendment were later 

amended by the Second Amendment, dated December 20, 2016, and recorded on January 3, 2017, 
in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds of Kane County, Illinois as Doc. No. 2017K000143 (the 
“Second Amendment”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Original Annexation Agreement, the First Amendment, and the Second 

Amendment were later amended by the Third Amendment, dated July 16, 2019, and recorded on 
July 23, 2019, in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds of Kane County, Illinois as Doc. No. 
2019K032306 (the “Third Amendment”) (the Original Annexation Agreement, the First 
Amendment, the Second Amendment, and the Third Amendment shall collectively be referred to 
as the “Annexation Agreement”); and 

 
WHEREAS, Red Barn Holdings, LLC (“Owner”), is the legal title holder of the parcel of 

land referred to in the Annexation Agreement as Commercial Parcel A and commonly known as 
Unit 1A of Gilberts Town Center, as more specifically described on the attached Exhibit A (the 
“Subject Property”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the development and use of the Subject Property is governed by the 

Annexation Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Owner has proposed certain modifications to the Annexation Agreement 

relating to the height requirements for wall signs on the Subject Property (the “Fourth 
Amendment”), and has applied for variances from the Gilberts Unified Development Ordinance 
(“UDO”) relating to the UDO’s wall sign requirements for the Subject Property; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Village Plan Commission held a public hearing on the Owner’s requested 

variances from the UDO on April 12, 2023, and has recommended approval of the Owner’s 
requested variances to the Corporate Authorities; and  



WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village will consider the adoption of a 
separate ordinance approving the Owner’s requested variances from the UDO immediately after 
the consideration of the proposed Fourth Amendment to the Annexation Agreement; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Fourth Amendment was submitted pursuant to applicable provisions of 

Illinois Municipal Code to the Corporate Authorities of the Village and a public hearing on the 
Fourth Amendment was held before the Corporate Authorities on April 18, 2023, pursuant to 
proper notice as provided by statute; and 

 
WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees find that amending the Annexation 

Agreement is in the best interests of the Village and its residents, as set forth in the Fourth 
Amendment attached to this Ordinance as Exhibit B.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES of the Village of Gilberts, Kane County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1.  Recitals. The recitals set forth above are hereby incorporated into and made a 
part of this Ordinance as though set forth in this Section 1. 
 
Section 2. Approval; Authorization.  The Fourth Amendment to the Annexation Agreement is 
hereby approved in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit B.  The Village President 
and Village Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute and attest, respectively, the Fourth 
Amendment on behalf of the Village following the delivery of the executed Fourth Amendment 
by Red Barn Holdings, LLC. The Village Clerk is also authorized and directed to record this 
Ordinance and Fourth Amendment with the Office of the Kane County Recorder of Deeds. 
 
Section 3.  Continued Effect.  Except as expressly modified by the adoption of this Ordinance 
and the First, Second, and Third Amendments, the Annexation Agreement shall remain in full 
force and effect to govern the development and use of Gilberts Town Center and the Subject 
Property.  
 
Section 4. Severability.  In the event a court of competent jurisdiction finds this 
ordinance or any provision hereof to be invalid or unenforceable as applied, such finding shall 
not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this ordinance and the application 
thereof to the greatest extent permitted by law. 
 
Section 5.  Repeal and Saving Clause.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed; provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall 
affect any rights, actions, or cause of action which shall have accrued to the Village of 
Gilberts prior to the effective date of this ordinances. 
 
Section 6.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its approval 
in the manner provided by law. 
 
 



PASSED BY VOTE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES of the Village of Gilberts, Kane 
County, Illinois, this ____ day of __________2023. 
 
    Ayes  Nays  Absent  Abstain 
Trustee Jeanne Allen  ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Dan Corbett  ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Lou Hacker  ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Brandon Coats ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Justin Redfield ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee David LeClercq Sr. ____  ____  _____  _____ 
President Guy Zambetti ____  ____  _____  _____ 
     
    APPROVED this ________ day of __________, 2023. 
 
(SEAL) 
      ____________________________ 
      Village President Guy Zambetti 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: ___________________________  
  Village Clerk, Kelly Mastera 
 

 



EXHIBIT A 

Description of the Subject Property 

 

 

PIN:   02-24-155-003 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT B 

Fourth Amendment to the Annexation and Development 
Agreement for Gilberts Town Center 

 



1 
 

THIS INSTRUMENT PREPARED  
BY AND RETURN TO: 
 
Kurt S. Asprooth 
Ancel Glink, P.C.  
140 S. Dearborn Street, 6th Floor 
Chicago, IL 60603 
 
 
 

FOURTH AMENDMENT TO THE 
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

FOR GILBERTS TOWN CENTER 
 

 THIS FOURTH AMENDMENT TO THE ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT FOR GILBERTS TOWN CENTER (“Fourth Amendment”), dated ________, 
2023, by and among THE VILLAGE OF GILBERTS, an Illinois municipal corporation of Kane 
County, Illinois (the “Village”) and Red Barn Holdings, LLC (“Owner”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Village and certain other parties entered into that certain Annexation 
Agreement and Development Agreement dated April 27, 2005, and recorded on June 13, 2005, in 
the Office of the Recorder of Deeds of Kane County, Illinois as Doc. No. 2005K066197 (“Original 
Annexation Agreement”), for various parcels of land as described in the Original Annexation 
Agreement as Gilberts Town Center; and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 31 of the Original Annexation Agreement, the Parties, 

and/or their respective successors and assigns, as the case may be, reserved the right, by mutual 
consent, to agree in writing to amend the terms and conditions of the Original Annexation 
Agreement, provided, however, that only the legal title holder of the property subject to the 
proposed amendment is required to execute an amendment to the Agreement; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Original Annexation Agreement was later amended by the First 

Amendment, dated December 13, 2011, and recorded on January 10, 2012, in the office of the 
Recorder of Deeds of Kane County, Illinois as Doc. No. 2012K001801 (the “First Amendment”); 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Original Annexation Agreement and the First Amendment were later 

amended by the Second Amendment, dated December 20, 2016, and recorded on January 3, 2017, 
in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds of Kane County, Illinois as Doc. No. 2017K000143 (the 
“Second Amendment”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Original Annexation Agreement, the First Amendment, and the Second 

Amendment were later amended by the Third Amendment, dated July 16, 2019, and recorded on 
July 23, 2019, in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds of Kane County, Illinois as Doc. No. 



2 
 

2019K032306 (the “Third Amendment”) (the Original Annexation Agreement, the First 
Amendment, the Second Amendment, and the Third Amendment shall collectively be referred to 
as the “Annexation Agreement”); and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Owner is the legal title holder of the parcel of land referred to in the 
Annexation Agreement as Commercial Parcel A and commonly known as Unit 1A of Gilberts 
Town Center, as more specifically described on the attached Exhibit A (the “Subject Property”); 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the development and use of the Subject Property is governed by the 
Annexation Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Owner has proposed certain modifications to the Annexation Agreement 
relating to the height requirements for signage as applied to the Subject Property, and has applied 
for variances from the Gilberts Unified Development Ordinance (“UDO”) relating to sign height 
requirements for the Subject Property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Village Plan Commission held a public hearing on the Owner’s requested 
variances from the UDO on April 12, 2023, and has recommended approval of the owner’s 
requested variance to the Corporate Authorities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, upon the adoption of the Fourth Amendment, the Corporate Authorities of 
the Village will consider the adoption of a separate ordinance approving the Owner’s requested 
variance from the UDO; and 
 
 WHEREAS, all notices, publications, procedures, public hearings, and other matters 
required for the consideration and approval of this Fourth Amendment have been made, given, 
held and performed by the Village as required by 65 ILCS 5/11-15.1-1, et seq., and all other 
applicable statutes, and all applicable ordinances, regulations and procedures of the Village; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this Fourth Amendment was submitted pursuant to the applicable provisions 
of the Illinois Municipal Code to the Corporate Authorities of the Village and a public hearing on 
this Fourth Amendment was held before the Corporate authorities on April 18, 2023, pursuant to 
proper notice as provided by statute; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village have considered this Fourth 
Amendment and determined that execution hereof is in the best interest of the Village and its 
residents; and 
 
 WHEREAS, by a favorable vote of at least two-thirds of the Corporate Authorities of the 
Village then holding office, the Village has adopted an ordinance approving the execution of this 
Fourth Amendment and authorizing its execution. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the observance by the Parties of their respective 
covenants and obligations as set forth herein, and of other good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby mutually acknowledged, it is agreed as follows: 



3 
 

 
1.  Incorporation of Recitals. The foregoing recitals are material to this Fourth 

Amendment and are incorporated into the Fourth Amendment and made a part hereof as fully 
stated herein.  

 
2.  Capitalized Words and Terms. Capitalized words and terms not otherwise 

defined in this Fourth Amendment shall have those meanings and definitions contained in the 
Annexation Agreement. 

 
3.  Prior Agreements/Conflicts. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between 

the terms and provisions of the Annexation Agreement and this Fourth Amendment, this Fourth 
Amendment shall govern and apply, but solely as applicable to the Subject Property. 

 
4.  Amendment to Exhibit G of the Annexation Agreement. Exhibit G to the 

Annexation Agreement, entitled “Gilberts Town Center Commercial Parcel A (Burbulis Parcel – 
16 acres at Higgins/Center),” is hereby amended as follows (additions in bold and underline; 
deletions in bold and strikethrough): 
 

EXHIBIT G 
 

GILBERTS TOWN CENTER 
Commercial Parcel A 

(Burbulis Parcel – 16 acres at Higgins/Center) 
 

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
 

Applicability: These development standards are predicated upon a 
preliminary plat of development concept that envisions smaller scale 
building improvements situated on lots of generally less than three (3) 
acres, some of which will be situated along Turner Street (extended and 
may relate to and/or be inviting to persons and activities that may be present 
with the contemplated Town Square. 

 
Should another development pattern for Commercial Parcel A be proposed 
that envisions larger scale building improvements upon larger lots and/or 
that may change the relationship of Commercial Parcel A to Town Square, 
then development standards consistent with those contained in the 
Agreement for Commercial Parcels B & C shall be applied, with the Town 
Square area being construed as residential and abutting in applying those 
standards. 

 
[ . . . ] 

 
 
 
 



4 
 

 
Sign Requirements 

 
In addition to conforming to the applicable requirements for signs set forth 
in the Village of Gilberts Sign Ordinance, all uses in the development shall 
also conform to the following additional requirements for signs. 
 

[ . . . ] 
 

B. Wall, awning, marquee, canopy, and window signs 
 

a. Type permitted: Business 
 

b. Number and size limits 
i. For the first building wall facing a public or private street or 

customer parking area, the total permitted wall signa rea shall 
be calculated on the basis of one square foot of sign area per 
one lineal foot of building wall up to a maximum of 200 square 
feet. No individual wall sign shall exceed 120 square feet in 
area. No more than four individual signs shall be placed on 
the wall. 

ii. For a second building wall sign facing a public or private street 
or customer parking area, additional signage with not more 
than one square foot of wall signage for every two lineal feet 
of applicable building wall to a maximum of 50 square feet of 
signage is permitted. No more than two individual signs shall 
be placed on the wall. 

iii. Signs on awnings, marquees, and canopies shall be 
considered to be wall signs under the terms of this section and 
subject to the regulations therefore where applicable. 

iv. Window promotional signs shall be permitted interior to a 
glass show window and shall be in addition to all other 
authorized signs provided that not more than 10% of the total 
window area facing a public or private street or customer 
parking area shall be covered by such signs and provided that 
no violations are created with the Village building code. 
 

c. Maximum height: 20 29 feet, and in no case shall a sign project 
above the roofline in the case of a flat-roofed structure, or eave line 
in the case of a pitched roof structure. 
 

d. For any lettering on an awning, said lettering shall be uniform in size, 
style, elevation and color on all awnings located on a common 
building. 

 
[ . . .] 



5 
 

 
 

5.  Consideration of Variances from the UDO. Following the adoption of this Fourth 
Amendment, the Village agrees to consider the adoption of a separate ordinance approving the 
Owner’s requested variance from the UDO according to the applicable procedures set forth in State 
law and the UDO. 

 
6.  Continued Effect of Annexation Agreement. Except as expressly modified by 

this Fourth Amendment, the Annexation shall remain in full force and effect, and Owner shall 
comply with all requirements, conditions, and restrictions therein. 

 
7.  Amendment to Notices. All notices relating to this Fourth Amendment and the 

Subject Property shall be provided to Owner as follows: 
 

 Red Barn Holdings, LLC 
 Katie Stover 
 141 E. Higgins Rd.. 
 Gilberts, IL 60140 
 
 With a copy to: 
 Scott G. Richmond 
 Ariano, Hardy, Ritt, Nyuli, Richmond, Lytle & Goettel, P.C. 
 2000 McDonald Road, Suite 200 
 South Elgin, IL 60177 
 sgr@attorneys-illinois.com  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Fourth Amendment effective 
the date first above stated.  

 
Village of Gilberts, an Illinois municipal corporation 

 
 
      By: ______________________________________ 
             Village President 
Attest: 
 
___________________________________ 
Village Clerk 
 
      Red Barn Holdings, LLC 
 
 
      By: ______________________________________ 
 

Its___________________________________       

mailto:sgr@attorneys-illinois.com


6 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Legal Description of Unit 1A of Gilberts Town Center 
 

LOT 290 IN GILBERT TOWN CENTER-UNIT 1A, BEING A PART OF THE 
NORTHERN HALF OF SECTION 24, AND PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 42 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF 
THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 
22, 2005 AS DOCUMENT 2005K140427, AND ANY AMENDMENTS 
SUBSEQUENT THERETO IN KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 
 
 
PIN# 02-24-155-003 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Village of Gilberts 
Village Hall 

87 Galligan Road, Gilberts, Illinois 60136 
Ph. 847-428-2861      Fax: 847-428-2955 

www.villageofgilberts.com 
 

1 
 

To: Plan Commission 
From: Riley Lynch, Management Analyst 
Cc: Brian Bourdeau, Village Administrator 
Date: April 12, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting  
Re: Item 5 – Consideration and Recommendation to the Village Board of Trustees 

Regarding Variance Requests from Wall Sign Requirements for Red Barn Animal 
Hospital. 

 

Summary: 

Red Barn Holdings, LLC is requesting (1) a variance to allow a wall sign not oriented towards an 
adjacent roadway, and (2) a variance to allow two wall signs to protrude higher than 20 feet. 

 

Background: 

Red Barn Holdings, LLC (“Applicant”) 
owns the property known as Unit 1A of 
Gilberts Town Center situated between 
Higgins Road, Center Drive, and Rollyn 
L. Anderson Lane (PIN: 02-24-155-003). 

The Applicant’s property is zoned as C-1 
Commercial. To the north is Town 
Square Park. To the east is a detention 
reservoir and undeveloped C-1 
commercial parcel of land. To the South 
is an I-1 Industrial district home to 
multiple businesses. To the west of the 
property are C-1 commercial properties and further west are residences part of the Old Town 
zoning district.  

On April 4th 2022, the Applicant received approval of a special use permit to operate an animal 
hospital on this property. Since then, construction on the main building has progressed and the 
Applicant hopes to open for business at this location soon. With the majority of the primary 
structure’s construction complete or nearing completion, the Applicant is looking to install 2 face-
lit illuminated wall signs to help identify their business. One of the signs will go on the front of 
the building and be visible to west-bound traffic on Route 72. The sign will say “Red Barn Animal 
Hospital” and protrude up to about 28.75 feet off the ground at the highest point. The other wall 
sign is desired to go on the back of the building so that’s its visible to east-bound traffic on Route 
72. That sign is to depict the silhouettes of a dog and cat and will extend to about 26.75 feet off 
the ground at the highest point. See figures 2-3 and the attached exhibits for more details. 

Figure 1 - GIS Snapshot of Red Barn’s Parcel 



April 12th, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting 

2 
 

Note that Applicant is already approved to have 2 freestanding signs on their property. One is a 
monument sign positioned on the southern portion of the property to be visible along Higgins Road 
(Route 72) and a directional sign to be located at the entrance along Center Drive indicating where 
the parking lot is. These signs are a permitted by the Gilberts Town Center Annexation Agreement. 

Variance Requests: 

9-2(L)(1)(a)(1) of the Village’s Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) specifies that there shall 
only one wall sign per tenant unless the building abuts two or more streets and the wall signs are 
oriented to face the streets. Additionally, 9-2(L)(1)(a)(4) of the UDO stipulates that no wall sign 
shall project higher than 20 feet measured from the base of the building. The Applicant is 
requesting variances from these provisions to install the wall signs as they have proposed here. 

 

 

 

Figure 3 – Proposed West-Side Wall Sign 

Figure 2 – Proposed East-Side Wall Sign 



April 12th, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting 

3 
 

Points for Discussion: 

In considering the Applicant’s request for variances, the Plan Commission should review the 
standards for variations as outlined in Section 11-10(F) of the UDO: 

Standards for Variations.  
1.  General Standard. No variation shall be recommended or granted pursuant to this 

section unless the owner shall establish that carrying out the strict letter of the provisions 
of this code would create a particular hardship or a practical difficulty.  

2.  Supplemental Standards. In considering proposed variations to this code, the Board of 
Appeals will consider whether the proposed variation will:  
a.  Impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property.  
b.  Unreasonable increase the congestion in public streets.  
c.  Increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety.  
d.  Unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the surrounding 

area.  
e.  In any other respects impair the public health, safety, or welfare of the inhabitants 

of the village.  
3.  Findings of Fact. Upon review of the application and information presented at the public 

hearing, the Board of Appeals shall consider and adopt findings of fact sustaining each 
of the following criteria which are consistent with the rules provided to govern 
determinations of the Board of Appeals as referenced by state statute.  
a.  The property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used 

only under the conditions allowed by the regulations in that district.  
b.  The extraordinary or exceptional conditions of the property requiring the request 

for the variance were not caused by the applicant.  
c.  The proposed variance will alleviate a peculiar, exceptional or undue hardship, as 

distinguished from a mere inconvenience or pecuniary hardship.  
d.  The denial of the proposed variance will deprive the applicant the use permitted to 

be made by the owners of property in the immediate area.  
e.  The proposed variance will result in a structure that is appropriate to and compatible 

with the character and scale of structures in the area in which the variance is being 
requested.  

f.  There is no other means other than the requested variation by which the alleged 
hardship or difficulty can be avoided or remedied to a degree sufficient to permit a 
reasonable use of the subject property.  

See Exhibit 2 for the Applicant’s response to these standards 

 

  



April 12th, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting 

4 
 

Attachments: 

• Exhibit 1 – Notice of Public Hearing  
• Exhibit 2 – Application for a Variance 
• Exhibit 3 – GTC Lot 290 Plat of Survey 
• Exhibit 4 – Proposed Wall Sign Designs 



VILLAGE OF GILBERTS 
PUBLIC NOTICE REGARDING A HEARING ON A SPECIAL USE APPLICATION 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Gilberts Plan Commission will conduct a 
public hearing on Wednesday, April 12, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. at the Gilberts Village Hall, 
87 Galligan Road, Gilberts, Illinois, to consider an application from Red Barn Holdings, 
LLC (“Applicant”) concerning the property located at the northwest corner of Route 72 
and Center Drive, Gilberts, Illinois, and identified by PIN 02-24-155-003 (“Property”). 
The Applicant requests approval of variances from Section 9-2 of the Gilberts Unified 
Development Ordinance to allow for the installation of two wall signs that exceed the 
maximum height requirements, and for such other and further zoning relief as may be 
required.  
 
All persons interested in the variance application should attend and will be given an 
opportunity to provide written and oral testimony. Members of the public can also submit 
written comments via email at info@villageofgilberts.com. Additional information about 
the variance application and the public hearing are available from the Village of Gilberts 
at (847) 428-2861. The public hearing may be continued from time to time without 
further public notice. 
 
Gilberts Plan Commission 
Village of Gilberts 
 
 
4825-4556-6526, v.  1 

mailto:info@villageofgilberts.com


























N
25° 30' 53"W

  (445.28')

N64° 29' 07"E  (518.03')

N89° 53' 46"W  (790.44')

S89° 48' 33"E  (390.23')

S0
0°

 0
6'

 1
4"

W
  (

10
1.

63
')

S3
6°

 5
3' 

06
"W

  (
14

9.1
2')

 (64.92')

S53° 06' 54"E

A=(119.79') R=(267.00) A=(171.00') R=(267.00)

A=
( 3

62
.4

4'
) R

=(
56

4.5
9)

ROLLYN L. ANDERSON LANE

HIGGINS  ROAD

C
E
N

T
E
R

D
R
IV

E

EXISTING BUILDING

EXISTING
BUILDING

LOT 290
GILBERTS TOWN CENTER

UNIT A

)SS)

WE, REGIONAL LAND SERVICES, LLC, ILLINOIS PROFESSIONAL DESIGN FIRM NUMBER
184-007858-0010, DO HEREBY DECLARE THAT WE HAVE SURVEYED THE TRACT OF 
LAND SHOWN HEREON AND THIS PLAT IS A CORRECT REPRESENTATION OF SAID TRACT.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL THIS                DAY OF                               ,
A.D.          , AT SYCAMORE, ILLINOIS.

RUDY P. DIXON ILLINOIS PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR
LICENSE NO. 035-003832

STATE OF ILLINOIS
COUNTY OF DEKALB

LICENSE EXPIRES: NOVEMBER 30,         

30TH OCTOBER
2021

2022
PROJECT NUMBER:

DATE:

SHEET: OF

DRAWING NUMBER:

210222
10/30/2021

1 1

PLAT

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
27

0 
V

ID
A

 C
O

U
R

T
S

Y
C

A
M

O
R

E
, I

L
L

IN
O

IS
 6

01
78

P
H

O
N

E
: 

(6
18

) 
55

9-
22

60

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
L

A
N

D
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1) 2) 3) 4) S
U

R
V

EY
O

R
S 

N
O

TE
S:

AL
L D

IM
EN

SIO
NS

 A
RE

 G
IV

EN
 IN

 FE
ET

 A
ND

 D
EC

IM
AL

 
PA

RT
S 

TH
ER

EO
F.

BE
FO

RE
 S

TA
RT

IN
G

 A
N

Y 
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 O
F 

   
IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 O

R 
FE

NC
ES

, F
IEL

D 
M

ON
UM

EN
TA

TIO
N 

SH
OU

LD
 B

E E
ST

AB
LIS

HE
D.

RE
FE

R 
TO

 Y
O

UR
 D

EE
D,

 T
IT

LE
 P

O
LIC

Y 
AN

D 
LO

CA
L

O
RD

IN
AN

CE
S 

FO
R 

RE
ST

RI
CT

IO
NS

, B
UI

LD
IN

G 
LIN

ES
AN

D 
EA

SE
M

EN
TS

.
PA

RC
EL

 D
IM

EN
SIO

NS
 A

ND
/O

R 
BE

AR
IN

GS
 W

IT
HI

N
PA

RE
NT

HE
SI

S 
AB

BR
EV

IA
TE

D 
RE

C 
AR

E 
RE

CO
RD

ED
DO

CU
M

EN
T 

DI
M

EN
SI

O
N

S 
AN

D/
O

R 
BE

AR
IN

GS
.

PU
BL

IC
 U

TI
LIT

Y 
EA

SE
M

EN
T

PU
BL

IC
 U

TI
LIT

Y 
& 

DR
AI

NA
GE

 E
AS

EM
EN

T
BU

ILD
IN

G 
SE

TB
AC

K 
LIN

E
AR

C 
LE

NG
TH

CH
O

RD
 B

EA
RI

NG
RA

DI
US

 
BU

ILD
IN

G
CH

AI
N 

LIN
K 

FE
NC

E
W

O
O

D 
FE

NC
E

FIB
ER

GL
AS

S 
FE

NC
E

W
RO

UG
HT

 IR
O

N 
FE

NC
E

AL
UM

IN
UM

 F
EN

CE
FO

UN
D 

O
R 

SE
T 

IR
O

N 
PI

PE
FO

UN
D 

O
R 

SE
T 

IR
O

N 
RO

D
FO

UN
D 

O
R 

SE
T 

CR
O

SS
 N

O
TC

H
FO

UN
D 

O
R 

SE
T 

M
AG

NE
TI

C 
P.

K.
 N

AI
L

FP
K 

O
R 

SP
K

P.
U.

E.

FC
N 

O
R 

SC
N

FIR
 O

R 
SI

R
FIP

 O
R 

SI
P

AL
F

W
IF

FG
F

W
DFCL

F
BL

DGRCBA
B.

S.L
.

P.
U.

 &
 D

.E
.

RE
V

D
ES

CR
IP

TI
O

N
D

A
TE

0
ISS

UE
D

10/
30

/2
02

1

RUDY P. DIXON
035-003832

ILLINOIS
SYCAMORE

    

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
NAL  LAND  SURVEY

O
R

STATE   OF

 ILLINOIS

ILLINOIS MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR A BOUNDARY SURVEY. 
THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICE CONFORMS TO THE CURRENT 

ILLINOIS MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR A TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY. 
THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICE CONFORMS TO THE CURRENT 

PIN NO.:02-24-155-003

0

SCALE: 1" =

40 80

40'

120

BOUNDARY AND TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

LOT 290 IN GILBERT TOWN CENTER-UNIT 1A, BEING A PART OF THE NORTH HALF OF SECTION
24, AND PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 42 NORTH, RANGE 7
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 22, 2005 AS
DOCUMENT 2005K140427, AND ANY AMENDMENTS SUBSEQUENT THERETO IN KANE COUNTY,
ILLINOIS.

BASIS OF BEARINGS:
BEARINGS SHOWN HEREON BASED ON
ILLINOIS STATE PLANE COORDINATES,

ZONE EAST, N.A.D. 1983

UTILITY STATEMENT
THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE BEEN  LOCATED FROM FIELD 
SURVEY INFORMATION AND  EXISTING DRAWINGS.  THE SURVEYOR MAKES NO  
GUARANTEES THAT THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  SHOWN COMPRISE ALL SUCH 
UTILITIES IN THE  AREA, EITHER IN SERVICE OR ABANDONED.  THE  SURVEYOR 
FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT THAT  THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN ARE 
IN THE  EXACT LOCATION INDICATED ALTHOUGH HE DOES  DECLARE THAT THEY 
ARE LOCATED AS  ACCURATELY AS POSSIBLE FROM INFORMATION  AVAILABLE.  
THE SURVEYOR HAS NOT PHYSICALLY  LOCATED THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

811 or 1-800-892-0123

J U L I ECall
Know what's

R

below.
before you dig.

SC
AL

E:

O
RD

ER
ED

 B
Y:

PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
AD

DR
ES

S:

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
UM

BE
R:

FIE
LD

 W
O

RK
 C

O
M

PL
ET

ED

CH
EC

KE
D 

BY
:

DA
TE

:

DA
TE

:
DR

AW
N 

BY
:

DA
TE

:

1" 
=21
02

22

40
'

BI
LL

 Z
AL

EW
SK

I

LO
T 

29
0 

GI
LB

ER
TS

 T
O

W
N 

CE
NT

ER
GI

LB
ER

TS
, I

L

RW
H

10
/3

0/
20

21
RP

D
10

/3
0/

20
21

10
/1

8/
20

21
AD

VA
N

TA
GE

 C
O

N
SU

LT
IN

G 
EN

GI
N

EE
RS

80
 M

AI
N

 S
TR

EE
T 

- S
UI

TE
 17

, L
EM

O
N

T,
 IL

 6
04

39
PH

O
N

E:
 1 

(8
47

) 2
60

-4
75

8

CL
IE

N
T:

LEGEND
EXISTING AIR CONDITIONER
EXISTING BOLLARD
EXISTING CLEAN OUT
EXISTING LIGHT POLE
EXISTING SIGN
EXISTING ELECTRIC METER
EXISITNG GAS METER
EXISTING ELECTIC PEDSTAL
EXISTING TELEPHONE PEDESTAL
EXISTING POWER POLE
EXISTING GUY WIRE
EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT
EXISTING WATER VALVE
EXISTING WATER VALVE & VAULT
EXISTING SANITARY MANHOLE
EXISTING STORM CATCH BASIN
EXISTING STORM FLARED END SECTION
EXISTING STORM INLET
EXISTING STORM MANHOLE
EXISTING DECIDUOUS TREE (LEAF TREE)
EXISTING CONIFEROUS TREE (NON LEAF TREE)

EASEMENT
EXISTING SANITARY LINE
EXISTING STORM LINE
EXISTING WATERMAIN LINE
EXISTING OVERHEAD WIRES
EXISITING CONTOUR MAJOR 5 FOOT
EXISTING CONTOUR MINOR 1 FOOT

705
706

PARCEL LIMITS

EXISTING BUILDING
EXISTING CONCRETE PAVEMENT
EXISTING ASPHALT PAVEMENT

BENCHMARKS:

BENCHMARK #401
TAG BOLT ON FIRE HYDRANT LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF ROLLYN
L. ANDERSON LANE AND CENTER ROAD.
ELEVATION = 902.13' NAVD88

BENCHMARK #402
TAG BOLT ON THE SECOND FIRE HYDRANT SOUTHERLY OF THE CENTERLINE OF
ROLLYN L. ANDERSON LANE ON THE WEST SIDE OF CENTER ROAD.
ELEVATION = 901.59' NAVD88

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' UTILITY EASEMENT HERETO GRANTED BY DOC. 2002K013329

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND I.P. 0.35' WEST 0.07' NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND I.P AT CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND I.P. 0.59' NORTH 0.18' EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND I.P. 0.26' NORTH 0.23' EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND I.P. 0.29' NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND I.P. AT CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND I.P. AT CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND I.P. 0.39' NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND I.P. 0.35' WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND I.P. AT CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MH RIM=901.05' INV=890.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MH RIM=900.36' INV=890.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MH RIM=900.81' INV=889.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MH RIM=900.40' INV=888.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MH RIM=901.68' INV=886.53'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MH RIM=902.15' INV=885.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MH RIM=901.41' INV=883.26' NW,SE INV=883.86' NE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MH RIM=901.39' UNABLE TO OPEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MH RIM=901.54' INV=881.94'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20" DIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
20" DIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM INL RIM=901.14' INV=898.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM INL RIM=900.96' INV=898.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM INL RIM=901.04' INV=897.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM INL RIM=901.07' INV=897.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM INL RIM=900.69' INV=897.69'

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM INL RIM=900.67' INV=897.37'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(66.00' RIGHT OF WAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE  WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE  WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE  WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM INL RIM=899.62' INV=896.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM INL RIM=899.57' INV=896.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM INL RIM=899.42' INV=893.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM INL RIM=899.54' INV=896.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM INL  RIM=899.81' INV=896.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM INL RIM=899.65' INV=897.05'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM INL RIM=899.43' INV=895.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM INL RIM=899.48' INV=895.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM MH RIM=901.00' INV=890.80' NE INV=891.65' NW INV=892.20 SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
27" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
27" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM INL RIM=899.80' INV=891.65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV=889.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM MH RIM=900.49' INV=891.48' SE INV=892.24' NE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE VAULT RIM=902.84' T/P=893.84'

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE VAULT RIM=900.34' T/P=894.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE VAULT RIM=900.77' SUBMERGED

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE VAULT RIM=900.53' SUBMERGED

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE VAULT RIM=900.11 T/P=894.56'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM INL RIM=899.96' INV=895.96'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM CB RIM=899.47' INV=893.72'

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM INL RIM=899.50' INV=891.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM INL RIM=899.97' INV=894.47' S INV=894.82' N

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDPIPE INV=893.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF=904.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOW WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOW WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOW WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOW WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOW WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOW WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL 48 HOURS (2 WORKING DAYS) BEFORE YOU DIG

AutoCAD SHX Text
(OUTSIDE CHICAGO AREA)

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST



A
D

VA
N

TA
G

E
 CO

N
SU

LT
IN

G
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
S

 
R

ED
 B

A
R

N
 A

N
IM

A
L 

H
O

SP
IT

A
L

G
IL

B
ER

T,
 IL

LI
N

O
IS

L1

G
EO

M
ET

R
IC

 P
LA

N

7'
-0

"

7'-0"

MONUMENT SIGN
SO-0403-4B

SO-0403-1B



7933 W Hwy 6, Westville, IN 46391 Shaun O’Brien 219-406-0218

SCALE: Mixed

PROJECT: 

REP:

DATE:

DRAWING:

PROJECT #: 220936 

REVISIONS: CLIENT APPROVAL:

By signing this print, I understand that I am accepting all aspects of this drawing. 
This includes artwork, speci�cations, dimensions, spelling and all other
representations herein.  I also understand that color representations on this print
are approximate, and may not match actual colors produced.

SO-0403-2

Red Barn Animal Hospital 
20 N Center
Gilberts, IL 60140

11-15-2022
1. 

ONE (1) SET OF FACE LIT - LED ILLUMINATED CHANNEL LETTERS WITH
MOUNTED FLUSH TO BUILDING FASCIA

5” RETURNS = PAINTED SATIN MAP BLACK
1” TRIMCAP = GEMINI STANDARD WHITE
FACES = 7328 WHITE ACRYLIC
ILLUMINATION = 7100K BRIGHT WHITE LED

13'-0"

1'
-9

 1 /
4"

1'
-7

 5 /
8"

1'
-0

 5 /
8"

1'
-1

 7 /
8"

3'
-4

 3 /
4"

Scale: 1/8” = 1’

Enlarged view
Scale: 1/2” = 1’

13'-0"

3'
-4

 3 /
4"

25
'-4

 1
/2

"
to

 g
ra

de

28
'-9

 1 /
4"



7933 W Hwy 6, Westville, IN 46391 Shaun O’Brien 219-406-0218

SCALE: Mixed

PROJECT: 

REP:

DATE:

DRAWING:

PROJECT #: 220936 

REVISIONS: CLIENT APPROVAL:

By signing this print, I understand that I am accepting all aspects of this drawing. 
This includes artwork, speci�cations, dimensions, spelling and all other
representations herein.  I also understand that color representations on this print
are approximate, and may not match actual colors produced.

SO-0403-6

Red Barn Animal Hospital 
E Higgins Rd
Gilberts, IL 60140

3-3-2023
1. 

Enlarged view
Scale: 1/2” = 1’

Scale: 1/8” = 1’

16'-9 1/2"
TO

P O
F W

IN
D

O
W

FRA
M

E TO
ELEC

TRICA
L STU

B-O
U

T

18'-11 1/2"
O

P O
F W

IN
D

O
W

FRA
M

E TO
ELEC

TRICA
L STU

B-O
U

T

7'-6"

5'-4 5/8"

3'-10 5/8"

6'
-7

" 4'-0 1/2"

6'
-7

"

4'-0 1/2"

5'-4 5/8"
3'-10 5/8"

ONE (1) SET OF FACE LIT - LED ILLUMINATED CHANNEL LOGOS
(ONE DOG, ONE CAT) MOUNTED FLUSH TO BUILDING FASCIA

5” RETURNS = PAINTED SATIN MAP BLACK
1” TRIMCAP = GEMINI STANDARD WHITE
FACES = 7328 WHITE ACRYLIC
ILLUMINATION = 7100K BRIGHT WHITE LED

2 5/8"

20
'-2

"



ORDINANCE NO. 06-2023 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A VARIANCE  
FROM THE GILBERTS UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 

 
(Red Barn Animal Hospital – Northwest Corner of Route 72 and Center Drive) 

 
 WHEREAS, Red Barn Holdings, LLC (“Owner”), is the owner of the property located at 
the corner of Route 72 and Center Drive, Gilberts, Illinois, which property is more specifically 
described on Exhibit A (“Property”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Property is currently zoned in the C-1 Commercial District and is subject 
to the certain Annexation Agreement and Development Agreement dated April 27, 2005, and 
recorded on June 13, 2005 in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds of Kane County, Illinois as Doc. 
No. 2005K066197 (“Annexation Agreement”), governing the territory known as the Gilberts 
Town Center; and  

WHEREAS, the Owner previously received a special use permit to allow for the operation 
of an animal hospital on the Property pursuant to Ordinance No. 08-2022, approved by the Village 
Board of Trustees on April 19, 2022 (“Special Use Permit”); and  

WHEREAS, the Owner has requested approval of variances from the following section of 
the Gilberts Unified Development Ordinance (“UDO”): (1) a variance from section 9-2(L)(4) of 
the UDO to allow for wall sign at a height of 29 feet instead of the maximum 20 feet; and (2) a 
variance from Section 9-2-(L)(a)(1) of the UDO to allow for a second wall sign that is not oriented 
towards a street (collectively, the “Variances”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to notice duly published, the Gilberts Plan Commission/Zoning 
Board of Appeals held a public hearing on April 12, 2023, for the purpose of hearing and 
considering testimony on the Owner’s request for approval of the Variances; and  

WHEREAS, at the conclusion of the public hearing, the Gilberts Plan Commission/Zoning 
Board of Appeals recommended approval of the Owner’s requested Variances, subject to certain 
conditions; and  

WHEREAS, the Village Board makes the following findings of fact in reference to the 
application for approval of the Variances: 

1. The Property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used 
only under the conditions allowed by the regulations in that district;  

2. The extraordinary or exceptional conditions of the Property requiring the request 
for the Variances was not caused by the Owner; 

3. The proposed Variances will alleviate a peculiar, exceptional or undue hardship, as 
distinguished from a mere inconvenience or pecuniary hardship; 

4. The denial of the proposed Variances will deprive the Owner of the use permitted 
to be made by the owners of property in the immediate area;   



ORDINANCE 06-2023 

2 

 

5. The proposed Variances will result in structures that are appropriate to and 
compatible with the character and scale of structures in the area in which the 
Variances are being requested; and 

6. There is no other means other than the requested Variances by which the alleged 
hardship or difficulty can be avoided or remedied to a degree sufficient to permit a 
reasonable use of the Property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES of the Village of Gilberts, Kane County, Illinois as follows: 
 
Section 1. Recitals.  The recitals are incorporated into this Section 1 as if fully set forth. 
 
Section 2.    Variances.  Subject to the conditions set forth in Section 3 of this Ordinance, the 
Village Board of Trustees hereby approves the following variances for the Property:  

A. A variance from Section 9-2(L)(4) of the UDO to allow for a wall sign at a height of 
29 feet instead of the maximum 20 feet. 
 

B. A variance from Section 9-2-(L)(a)(1) of the UDO to allow for a second wall sign that 
is not oriented towards a street. 

Section 3. Conditions. The approvals granted pursuant to Section 2 of this Ordinance are 
conditioned upon and limited by the following conditions, the violation of any of which shall, in 
the discretion of the President and Board of Trustees, be grounds for the repeal and revocation of 
the approvals granted by this Ordinance in accordance with applicable law.  In addition, any 
violation of this Ordinance will be deemed a violation of the UDO and subject the Owner to 
enforcement proceedings accordingly.  
 

A. Compliance with Plans.  The development, maintenance, and use of the Property will 
be in substantial conformance with the plans attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

B. No Authorization of Work. This Ordinance does not authorize commencement of any 
work on the Property. Except as otherwise specifically provided in writing in advance 
by the Village, no work of any kind may be commenced on the Property pursuant to 
the approvals granted in this Ordinance unless and until all conditions of this Ordinance 
precedent to that work have been fulfilled and after all permits, approvals, and other 
authorizations for the work have been properly applied for, paid for, and granted in 
accordance with applicable law. 

 
C. Compliance with Laws.  The UDO, the Building Code, and all other applicable Village 

ordinances and regulations shall continue to apply to the Property, and the development 
and use of the Property must comply with all laws and regulations of all other federal, 
state, and local governments and agencies having jurisdiction.   
 

Section 4. Failure to Comply.  Upon failure or refusal of the Owner to comply with any or 
all of the conditions, restrictions, or provisions of this Ordinance, the approvals in Section 2 of this 



ORDINANCE 06-2023 

3 

 

Ordinance for the Property (“Conditioned Approval”), will, at the sole discretion of the Board of 
Trustees, by ordinance duly adopted, be revoked and become null and void; provided, however, 
that the Board of Trustees will not revoke the Conditioned Approval unless it first provides the 
Owner with two months advance written notice of the reasons for revocation and an opportunity 
to be heard at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees regarding the revocation.  In the event of 
revocation, the development and use of the Property will be governed solely by the regulations of 
the C-1 Commercial District and the terms of the Annexation Agreement while it is in effect, as 
the same may, from time to time, be amended.  Further, in the event of revocation, the Village 
Administrator and Village Attorney are authorized and directed to bring all zoning enforcement 
actions as may be appropriate under the circumstances. The Owner acknowledges that public 
notices and hearings have been held with respect to the adoption of this Ordinance, have considered 
the possibility of the revocation provided for in this Section 4, and agree not to challenge any 
revocation on the grounds of any procedural infirmity or any denial of any procedural right, 
provided that the notice to the Owner required by this Section 4 is given. 
 
Section 5.   Binding Effect. The privileges, obligations, and provisions of each and every 
section of this Ordinance are for the sole benefit of, and shall be binding on, the Owner.  
 
Section 6. Severability.  In the event a court of competent jurisdiction finds this 
Ordinance or any provision hereof to be invalid or unenforceable as applied, such finding shall 
not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this ordinance and the application 
thereof to the greatest extent permitted by law. 
 
Section 7. Repeal and Saving Clause.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed; provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall affect any 
rights, actions, or cause of action which shall have accrued to the Village of Gilberts prior to 
the effective date of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 8.   Effective Date.  Upon its passage and approval according to law, this Ordinance 
shall, by authority of the Board of Trustees, be published in pamphlet form; provided, however, 
that this Ordinance shall be of no force or effect unless and until the Owner has executed and filed 
with the Village its unconditional agreement and consent, in the form attached to this Ordinance 
as Exhibit C, within 30 days following the passage of this Ordinance.   
 
PASSED BY VOTE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES of the Village of Gilberts, Kane 
County, Illinois, this 18th day of April 2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE 06-2023 

4 

 

    Ayes  Nays  Absent  Abstain 
Trustee Jeanne Allen  ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Dan Corbett  ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Lou Hacker  ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Brandon Coats ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Justin Redfield ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee David LeClercq Sr. ____  ____  _____  _____ 
President Guy Zambetti ____  ____  _____  _____ 
     
    APPROVED this 18th day of April, 2023. 
 
(SEAL) 
      ____________________________ 
      Guy Zambetti, Village President 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: ___________________________  
  Kelly Mastera, Village Clerk, 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ORDINANCE 06-2023 

5 

 

Exhibit A 
 

 Description of the Property 
 

 
    
 
PIN:   02-24-155-003 
    
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



ORDINANCE 06-2023 

6 

 

Exhibit B 
 

Plans 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 



7933 W Hwy 6, Westville, IN 46391 Shaun O’Brien 219-406-0218

SCALE: Mixed

PROJECT: 

REP:

DATE:

DRAWING:

PROJECT #: 220936 

REVISIONS: CLIENT APPROVAL:

By signing this print, I understand that I am accepting all aspects of this drawing. 
This includes artwork, speci�cations, dimensions, spelling and all other
representations herein.  I also understand that color representations on this print
are approximate, and may not match actual colors produced.

SO-0403-2

Red Barn Animal Hospital 
20 N Center
Gilberts, IL 60140

11-15-2022
1. 

ONE (1) SET OF FACE LIT - LED ILLUMINATED CHANNEL LETTERS WITH
MOUNTED FLUSH TO BUILDING FASCIA

5” RETURNS = PAINTED SATIN MAP BLACK
1” TRIMCAP = GEMINI STANDARD WHITE
FACES = 7328 WHITE ACRYLIC
ILLUMINATION = 7100K BRIGHT WHITE LED

13'-0"

1'
-9

 1 /
4"

1'
-7

 5 /
8"

1'
-0

 5 /
8"

1'
-1

 7 /
8"

3'
-4

 3 /
4"

Scale: 1/8” = 1’

Enlarged view
Scale: 1/2” = 1’

13'-0"

3'
-4

 3 /
4"

25
'-4

 1
/2

"
to

 g
ra

de

28
'-9

 1 /
4"



7933 W Hwy 6, Westville, IN 46391 Shaun O’Brien 219-406-0218

SCALE: Mixed

PROJECT: 

REP:

DATE:

DRAWING:

PROJECT #: 220936 

REVISIONS: CLIENT APPROVAL:

By signing this print, I understand that I am accepting all aspects of this drawing. 
This includes artwork, speci�cations, dimensions, spelling and all other
representations herein.  I also understand that color representations on this print
are approximate, and may not match actual colors produced.

SO-0403-6

Red Barn Animal Hospital 
E Higgins Rd
Gilberts, IL 60140

3-3-2023
1. 

Enlarged view
Scale: 1/2” = 1’

Scale: 1/8” = 1’

16'-9 1/2"
TO

P O
F W

IN
D

O
W

FRA
M

E TO
ELEC

TRICA
L STU

B-O
U

T

18'-11 1/2"
O

P O
F W

IN
D

O
W

FRA
M

E TO
ELEC

TRICA
L STU

B-O
U

T

7'-6"

5'-4 5/8"

3'-10 5/8"

6'
-7

" 4'-0 1/2"

6'
-7

"

4'-0 1/2"

5'-4 5/8"
3'-10 5/8"

ONE (1) SET OF FACE LIT - LED ILLUMINATED CHANNEL LOGOS
(ONE DOG, ONE CAT) MOUNTED FLUSH TO BUILDING FASCIA

5” RETURNS = PAINTED SATIN MAP BLACK
1” TRIMCAP = GEMINI STANDARD WHITE
FACES = 7328 WHITE ACRYLIC
ILLUMINATION = 7100K BRIGHT WHITE LED

2 5/8"

20
'-2

"



ORDINANCE 06-2023 

7 

 

Exhibit C 
 

Unconditional Agreement and Consent 

Pursuant to Section 8 of Ordinance No. 06-2023, and to induce the Village to grant the approval 
provided for in that Ordinance, the undersigned acknowledges for itself and its successors and 
assigns in title to the Property that it: 

1. has read and understand all of the terms and provisions of Ordinance No. 06-2023;  

2. hereby unconditionally agrees to accept, consent to, and abide by all of the terms, 
conditions, restrictions, and provisions of this Ordinance, the UDO, and all other applicable 
codes, ordinances, rules, and regulations; 

3. acknowledges and agrees that the Village is not and shall not be, in any way, liable for any 
damages or injuries that may be sustained as a result of the Village’s issuance of any 
permits for the use of the Property, and that the Village’s issuance of any permit does not, 
and shall not, in any way, be deemed to insure the Owner against damage or injury of any 
kind and at any time; 

4. acknowledges that the public notices and hearings have been properly given and held with 
respect to the adoption of the Ordinance, have considered the possibility of the revocation 
provided for in the Ordinance, and agree not to challenge any revocation on the grounds of 
any procedural infirmity or any denial of any procedural right; and 

5. represents and acknowledges that the person signing this Unconditional Agreement and 
Consent is duly authorized to do so on behalf of the Owner. 

 

Red Barn Holdings, LLC 

By: ________________________________ 

Its:  ________________________________ 

Date: ______________________________ 

 
 
 

 

 



Village of Gilberts 
Village Hall 

87 Galligan Road, Gilberts, Illinois 60136 
Ph. 847-428-2861      Fax: 847-428-2955 

www.villageofgilberts.com 
 

1 
 

To: President Zambetti & Board of Trustees 
From: Riley Lynch, Management Analyst 
Cc: Brian Bourdeau, Village Administrator 
Date: April 18, 2023 Village Board Meeting  
Re: Item 6.H – An Ordinance Approving a Variance from The Gilberts Unified 

Development Ordinance (Pub 72 – 38 East Higgins Road) (Ordinance 07-2023) 
Summary: 

Pub 72 INC is seeking a variance from parking requirements triggered by a building expansion. 
The Plan Commission passed a unanimous recommendation that the variance be approved. 

 

Background: 

Pub 72 INC (“Applicant”) 
operates the restaurant located at 
38 East Higgins Road (PIN: 02-
24-154-010). The property is 
located within a C-1 Commercial 
zoning district and is joined by 
two other C-1 zoned parcels to the 
west that make up more of Pub 
72’s parking lot and a volleyball 
court. To the north are residences 
part of the Old Town district, to 
the south across Higgins Road are 
businesses in the I-1 Industrial district, and to the east across Galligan road are more C-1 
commercial properties home to Cruisin’ and Red Barn Animal Hospital.  

The Applicant is looking to expand the restaurant’s building by 1,000sqft into the parking lot on 
the west side of the building. The new total net floor area of Pub 72 will be about 2,110sqft. With 
the new expansion, Pub 72’s parking lot will be rearranged to contain 32 parking spaces, 2 of 
which will be handicap spaces. However, the Village’s Unified Development Ordinance requires 
38 parking spaces. In order to proceed with the planned expansion, the Applicant is requesting a 
variance from needing to provide the 6 additional spaces. 

Note that the Applicant has indicated they have purchased the property located across Galligan 
road at 17 Galligan Road and proposed to use that property to make up the remaining balance of 
required parking spaces. However, it is separated by a public road, is a separate zoning lot, and 
has its own uses and parking requirements. According to these facts and UDO 9-1(B)(1)(a), 
parking spaces on that property cannot be used to supplement the required spaces for Pub 72. 

 

Figure 1 - GIS Snapshot of Pub 72 



April 18th, 2023 Village Board Meeting 

2 
 

Public Hearing & Plan Commission: 

On April 12th, the Plan Commission held a public hearing to review the Applicant’s zoning relief 
request. After the public hearing and sufficient deliberation, the Plan Commission passed a 
unanimous recommendation to the Board that the variances be approved as requested. 

  

Attachments: 

• Exhibit 1 – April 12th Plan Commission Packet Material – Pub 72 
• Exhibit 2 – Ordinance 07-2023 Authorizing a Variance  

Figure 2 - Pub 72 Expansion Rendering 



Village of Gilberts 
Village Hall 

87 Galligan Road, Gilberts, Illinois 60136 
Ph. 847-428-2861      Fax: 847-428-2955 

www.villageofgilberts.com 
 

1 
 

To: Plan Commission 
From: Riley Lynch, Management Analyst 
Cc: Brian Bourdeau, Village Administrator 
Date: April 12, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting  
Re: Item 6 – Consideration and Recommendation to the Village Board of Trustees 

Regarding a Variance Request from Parking Requirements Related to an 
Expansion of Pub 72. 

 

Summary: 

Pub 72 INC is seeking a variance from parking requirements triggered by a building expansion. 

 

Background: 

Pub 72 INC (“Applicant”) 
operates the restaurant located at 
38 East Higgins Road (PIN: 02-
24-154-010). The property is 
located within a C-1 Commercial 
zoning district and is joined by 
two other C-1 zoned parcels to the 
west that make up more of Pub 
72’s parking lot and a volleyball 
court. To the north are residences 
part of the Old Town district, to 
the south across Higgins Road are 
businesses in the I-1 Industrial district, and to the east across Galligan road are more C-1 
commercial properties home to Cruisin’ and Red Barn Animal Hospital.  

The Applicant is looking to expand the restaurant’s building by 1,000sqft into the parking lot on 
the west side of the building. The new total net floor area of Pub 72 will be about 2,110sqft. With 
the new expansion, Pub 72’s parking lot will be rearranged to contain 32 parking spaces, 2 of 
which will be handicap spaces. 

 

Variance Request: 

Chapter 9-1(A) of the Village’s Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) details that a change in 
use or increase in floor area requires that additional parking be provided. Furthermore, 9-1(B) of 
the UDO outlines the number of parking spaces required per use and per 1,000sqft of net floor 
area. Overall, this requires 38 total spaces for the current restaurant use and proposed expansion. 
As the remainder of the Applicant’s contiguous properties are covered by the primary structure, 

Figure 1 - GIS Snapshot of Pub 72 



April 12th, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting 

2 
 

existing parking facilities, and volleyball court, the Applicant is requesting a variance from 9-1 of 
the UDO to reduce the parking requirement by 6 spaces.  

Note that the Applicant has indicated they have purchased the property located across Galligan 
road at 17 Galligan Road and proposed to use that property to make up the remaining balance of 
required parking spaces. However, it is separated by a public road, is a separate zoning lot, and 
has its own uses and parking requirements. According to these facts and UDO 9-1(B)(1)(a), 
parking spaces on that property cannot be used to supplement the required spaces for Pub 72. 

Points for Discussion: 

In considering the Applicant’s request for a variance from parking requirements, the Plan 
Commission should review the standards for variations as outlined in Section 11-10(F) of the 
UDO: 

Standards for Variations.  
1.  General Standard. No variation shall be recommended or granted pursuant to this 

section unless the owner shall establish that carrying out the strict letter of the provisions 
of this code would create a particular hardship or a practical difficulty.  

2.  Supplemental Standards. In considering proposed variations to this code, the Board of 
Appeals will consider whether the proposed variation will:  
a.  Impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property.  
b.  Unreasonable increase the congestion in public streets.  
c.  Increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety.  
d.  Unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the surrounding 

area.  
e.  In any other respects impair the public health, safety, or welfare of the inhabitants 

of the village.  
3.  Findings of Fact. Upon review of the application and information presented at the public 

hearing, the Board of Appeals shall consider and adopt findings of fact sustaining each 
of the following criteria which are consistent with the rules provided to govern 
determinations of the Board of Appeals as referenced by state statute.  

Figure 2 - Pub 72 Expansion Rendering 



April 12th, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting 

3 
 

a.  The property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used 
only under the conditions allowed by the regulations in that district.  

b.  The extraordinary or exceptional conditions of the property requiring the request 
for the variance were not caused by the applicant.  

c.  The proposed variance will alleviate a peculiar, exceptional or undue hardship, as 
distinguished from a mere inconvenience or pecuniary hardship.  

d.  The denial of the proposed variance will deprive the applicant the use permitted to 
be made by the owners of property in the immediate area.  

e.  The proposed variance will result in a structure that is appropriate to and compatible 
with the character and scale of structures in the area in which the variance is being 
requested.  

f.  There is no other means other than the requested variation by which the alleged 
hardship or difficulty can be avoided or remedied to a degree sufficient to permit a 
reasonable use of the subject property.  

See Exhibit 2 for the Applicant’s response to these standards 

 

Attachments: 

• Exhibit 1 – Notice of Public Hearing  
• Exhibit 2 – Application for a Variance 
• Exhibit 3 – 38 E. Higgins Road Plat of Survey 
• Exhibit 4 – Expansion Design Plans 
• Exhibit 5 – Parking Lot Design & Fire Apparatus Turning Exhibit 

 



VILLAGE OF GILBERTS 
PUBLIC NOTICE REGARDING A HEARING ON A VARIANCE APPLICATION 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Gilberts Plan Commission will conduct a 
public hearing on Wednesday, April 12, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. at the Gilberts Village Hall, 
87 Galligan Road, Gilberts, Illinois, to consider an application from Pub 72 Inc. 
(“Applicant”) concerning the property located at 38 East Higgins Road, Gilberts, Illinois, 
and identified by PINS 02-24-154-010, 02-24-154-012, and 02-24-154-004 (“Property”). 
The Applicant requests approval of a variance from Section 9-1 of the Gilberts Unified 
Development Ordinance (UDO) to reduce the required amount of off-street parking 
spaces for the Property, and for such other and further zoning relief as may be required.  
 
All persons interested in the variance application should attend and will be given an 
opportunity to provide written and oral testimony. Members of the public can also submit 
written comments via email at info@villageofgilberts.com. Additional information about 
the variance application and the public hearing are available from the Village of Gilberts 
at (847) 428-2861. The public hearing may be continued from time to time without 
further public notice. 
 
Gilberts Plan Commission 
Village of Gilberts 
 
 
4825-4556-6526, v.  1 

mailto:info@villageofgilberts.com
















The revised final plan shows 32 parking spaces. The applicant is requesting a variance 

of 6 parking spaces.







Revised Plan shows 32 parking 
spaces. The Applicant needs a variance from 6 parking spaces.



18 | P a g e

C. Responses to Standards

Standards for Variations (See 10-11-10F of UDO) 
Please provide a written narrative that responds to the following standards below. Use the next 
page or another sheet of paper for your responses.  

1. General Standard. No variation shall be recommended or granted pursuant to this
section unless the owner shall establish that carrying out the strict letter of the
provisions of this code would create a particular hardship or a practical difficulty.

2. Supplemental Standards. In considering proposed variations to this code, the Board of
Appeals will consider whether the proposed variation will:
a. Impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property.
b. Unreasonable increase the congestion in public streets.
c. Increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety.
d. Unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the surrounding

area.
e. In any other respects impair the public health, safety, or welfare of the inhabitants

of the village.

3. Findings of Fact. Upon review of the application and information presented at the
public hearing, the Board of Appeals shall consider and adopt findings of fact sustaining
each of the following criteria which are consistent with the rules provided to govern
determinations of the Board of Appeals as referenced by state statute.
a. The property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used

only under the conditions allowed by the regulations in that district.
b. The extraordinary or exceptional conditions of the property requiring the request for

the variance were not caused by the applicant.
c. The proposed variance will alleviate a peculiar, exceptional or undue hardship, as

distinguished from a mere inconvenience or pecuniary hardship.
d. The denial of the proposed variance will deprive the applicant the use permitted to

be made by the owners of property in the immediate area.
e. The proposed variance will result in a structure that is appropriate to and compatible

with the character and scale of structures in the area in which the variance is being
requested.

f. There is no other means other than the requested variation by which the alleged
hardship or difficulty can be avoided or remedied to a degree sufficient to permit a
reasonable use of the subject property.



19 | P a g e

Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations. 





UP DNUP DN

UP

UP

F
R

O
N

T
 Y

A
R

D

1
5

'  -
 0

"

SIDE YARD
10' - 0

"

2
4

.6
0
'

RAMP

EXISTING 2-STORY FRAME
BUILDING W/BASEMENT

PROPOSED 1-STORY 
FRAME ADDITION 1,012 SF

19.80'

R
E

A
R

 Y
A

R
D

1
5
' - 0

"

SIDE YARD10' - 0
"

35.06'

3
1

.3
0
'

1
0

.3
9
'

36.54'

23.88'

41.10'

19.68'

4
8
.4

9
'

8
0
.6

7
'

132.55'

146.10'

54.86'

6
.7

0
'

EXIST. RAMP

EXISTING CONSTRUCTION
TO REMAIN

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION
(ADDITION)

1
3
7
.4

5
'

8
4
.2

4
'

ELGIN (ILLINOIS ROUTE 72) STREET 
E. HIGGINS RD.

(TWO-WAY TRAFFIC)

EXISTING
ASPHALT PAVEMENT
AND PARKING

LANDSCAPING

LANDSCAPING

EXTERIOR 
DECK

G
A

L
L
IG

A
N

 R
D

.

(T
W

O
-W

A
Y

 T
R

A
F
F

IC
)

EXISTING 
DECK

EXIST. CONC. SIDEWALK

E
X

IS
T

. C
O

N
C

. S
ID

E
W

A
L
K

EXIST.
ELEC. POLE

EXIST.
ELEC. POLE

EXIST.
OVERHEAD
WIRING ABOVE
TO SERVICE MAST

EXIST. ELEC. 
SERV. MAST
AND MAIN 
DISCONNECT

EXIST.
STREET
LIGHT

EXIST.
STOP
SIGN

9
' 
- 

3
 1

/2
"

1
0

' 
- 

4
"

4' - 0"

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

5' - 0
 1/2"

9' - 0
"

1
8
' - 0

"

PARKING 
SPACE, TYP.

GILBERTS ZONING ORDINANCE AND LAND USE ORDINANCE, AND MUNICIPAL CODE OF GILBERTS, IL

ITEM DESCRIPTION REFERENCE ORDINANCE REQUIREMENT ACTUAL SHEET NO. REMARKS

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE

1.01 ZONING DISTRICT CHAPTER 4 (TABLE 4-6) C-1 C-1 G.001

1.02 MIN. LOT AREA CHAPTER 4 (TABLE 4-6) N/A 14,557 SF G.001

1.03 FLOOR TO AREA RATIO (MAX) CHAPTER 4 (TABLE 4-6) 5,823 SF = 40% 3,789 SF  = 26% G.001

1.04 BUILDING LOT COVERAGE CHAPTER 4 (TABLE 4-6) 5,095 SF = 35% 2,825 SF = 19% G.001

1.05 FRONT SETBACK CHAPTER 4 (TABLE 4-6) 15 FT 15 FT G.001

1.06 REAR SETBACK CHAPTER 4 (TABLE 4-6) 15 FT 15 FT G.001

1.07 SIDE SETBACKS CHAPTER 4 (TABLE 4-6) 10 FT 10 FT G.001

1.08 REAR YARD OPEN SPACE CHAPTER 4 (TABLE 4-6) 407 SF - G.001

1.09 BUILDING HEIGHT (MAX) / NO. OF FLOORS CHAPTER 4 (TABLE 4-6) 35FT MAX 26'-5" / 2 STORY G.001

CHAPTER 3 OCCUPANCY CLASS. AND USE

2.00 OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION 310.6 A-2 A-2

CHAPTER 5 GENERAL BUILDING HEIGHTS AND AREAS

3.00 ALLOWABLE BLDG HEIGHT IN FEET ABOVE
GRADE PLANE

TABLE 504.3 35 FT 35FT
A.201

3.01 ALLOWABLE NO. OF STORIES ABOVE GRADE
PLANE

TABLE 504.4 3 STORIES 2 STORY
A201

3.02 ALLLOWABLE BLDG AREA TABLE 506.2 5,000 SF 2,247 SF

3.03 INCIENTAL USES TABLE 509 R-5 BOILER AND FURNACE
ROOMS: 1 HR

1 HR

CHAPTER 6 TYPES OF CONSTRUCTION

4.00 FIRE RESISTANCE RATING REQUIREMENTS TABLE 601 VA VA FIRST FLOOR
ADDITION

4.01 EXTERIOR BEARING WALL TABLE 601 1 HR 1 HR A.001

4.02 INTERIOR BEARING WALL TABLE 601 1 HR 1 HR A.001

4.03 EXTERIOR NON-BEARING WALL TABLE 602 1 HR 1 HR A.001

4.04 INTERIOR NON-BEARING WALL TABLE 601 0 HR 0 HR A.001

4.05 FLOOR CONSTRUCTION & ASSOCIATED
SECOND MEMBERS

TABLE 601 1 HR 1 HR
A.001

4.06 ROOF CONSTRUCTION & ASSOCIATED
SECOND. MEMBERS

TABLE 601 1/2 HR 1/2 HR
A.001

CHAPTER 7 FIRE AND SMOKE PROTECTION FEATURES

5.00 MINIMUM DISTANCE OF PROJECTION TABLE 705.2

5.00a 2 FT TO LESS THAN 3 FT 24 IN 12 IN

5.01 CORNICES, EAVE OVERHANGS, BAY
WINDOWS, ORIEL WINDOWS AND SIMILAR
DECORATIVE PROJECTIONS ON BLDGS NOT
EXCEEDING 40 FT IN BLDG HEIGHT

TABLE 705.2.1 0 FT TO LESS THAN 3 FT:
PERMITTED

12 IN PROJECTIONS

CHAPTER 8 INTERIOR FINISHES

6.00 INTERIOR WALL AND CLG FINISHES TABLE 803.13 CLASS A CLASS A

6.01 MIN OPENING AREA R310.2 NET CLEAR OPENING NOT <
5.7SF OR NET CLEAR HEIGHT
NOT < 24IN & NET CLEAR WIDTH
NOT < 20IN

TBD

CHAPTER 10 MEANS OF EGRESS

7.00 TYPES OF EXITS 1010 DOORS DOORS

7.01 MIN NO. OF EXITS TABLE 1006.3.2 2 2

7.02 TRAVEL DISTANCE TO EXITS TABLE 1006.2.1 60 FT 60 FT

7.03 CEILING HEIGHT 1003.2 7'-6" MIN 9 FT

7.04 MINIMUM WIDTH OF EXITS 1010.1.1 32" MIN 36" PROVIDED

7.05 SWING OF EXIT DOORS 1010.1.2.1 x<50 OCCUPANT: NOT IN
DIRECTION OF EGRESS

INWARD SWING

7.06 STAIRWAY HEADROOM 1011.3 84 IN MIN. > 84 IN

7.07a MAX RISER HEIGHT 1011.5.2 (EXCEPTION 3) 8 IN 8 IN

7.07b MIN TREAD DEPTH 1011.5.2 (EXCEPTION 3) 9 IN 9 IN (INCLUDING NOSING)

7.07c NOSING 1011.5.2 (EXCEPTION 3) 1 IN (MIN) - 1 1/4 IN (MAX) 1 IN

7.08 LANDINGS (VERTICAL RISE) 1011.8 (EXCEPTION 2) 12'-7" MAX BETWEEN LEVELS < 12 FT

7.09 HANDRAILS 1011.11.1 HANDRAIL ON ONE SIDE 1 HANDRAIL PROVIDED

ENERGY CONSERVATION CODE

8.00 CLIMATE ZONE TABLE 502.2(1) ZONE 5 ZONE 5

8.01 WALL R-VALUE TABLE 502.2(1) R13 + R-3.8 CI R-20

8.02 CEILING R-VALUE TABLE 502.2(1) R-38 R-38

8.03 FLOOR R-VALUE TABLE 502.2(1) R-30 R-30

8.04 BASEMENT WALL R-VALUE TABLE 502.2(1) R-7.5 CI R-10

8.05 SLAB R-VALUE AND DEPTH TABLE 502.2(1) N/A N/A

SCALE:

DATE:

SHEET TITLE:

CITY APPROVAL STAMP:

DRAWING INDEX

STAMP:

As indicated

2
/1

3
/2

0
2
3
 7

:1
4
:2

0
 A

M

G.001

3
2

 E
. 

H
IG

G
IN

S
 R

D
G

IL
B

E
R

T
S

, 
IL

 6
0
1

3
6

P
U

B
 7

2
 F

I
R

S
T

 F
L

O
O

R
 A

D
D

I
T

I
O

N

T
H

O
M

A
S

 R
. 

T
R

IE
R

COVER SHEET

01/11/23

F
IR

S
T

 F
L

O
O

R
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 T

O
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 P

U
B

 A
N

D
 G

R
IL

L

SCALE:  1" = 10'-0"
1

ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN

PUB 72 FIRST FLOOR ADDITION
APPLICABLE CODES

• INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE/2003.
• INTERNATIONAL MECHANICAL CODE/2003.
• INTERNATIONAL FUEL GAS CODE/2003.
• NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE 2002 NFPA 70.
• INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE/2003.
• ILLINOIS PLUMBING CODE/2014.
• INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE/2003.
• INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE/2003.
• INTERNATIONAL URBAN - WILDLAND INTERFACE CODE/2003.
• INTERNATIONAL ENERGY CONSERVATION CODE/2009.

N

SCALE:  12" = 1'-0"

ZONING MAP

PROJECT
SITE

SCALE:  12" = 1'-0"

VICINITY MAP

No. Description Date

1 ISSUED FOR PERMIT 01/23/23

2 REVISION 1 02/13/23

G.001 COVER SHEET

G.002 GEN. NOTES & SYMBOLS

A.101 EXISTING FIRST FLOOR DEMO AND PROPOSED
FOUNDATION PLANS

A.102 PROPOSED 1ST FLOOR AND ROOF PLANS

A.201 BUIDING ELEVATIONS

A.202 BUILDING ELEVATIONS

A.400 TYPICAL DETAILS

H.100 HVAC FLOOR PLANS

E.101 1ST FLOOR ELECTRICAL PLAN

2

2



A101

1
SIM

1

A101

SIM

1

A101

SIM

N

1i

1i
L:X.XX
V:X.XX

ELEVATION TAG

SECTION TAG

CALLOUT TAG

SPOT ELEVATION

NORTH ARROW

DOOR TAG

WINDOW TAG

FLOOR NAME
FLOOR ELEVATION

EXISTING WALL

DEMOLISHED WALL

NEW WALL

DIMENSION

WALL TAG

X' - X"

XX.X

IN INCHES

INFO INFORMATION

INSUL INSULATION

INT INTERIOR

JST JOIST

KIT KITCHEN

LAV LAVATORY

LB POUNDS

LGTH LENGTH

LL LIVE LOAD

LOC LOCATION

LT LIGHT

LTG LIGHTING

LVL LAMINATED VENEER LUMBER

MAS MASONRY

MATL MATERIAL

MAX MAXIMUM

MIN MINIMUM

MISC MISCELLANEOUS

MO MASONRY OPENING

MTD MOUNTED

N NORTH

NIC NOT IN CONTRACT

NL NATURAL LIGHT

NTS NOT TO SCALE

NV NATURAL VENTILATION

OC ON CENTER

OPG OPENING

PART PARTITION

PLBG PLUMBING

PLYWD PLYWOOD

PNL PANEL

PSI POUNDS PER SQUARE INCH

PVC POLYVINYL CHLORIDE

QTY QUANTITY

R RISER

REINF REINFORCEMENT

REM REMOVED

REQD REQUIRED

REV REVISION

RM ROOM

S SOUTH

SCHED SCHEDULE

SIM SIMILAR

SL SLOPE

SR SUPPLY REGISTER

SS STAINLESS STEEL

STD STANDARD

STL STL

STOR STORAGE

STRUCT STRUCTURAL

T/CLG TOP OF CEILING

T/CON TOP OF CONCRETE

T/GRADE TOP OF GRADE

T/STL TOP OF STEEL

T/W TOP OF WALL

THK THICKNESS

TYP TYPICAL

UL UNDERWRITTERS LABORATORY

UON UNLESS NOTES OTHERWISE

V VINYL

VIF VERIFY IN FIELD

W WALL

W/ WITH

W/O WITHOUT

WC WATER CLOSET

WD WALL DIFFUSER

WDW WINDOW

WF WIDE FLANGE

WH WATER HEATER

WS WASTE STACK, WATERSTOP

YD YARD

A/C AIR CONDITION

AB ANCHOR BOLT

ACT ACOUSTICAL CEILING TILE

ADDTL ADDITIONAL

AFF ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR

AGGR AGGREAGATE

AGL ANGLE

ALUM ALUMINUM

AP ACCESS PANEL

APPROX APROXIMATE

ARCH ARCHITECTURAL

ASPH ASPHALT

BD BOARD

BLDG BUILDING

BLKG BLOCKING

BM BEAM

BOTT BOTTOM

BRK BRICK

CAB CABINET

CD CEILING DIFFUSER

CIP CAST-IN-PLACE

CLG CEILING

CMU CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT

COL COLUMN

CONC CONCRETE

COND CONDITION

CONST CONSTRUCTION

CONT CONTINUATION

CPT CARPET

CR CEILING REGISTER

CT CERAMIC TILE

CW COLD WATER

DEMO DEMOLISH, DEMOLITION

DIM DIMENSION

DL DEAD LOAD

DR DOOR

DS DOWNSPOUT

DTL DETAIL

DWG DRAWING

EA EACH

ELEC ELECTRICAL

ENCL ENCLOSURE

EQ EQUAL

EQUIP EQUIPMENT

EXH EXHAUST

EXIST EXISTING

EXT EXTERIOR

FB FACE BRICK

FD FLOOR DIFFUSER

FD FLOOR DRAIN

FDN FOUNDATION

FF FINISHED FLOOR

FIX FIXTURE

FLASH FLASHING

FLR FLOOR

FTG FOOTING

FUR FURNACE

FURR FURRING

FUT FUTURE

GA GAUGE

GALV GALVANIZED

GL GLASS

GR GRADE

GRD GROUND

GUTT CUTTER

GYP GYPSUM

HGT HEIGHT

HR HOUR

HVAC HEATING VENTILATION AIR
CONDITION

HW HOT WATER

ID INSIDE DIAMETER

ABBREVIATIONSSYMBOLS
32 PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS (SCOPE OF WORK) - ALL MATERIALS SHALL BE INSTALLED IN STRICT

ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURER'S WRITTEN SPECIFICATIONS OR
MATERIAL'S INSTITUTE STANDARDS. WHERE THE MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDED
DETAILS ARE USED, THE MANUFACTURER SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE
PERFORMANCE OF THEIR PRODUCT. ALL ITEMS NOT SPECIFICALLY MENTIONED THAT
ARE REQUIRED TO MAKE THE WORK COMPLETE AND OPERATIONAL SHALL BE
INCLUDED.

33 INSTALLATION AND STORAGE - ALL MATERIALS, SUPPLIES AND EQUIPMENT SHALL BE INSTALLED
PER MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS AND PER APPLICABLE CODES
AND REQUIREMENTS.  MATERIAL STORED ON SITE SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM
DAMAGE BY MOISTURE, WIND, SUN, ABUSE OR ANY OTHER HARMFUL AFFECTS.

34 EXECUTION REQUIREMENTS - THE EXECUTION OF ALL WORK SHALL BE IN STRICT ACCORDANCE
WITH THESE SPECIFICATIONS AND MANUFACTURER'S WRITTEN
SPECIFICATIONS OR MATERIAL'S INSTITUTE STANDARDS. WHERE THE
MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDED DETAILS ARE USED, THE MANUFACTURER SHALL
BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PERFORMANCE OF THEIR PRODUCT. ALL WORK NOT
SPECIFICALLY MENTIONED THAT IS REQUIRED TO MAKE THE WORK COMPLETE AND
OPERATIONAL SHALL BE INCLUDED.

35 CONSTRUCTION SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE NATIONAL, STATE AND LOCAL BUILDING
CODES.  IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO INSURE
COMPLIANCE WITH SAID CODES AND MODIFY THE SPECIFICATIONS AS NEEDED TO
COMPLY WITH SUCH CODES.

36 MEASUREMENTS - THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CHECK AND VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS.

37 GENERAL - CONTRACTOR SHALL REVIEW CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS AND PROVIDE LABOR AND
MATERIALS PERTAINING TO CONCRETE AS REQUIRED IN SAID
DOCUMENTS AND AS SPECIFIED HEREIN, WHILE COMPLYING WITH ALL APPLICABLE
BUILDING CODES.

1 ALL CONSTRUCTION SHOULD BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE VILLAGE OF
GILBERTS BUILDING CODES, AMENDMENTS, AND ALL OTHER APPLICABLE
FEDERAL, STATES, AND LOCAL LAWS AND ORDINANCES, ACCESSIBILITY CODES, STANDARD, AND
REGULATORY AGENCIES.

2 ALL REFERENCES TO CODES, SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARD REFERRED TO IN THE
SPECIFICATIONS AND / OR DRAWINGS SHALL MEAN THE LATEST EDITION, AMENDMENT OR
REVISION
OF SUCH REFERENCE IN EFFECT AS OF THE LATEST DATE OF THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.
ALL WORK SHOULD COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS, POLICIES, AND PROCEDURES OF THE
OWNER.

3 DRAWINGS ARE TO BE ISSUED TO THE SUBCONTRACTORS IN COMPLETE SETS SO THAT THE
FULL EXTENT OF WORK IS SHOWN AND COORDINATION OF WORK IS MADE POSSIBLE.

4 ALL WORK SHALL BE OF THE HIGHEST QUALITY FOLLOWING THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS,
PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS, MANUFACTURERS SPECIFICATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS, AND
THE
BEST ACCEPTED TRADE PRACTICES AND STANDARDS.

5 DETAILS SHOWN ARE INTENDED TO BE INDICATIVE OF THE PROFILES AND TYPES OF THE DETAIL
REQUIRED FOR WORK. DETAILS NOT SHOWN ARE SIMILAR IN CHARACTER TO THOSE DETAILED.

6 EACH CONTRACTOR SHALL KEEP ACCURATE RECORDS OF ALL WORK WHICH DIFFERS FROM
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS SO THAT ACCURATE RECORD DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS CAN BE
KEPT AND PROVIDED TO THE OWNER AT PROJECT CLOSE OUT.

7 EACH CONTRACTOR SHALL VISIT THE SITE AND BE KNOWLEDGEABLE OF CONDITIONS THEREOF,
FAILURE TO EXAMINE THE SITE AND DETERMINE EXISTING CONDITIONS OR NATURE OF NEW
CONSTRUCTION, OR NATURE AND EXTEND THE WORK TO BE PERFORMED BY OTHER TRADES
WILL
NOT BE CONSIDERED A BASIS FOR GRANTING OF ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION.

8 THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INVESTIGATE, VERIFY AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL REQUIREMENTS
OF THE PROJECT AND SHALL NOTIFY THE ARCHITECT OF ANY CONDITIONS CONTRARY TO THE
CONSTRUCTIONS DOCUMENTS THAT REQUIRE MODIFICATION BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH THE
WORK.

9 THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT ALL EXISTING SITE ELEMENTS FROM DAMAGE DUE TO THE
CONSTRUCTIONS OPERATIONS, AND REPAIR OR REPLACE ANY ELEMENTS DAMAGED DURING THE
PROJECT.

10 ANY UTILITY SHUT-OFFS AS REQUIRED BY THE CONTRACTOR FOR COMPLETION OF THEIR WORK
SUCH AS ELECTRICAL, GAS, METER, SEWER, ETC. MUST BE SCHEDULE WITH THE OWNER PRIOR
TO
COMMENCING WORK.

11 DO NOT SCALE THE DRAWINGS, DIMENSIONS SHALL GOVERN, LARGE SCALE DRAWINGS SHALL
GOVERN OVER SMALL SCALE. WHERE A DISCREPANCY MAY EXIST BETWEEN DRAWINGS AND
SPECIFICATIONS, THE MORE RESTRICTIVE THE MORE RESTRICTIVE OR EXPENSIVE
REQUIREMENTS
SHALL GOVERN.

12 THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSION ON SITE, AND SHALL NOTIFY THE ARCHITECT IN
WRITING OF ANY DISCREPANCIES, OMISSIONS AND / OR CONFLICTS BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH
THE WORK.

13 ALL PARTITIONS ARE DIMENSIONED TO THE FACE, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. WHERE SPECIFIC
DIMENSIONS, DETAILS AND / OR DESIGN INTENT CANNOT BE DETERMINED, NOTIFY THE
ARCHITECT
IN WRITING BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH ANY WORK IN QUESTION.

14 DOOR OPENINGS THAT ARE NOT DIMENSIONALLY LOCATED ARE TO BE CENTERED BETWEEN
WALLS OR POSITIONED WITH ONE JAM CASING TRIM AGAINST AN ADJACENT WALL OR COLUMN AS
SHOWN IN THE PLANS AND / OR DETAILS.

15 REFER TO THE SPECIFICATIONS AND ARCHITECTURAL, MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, PLUMING,
AND ADDITIONAL CONSULTANT'S DRAWINGS FOR FULL COORDINATION OF WORK.

16 THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE ADDITIONAL SUPPORT OR CONCEALED
BLOCKING FOR INSTALLATION OF HAND RAILS, MILLWORK, WINDOW TREATMENTS, WALL PANELS,
GRAB BARS, AND ALL OTHER SURFACE MOUNTED COMPONENTS.

17 THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE ADDITIONAL AND VERIFY THE EXACT SIZE AND LOCATION
OF ALL FLOOR PENETRATIONS AND OPENINGS IN WALLS
AND CEILINGS WITH EACH OF THE RESPECTIVE MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL,
PLUMING, AND FIRE PROTECTION DRAWINGS, ALL PARTITIONS SHALL
ADEQUATELY BRACED AND OPENINGS REINFORCED. SUBMIT COORDINATED
DRAWING OF ALL PENETRATIONS FOR REVIEW.

18 GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE ALL LIGHTING FIXTURES, ELECTRICAL DEVISES, AND
DUCT WORK LAYOUT, AND SHALL IDENTIFY ALL POTENTIAL
CONFLICTS INVOLVING ELEMENTS WITH IN THE CEILING CAVITY. ANY
VARIATIONS OR CONFLICTS WITH CEILING HEIGHT SHOWN SHALL BE
REVIEWED WITH THE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

19 THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE ARCHITECT IN ADVANCE OF ANY MEP /FP DEVICES
REQUIRED AS PART OF THE SPECIFIED SYSTEM WHICH ARE TO
BE MOUNTED IN FINISH SPACES AND ARE NOT LOCATED IN THE ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS. THE
ARCHITECT WILL DETERMINE THE MOUNTING LOCATION, HEIGHT AND DETAIL FOR ATTACHMENT.

20 FIELD-VERIFICATION OF EXISTING CONDITIONS RELATED TO SPECIFIC PORTIONS OF THE WORK
SHALL BE UNDERTAKEN IN ADVANCE TO ALLOW FOR
THE TIMELY IDENTIFICATION OF EXISTING CONDITIONS THAT MAY AFFECT THE
SCHEDULED INSTALLATION OF NEW WORK AS DESIGN AND DETAIL, AND TO
AVOID UNDUE AND UNREASONABLE DELAYS TO THE PROJECTS SHOULD
THOSE CONDITIONS BE DISCOVERED. TIMELY IDENTIFICATIONS OF SUCH
CONDITIONS SHALL PROVIDE FOR A MINIMUM PERIOD OF TEN (10) WORKING
DAYS DURING WHICH TIME THE ARCHITECT WILL EVALUATE THE CONDITIONS
AND MAKE RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ACCOMMODATING THE NEW WORK.

21 IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO ASSIST THE ARCHITECT IN MAKING THEIR
EVALUATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS BY PROVIDING I A
TIMELY MANNER, IN NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER, ACCURATE AND
COMPLETE DRAWINGS, SKETCHES, AND PHOTOGRAPHS SUFFICIENT TO
CLEARLY DESCRIBE DISCREPANCIES, CONFLICTS, CONCEALED OR
OTHERWISE UN-ANTICIPATED EXISTING CONDITIONS AFFECTING NEW
CONSTRUCTION.

22 THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FURTHER ASSIST THE ARCHITECT BY PROVIDING IN A TIMELY MANNER
PREPARED SOLUTIONS TO UNANTICIPATED EXISTING
CONDITIONS.

23 THE ARCHITECT HAS ENDEAVOR TO IDENTIFY AS COMPLETELY AS POSSIBLE IN THE DRAWINGS
AND SPECIFICATIONS EXISTING ITEMS OF EQUIPMENT AND
CONSTRUCTION THAT ARE REQUIRED TO BE REMOVED OR OTHERWISE
DEMOLISHED SO AS TO ALLOW THE EXECUTION OF NEW WORK.

24 CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR IDENTIFYING ANY UNFINISHED WALL AREAS THAT MAY BE
EXPOSED AS A RESULT OF ADJUSTING FINISHED CEILING
HEIGHTS. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR FINISHING THESE AREAS
TO MATCH EXISTING ADJACENT FINISH AREAS AND FIRE-RATED ASSEMBLIES.

25 IT IS THE RESPONSIBLE OF THE CONTRACTOR TO IDENTIFY POINTS OF ACCESS TO THE BUILDING
AND TO VERIFY MINIMUM CLEARANCES AVAILABLE
FOR USE IN TRANSPORTING NECESSARY CONSTRUCTION MACHINERY,
EQUIPMENT, MATERIALS, AND COMPONENTS INTO THE BUILDING. USE OF
SUCH POINT OF ACCESS SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE OWNER.

26 HE CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE WITH HIS PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER THAT THE MEANS AND
METHODS ALL TEMPORARY MEASURES REQUIRED
DURING ALL PHASES OF WORK AND COORDINATE WITH THE CAPACITY OF THE

EXISTING BUILDING STRUCTURE.

27 MAINTAIN AT THE JOB SITE ONE COPY OF ALL DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS, APPROVED SHOP
DRAWINGS, FIELD ORDERS, AND OTHER CONTRACT MODIFICATIONS,
AND OTHER APPROVED DOCUMENTS SUBMITTED BY THE CONTRACTOR IN
COMPLIANCE WITH VARIOUS SECTIONS OF THE SPECIFICATIONS.

28 EACH OF THESE CONTRACTOR'S PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS SHALL BE CLEARLY MARKED
"PROJECT RECORD COPY", MAINTAINED IN GOOD CONDITION, AVAILABLE ALL
TIMES FOR OBSERVATION BY THE ARCHITECT, AND NOT USED FOR CONSTRUCTION
PURPOSES.

29 MARKED ON THE MOST APPROPRIATE DOCUMENTS TO SHOW SIGNIFICANT CHANGES MADE
DURING THE CONSTRUCTION PROCESS, AND SIGNIFICANT DETAIL NOT SHOWN
IN THE ORIGINAL CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. THE INFORMATION GIVEN   SHALL
INCLUDE, BUT NOT LIMITED TO:

30 UPON COMPLETION OF THE WORK, THE CONTRACTOR, SHALL PROVIDE THE OWNER COMPLETE
DOCUMENTS MARKED "PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS" SHOWING
CHANGES TO BE ORIGINAL DOCUMENTS AS PER SPECIFICATIONS.

31 ALL CONDUIT, PIPING, DUCTWORK, AND MECHANICAL SYSTEM SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH IN OR
TIGHT TO THE UNDERSIDE OF STRUCTURE WHERE FEASIBLE.

GENERAL NOTES

G.001 COVER SHEET

G.002 GEN. NOTES & SYMBOLS

A.101 EXISTING FIRST FLOOR DEMO AND PROPOSED
FOUNDATION PLANS

A.102 PROPOSED 1ST FLOOR AND ROOF PLANS

A.201 BUIDING ELEVATIONS

A.202 BUILDING ELEVATIONS

A.400 TYPICAL DETAILS

H.100 HVAC FLOOR PLANS

E.101 1ST FLOOR ELECTRICAL PLAN

SCALE:

DATE:

SHEET TITLE:

CITY APPROVAL STAMP:

DRAWING INDEX

STAMP:

12" = 1'-0"

2
/1

3
/2

0
2
3
 7

:1
4
:2

0
 A

M

G.002

3
2

 E
. 

H
IG

G
IN

S
 R

D
G

IL
B

E
R

T
S

, 
IL

 6
0
1

3
6

P
U

B
 7

2
 F

I
R

S
T

 F
L

O
O

R
 A

D
D

I
T

I
O

N

T
H

O
M

A
S

 R
. 

T
R

IE
R

GEN. NOTES &
SYMBOLS

01/23/23

T
H

IR
D

 F
L

O
O

R
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 T

O
 A

N
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 T

W
O

 S
T

O
R

Y
 B

R
IC

K
B

U
IL

D
IN

G

No. Description Date

1 ISSUED FOR PERMIT 01/23/23



DN DN

EXISTING WALL (TO REMAIN)

DEMOLISHED WALL

NEW WALL (REFER TO SHEET 
A0.00 FOR 
PARTITION TYPES).

WALL LEGEND

EXISTING PUB SPACE

100

(N.I.C)

1 2

1
1

' 
- 

0
"

6
' 
- 

1
"

41' - 1"

2
4

' 
- 

7
"

6
' 
- 

8
 1

/2
"

EXISTING CONSTRUCTION
TO REMAIN

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION
(ADDITION)

EQ EQ EQ

41' - 1"

2
4

' 
- 

7
"

6
' 
- 

8
 1

/2
"

2
X

1
2

 D
.F

. 
#

2
@

 1
6

" 
O

.C
. 

T
Y

P
.

2
X

1
2

 D
.F

. 
#

2
@

 1
6

" 
O

.C
. 

T
Y

P
.

W8X28 W8X28 W8X28

EMBED
STL BEAM
4" INTO CONC.
WALL, TYP. (BOTH ENDS)

0' - 10"

0
' 
- 

1
0

"
0

' 
- 

1
0

"

EXISTING CONSTRUCTION
TO REMAIN

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION
(ADDITION)

EXISTING BUILDING BASMENT AND FOUNDATION TO REMAIN
(N.I.C.)

CRAWLSPACE

12"X12"X25" 
DEEP CONC.
FTG (TYP OF 2

3' - 9"

9
' 
- 

6
"

1
0

' 
- 

1
"

(2
) 

P
.T

. 
2

X
1

0

P.T. 2X8
D.F. #2 
@ 16" O.C.

24"X12" THICK CONC.
FTG W/3" CONT. #5 BARS

10" CONC. FDN
WALL, 42" DEEP
BELOW GRADE MIN.
W/#4 VERT BAR @ 56" 
O.C. MAX.

10 MIL VAPOR
RETARDER

1/2" COMPRESSIBLE
FILLER. ANCHOR NEW
CONC. WALL WITH EXISTING
W/#5 BAR @ 24" O.C. VERT.
EMBED 6" MIN INTO EXISTING
WALL W/MORTAR MIX

5
' 
- 

0
"

4" CONC. PAD
OVER 3" COMPACTED
GRANULAR BASE

0
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

3' - 0"

1/2" COMPRESSIBLE
FILLER. ANCHOR NEW
CONC. WALL WITH EXISTING
W/#5 BAR @ 24" O.C. VERT.
EMBED 6" MIN INTO EXISTING
WALL W/MORTAR MIX

FURNACE F-1
REFER TO MECH.
DWG FOR 
INFORMATION

HINGED ACCESS
PANEL ABOVE

2
X

1
0

 L
E

D
G

E
R

3
A.400

1

A.400

1

A.400

1

A.400

3
' 
- 

1
0

"

4' - 7"

P.T. 2X8
D.F. #2 
@ 16" O.C.

4" PERFORATED
PERIM. DRAIN TILE

2X10

(2
) 

2
X

1
0

(2
) 

2
X

1
0

A.101 DEMO KEYNOTES

1 DEMO EXISTING ASPHALT PAVEMENT AND PREP
SURFACE AS REQUIRED TO ACCOMMODATE NEW
FOUNDATION.

2 DEMO PORTION OF EXISTING WALL TO
ACCOMMODATE NEW STOREFRONT.

SCALE:

DATE:

SHEET TITLE:

CITY APPROVAL STAMP:

DRAWING INDEX

STAMP:

As indicated

2
/1

3
/2

0
2
3
 7

:1
4
:0

5
 A

M

A.101

3
2

 E
. 

H
IG

G
IN

S
 R

D
G

IL
B

E
R

T
S

, 
IL

 6
0
1

3
6

P
U

B
 7

2
 F

I
R

S
T

 F
L

O
O

R
 A

D
D

I
T

I
O

N

T
H

O
M

A
S

 R
. 

T
R

IE
R

EXISTING FIRST
FLOOR DEMO
AND PROPOSED
FOUNDATION
PLANS

01/23/23

T
H

IR
D

 F
L

O
O

R
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 T

O
 A

N
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 T

W
O

 S
T

O
R

Y
 B

R
IC

K
B

U
IL

D
IN

G

SCALE:  3/16" = 1'-0"
1

FIRST FLOOR DEMOLITION PLAN

N

SCALE:  3/16" = 1'-0"
2

FOUNDATION PLAN

GENERAL NOTES:
1. CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY ALL EXISTING 
CONDITIONS AND DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO EXECUTING 
ANY WORK. ANY DEVIATIONS FROM THOSE SHOWN ON 
THE DRAWINGS SHALL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE 
OWNER AND ARCHITECT.

2. FOUNDATION PRESSURE SHALL BE DESIGNED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH TABLE 1804.2 OF IBC. ASSUME 
2,500 PSF.

3. CONCRETE IN FOOTINGS SHALL HAVE A DESIGN 
COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF NOT LESS THAN 2,500 PSI 
AT 28 DAYS.

4. GROUT SHALL HAVE A SPECIFIED COMPRESSIVE 
STRNEGTH OF NOT LESS THAN 2,000 PSI.

5. PROVIDE DAMPPROOFING AT ALL EXTERIOR 
CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALLS IN ACCRODANCE WITH 
IBC SECTION 1807.2.2. (BASIS OF DESIGN - W.R. 
MEADOWS SEALMASTIC EMULSION OR APPROVED EQ.).

6. PROVIDE MIN. R-10 MIN CONTINUOUS INSULATION ON 
INSIDE PERIMETER OF CRAWLSPACE. 

7. PROVIDE 10 MIL VAPOR RETARDER OVER 
UNEXCAVATED FILL. WRAP VERTICALLY AT EXTERIOR 
FOUNDATION WALLS AND FOOTINGS, TYP.

No. Description Date

1 ISSUED FOR PERMIT 01/23/23

2 REVISION 1 02/13/23

G.001 COVER SHEET

G.002 GEN. NOTES & SYMBOLS

A.101 EXISTING FIRST FLOOR DEMO AND PROPOSED
FOUNDATION PLANS

A.102 PROPOSED 1ST FLOOR AND ROOF PLANS

A.201 BUIDING ELEVATIONS

A.202 BUILDING ELEVATIONS

A.400 TYPICAL DETAILS

H.100 HVAC FLOOR PLANS

E.101 1ST FLOOR ELECTRICAL PLAN

2



DN DN

DN

DN

2
A.201

1
A.202

1
A.201

949 SF

DINING HALL

101

2
4

' 
- 

7
"

4
' 
- 

0
"

4' - 0" 32' - 0"

EXISTING PUB SPACE
TO REMAIN (N.I.C.)

(N.I.C)

ALIGN

ALIGN

41' - 1"

41' - 1"

40' - 6"

EXTERIOR DECK
P.T. 5/4"X6"X8FT 
BOARDS, TYP.

2

A.202

Sim

4' - 0"

1
1

' 
- 

1
1

 1
/2

"
1

1
' 
- 

5
 1

/2
"

EQ EQ

120"x48" HIGH BIFOLD WINDOW
(B.O.D LACANTINA)

96"x80" BIFOLD WINDOW
(B.O.D LACANTINA)

96"x80" BIFOLD DOOR
(B.O.D LACANTINA)

6
0

"X
8
0

" 
S

L
ID

IN
G

 D
O

O
R

CONCRETE
STAIR

AL. HANDRAIL

MOUNT 34" MAX A.F.F.

60" x 84" DBL
BARN DOOR
W/TOP MOUNTED
TRACK 

9
' 
- 

3
 1

/2
"

1
0

' 
- 

4
"

HARDWOOD FLOOR
TO MATCH EXISTING 
BUILDING FLOORING
(CONTRACTOR TO 
COORDINATE SELECTION
WITH OWNER)

EXISTING CONSTRUCTION
TO REMAIN

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION
(ADDITION)

CONDENSING
UNIT. REFER TO
MECH. DWGS

(64 OCCUPANTS MAX)

36" X 80"
FIBERGLASS
EXTERIOR DOOR
(EIT CAPACITY 

HINGED
ACCESS FLOOR
PANEL

2' - 6" 1' - 1 1/2"

2
' 
- 

0
"

0
' 
- 

1
1

"

EW.1

EW.1

EW.1

EW.1

R @ 0' - 7 1/2"4

5
' 
- 

0
"

3' - 0"

4" CONC. PAD
W/6X6-W1.2XW1.2
WWF REINF. OVER
3" GRAVEL BASE

F
R

O
N

T
 Y

A
R

D
 S

E
T

B
A

C
K

 M
IN

.

1
5

'  -
 0

"

SIDE YARD SETBACK MIN.
10' - 0

"

6
" 

/ 
1

'-
0

"
6

" 
/ 
1

'-
0

"

EXISTING CONSTRUCTION
TO REMAIN

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION
(ADDITION)

42' - 1"

1
2

' 
- 

9
 1

/2
"

1
2

' 
- 

9
 1

/2
"

ICE AND WATER
SHIELD 24" WIDE MIN.

RIDGE VENT

2
X

1
2
 D

.F
. 

#
2

 
R

A
F

T
E

R
S

 @
 1

6
" 

O
.C

. 
M

A
X

2
X

1
2
 D

.F
. 

#
2

 
R

A
F

T
E

R
S

 @
 1

6
" 

O
.C

. 
M

A
X

ALIGN

6X6 BEVELED 
PRE-FINISHED AL.
GUTTER, TYP.

ARCH. ASPHALT SHINGLES
OVER 20# BUILDERS FELT
OVER 1/2" PLYWOOD SHEATHING

ARCH. ASPHALT SHINGLES
OVER 20# BUILDERS FELT
OVER 1/2" PLYWOOD SHEATHING

EXISTING ROOF TO REMAIN
(N.I.C.)

EXISTING WALL (TO REMAIN)

DEMOLISHED WALL

NEW WALL (REFER TO SHEET 
A0.00 FOR 
PARTITION TYPES).

WALL LEGEND

2X6 WD STUD 
@ 16" OC MAX
W/MIN R-20 
BATT INSUL

(1) INT 5/8" TYPE X
GYP BOARD PNL

FLR

INTEXT

(2) 2X6 WD STUD 
TOP PLATE

2X6 WD STUD 
SILL PLATE

FIRE RESISTIVE
SEALANT

FIRE RESISTIVE 
SEALANT

TYVEK BUIDLING
WRAP

PLAN VIEW

5
/8

"
5

 1
/2

"
5

/8
"

0
' 
- 

6
 3

/4
"

5/8" PLYWD
SHEATHING

INT

EXT

16" O.C.

SECTION VIEW

VERT. 1X6 
WOOD PANEL
(PAINT RED) MATCH
ADJACENT BUILDING
COLOR

1X HORIZ.
FURRING 
STRIPS, TYP.

SCALE:

DATE:

SHEET TITLE:

CITY APPROVAL STAMP:

DRAWING INDEX

STAMP:

As indicated

2
/1

3
/2

0
2
3
 7

:1
4
:0

6
 A

M

A.102

3
2

 E
. 

H
IG

G
IN

S
 R

D
G

IL
B

E
R

T
S

, 
IL

 6
0
1

3
6

P
U

B
 7

2
 F

I
R

S
T

 F
L

O
O

R
 A

D
D

I
T

I
O

N

T
H

O
M

A
S

 R
. 

T
R

IE
R

PROPOSED 1ST
FLOOR AND
ROOF PLANS

01/23/23

F
IR

S
T

 F
L

O
O

R
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 T

O
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 P

U
B

 A
N

D
 G

R
IL

L

N

SCALE:  3/16" = 1'-0"
1

PROPOSED 1ST  FLOOR PLAN

SCALE:  3/16" = 1'-0"
2

T/ROOF

No. Description Date

1 ISSUED FOR PERMIT 01/23/23

2 REVISION 1 02/13/23

GENERAL NOTES:
1. CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY ALL EXISTING 
CONDITIONS AND DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO EXECUTING 
ANY WORK. ANY DEVIATIONS FROM THOSE SHOWN ON 
THE DRAWINGS SHALL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE 
OWNER AND ARCHITECT.

2. ALL EXTERIOR WALLS SHALL BE 2X6 WITH R-20 
FIRBERGLASS INSULATION WITHIN THE CAVITY, U.N.O.

3. ALL WOOD SHALL BE DOUGLAS FIR LARCH #2 U.N.O.
4. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH THE OWNER 
FOR ALL FINISHES PRIOR TO ORDERING. 

5. ALL BIFOLD DOOR SHALL BE FROM LACANTINA OR 
APPROVED EQUAL. 

6. ROOF SHALL BE A CLASS A ROOF ASSEMBLY.
7. ALL INTERIOR FINISHES SHALL BE CLASS A.
8. EGRESS DOORS SHALL HAVE PANIC HARDWARE.

N

G.001 COVER SHEET

G.002 GEN. NOTES & SYMBOLS

A.101 EXISTING FIRST FLOOR DEMO AND PROPOSED
FOUNDATION PLANS

A.102 PROPOSED 1ST FLOOR AND ROOF PLANS

A.201 BUIDING ELEVATIONS

A.202 BUILDING ELEVATIONS

A.400 TYPICAL DETAILS

H.100 HVAC FLOOR PLANS

E.101 1ST FLOOR ELECTRICAL PLAN

SCALE:  3" = 1'-0"
EW.1

EXT WOOD VERTICAL SIDING

2



GRADE
0' - 0"

FIRST LEVEL
2' - 6"

SECOND LEVEL
10' - 6"

T/RIDGE
16' - 5 5/16"

6
" 

/ 
1

'-
0

"

EXISTING CONSTRUCTION PROPOSED ADDITION

RIDGE VENT

ARCH. ASPHALT SHINGLES
(COLOR TO MATCH EXISTING)

PRE-FINISHED AL. GUTTER
BEVELED 6X6 W/SCREEN

36"X80" HINGED DOOR
W/PANIC HARDWARE

BIFOLD SLIDING
WINDOW. REFER TO 
PLAN FOR SIZE

4X4 P.T. GUARDRAIL
POST, TYP.

6X6 P.T. 
POST, TYP.

ROOF SLOPE TO
MATCH EXISTING
V.I.F.

HVAC COND. UNIT.
REFER TO MECH. DWG

GRADE
0' - 0"

FIRST LEVEL
2' - 6"

SECOND LEVEL
10' - 6"

T/RIDGE
16' - 5 5/16"

2ND LEVEL CLG.
17' - 6"

6
" 

/ 
1

'-
0

"

ARCH. ASPHALT
SHINGLES

RIDGE VENT

BIFOLD DOOR
SYSTEM. REFER TO PLAN
TYP.

PRE-FINISHED AL.
GUTTER BEVELED
6X6 W/SCREEN

PRE-FINISHED AL.
FASCIA

4X4 P.T.
RAIL POST, TYP.

ROOF SLOPE TO
MATCH EXISTING
V.I.F.

M
IN

.

3
' 
- 

6
"

2
' 
- 

6
"

EXISTING CONSTRUCTIONPROPOSED ADDITION

4
' 
- 

0
"6

' 
- 

6
"

SCALE:

DATE:

SHEET TITLE:

CITY APPROVAL STAMP:

DRAWING INDEX

STAMP:

1/4" = 1'-0"

2
/1

3
/2

0
2
3
 7

:1
4
:0

7
 A

M

A.201

3
2

 E
. 

H
IG

G
IN

S
 R

D
G

IL
B

E
R

T
S

, 
IL

 6
0
1

3
6

P
U

B
 7

2
 F

I
R

S
T

 F
L

O
O

R
 A

D
D

I
T

I
O

N

T
H

O
M

A
S

 R
. 

T
R

IE
R

BUIDING
ELEVATIONS

01/23/23

F
IR

S
T

 F
L

O
O

R
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 T

O
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 P

U
B

 A
N

D
 G

R
IL

L

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"A.102

1 NORTH ELEVATION

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"A.102

2 SOUTH ELEVATION

G.001 COVER SHEET

G.002 GEN. NOTES & SYMBOLS

A.101 EXISTING FIRST FLOOR DEMO AND PROPOSED
FOUNDATION PLANS

A.102 PROPOSED 1ST FLOOR AND ROOF PLANS

A.201 BUIDING ELEVATIONS

A.202 BUILDING ELEVATIONS

A.400 TYPICAL DETAILS

H.100 HVAC FLOOR PLANS

E.101 1ST FLOOR ELECTRICAL PLAN

No. Description Date

1 ISSUED FOR PERMIT 01/23/23

2 REVISION 1 02/13/23

VERTICAL RIBBED
PRIMED WOOD
SIDING TO BE PAINTED
IN FIELD (RED TO MATCH EXISTING)

2



GRADE
0' - 0"

FIRST LEVEL
2' - 6"

SECOND LEVEL
10' - 6"

T/RIDGE
16' - 5 5/16"

2ND LEVEL CLG.
17' - 6"

6" 

1'-0"

6" 

1'-0"

BUILDING
SIGN

A.400

2
TYP.

B/FOOTING
-4' - 0"

GRADE
0' - 0"

FIRST LEVEL
2' - 6"

1ST LEVEL CLG.
9' - 6"

T/RIDGE
16' - 5 5/16"

2
' 
- 

0
"

3
' 
- 

6
"

2
' 
- 

6
"

1
' 
- 

4
 1

/2
"

10" CONC. WALL

24"X10" CONC.
FTG.

10 MIL VAPOR RETARDER OVER 4" 
COMPACTED GRANULAR
BASE

2X12 FLR JOST 
D.F. LARCH #2 OR 
BETTER
@ 16" O.C.

1
' 
- 

0
"

1
' 
- 

3
"

12"X12" CONC. PIER

W8X28 STL BEAM

2X BLOCKING

SPRAYED APPLIED
DAMPROOFING
MEMBRANE

BIFOLD DOOR
BEYOND.

CEILING FAN

2X12 RAFTER @
16" O.C.

2X6 WD. STUD 
WALL @ 16" O.C. 
W/R-20 MIN. BATT 
INSUL.

42" HIGH
WOOD
GUARDRAIL

V
.I

.F
.

7
' 
- 

3
"

A.400

4

A.400

1

SCALE:

DATE:

SHEET TITLE:

CITY APPROVAL STAMP:

DRAWING INDEX

STAMP:

1/4" = 1'-0"

2
/1

3
/2

0
2
3
 7

:1
4
:1

5
 A

M

A.202

3
2

 E
. 

H
IG

G
IN

S
 R

D
G

IL
B

E
R

T
S

, 
IL

 6
0
1

3
6

P
U

B
 7

2
 F

I
R

S
T

 F
L

O
O

R
 A

D
D

I
T

I
O

N

T
H

O
M

A
S

 R
. 

T
R

IE
R

BUILDING
ELEVATIONS

01/23/23

F
IR

S
T

 F
L

O
O

R
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 T

O
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 P

U
B

 A
N

D
 G

R
IL

L

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"A.102

1 WEST ELEVATION
SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"A.102

2 ADDITION CROSS-SECTION

SCALE:
3

SOUTHWEST CORNER VIEW
SCALE:

4
NORTHWEST CORNER VIEW

No. Description Date

1 ISSUED FOR PERMIT 01/23/23

2 REVISION 1 02/13/23

G.001 COVER SHEET

G.002 GEN. NOTES & SYMBOLS

A.101 EXISTING FIRST FLOOR DEMO AND PROPOSED
FOUNDATION PLANS

A.102 PROPOSED 1ST FLOOR AND ROOF PLANS

A.201 BUIDING ELEVATIONS

A.202 BUILDING ELEVATIONS

A.400 TYPICAL DETAILS

H.100 HVAC FLOOR PLANS

E.101 1ST FLOOR ELECTRICAL PLAN

2



AL SOFFIT

FASCIA PNL

AL GUTTER

ARCH ASPHALT
SHINGLES

15# BUILDERS FELT

1/2" PLYWD SHEATHING

1/2" GYP BD

R-30 MIN 
BATT INSUL

(2) 2X6 TOP 
PLATE

R-20 MIN 
BATT INSUL

2X BLOCKING

EW.1

2X12 WD RAFTERS 
@ 16" O.C., TYP.

FLASHING

OVERHANG

1' - 0"

TYVEK - BUILDING WRAP

3
' 
- 

6
"

GR

12" DIAM
FTG

6X6 WD
POST

ANCHOR
BOLT

#3 TIES

4- #4 VERT
REINF

COL
BRACKET

LEDGER - REFER TO
PLANS

N
O

T
E

S

R
E

F
E

R
 T

O
 S

P
A

C
IN

G

3
/4

" 
M

IN
.

2" MIN.

5
" 

M
A

X

SPACING NOTES:

5.5" MIN. FOR 2X8
6.5" MIN. FOR 2X10
7.5" MIN. FOR SX12

HOT-DIP
GALVANIZED
LAG SCREW

2
" 

M
IN

.

TABLE 5 FOR SPACING

REFER TO

2' - 0"

0
' 
- 

1
0

"

M
IN

.

3
' 
- 

6
"

EW.1 REFER TO FLOOR
PLAN FOR JOIST SIZE

3/4" PLYWOOD
SUBFLOOR

1/2" ANCHOR
BOLT @ 6' O.C.
W/7" MIN
EMBEDMENT

2X6 PRESURE
TREATED SILL
PLATE

COUNTER
FLASHING

2" RIGID INSUL.
ADHERED TO
CONC. WALL

10 MIL VAPOR
RETARDER

R-30 BATT INSUL.

DAMP 
PROOFING

10" CONC. WALL W/
(2) #4 BAR TOP AND BOTTOM

LANDSCAPE
FABRIC

COMPACT
GRANULAR
BASE

4" PERFORATED
DRAIN TILE

CONC. FTG.
W/(3) CONT. #5
BARS 3" MIN. COVER

M
IN

.

1
' 
- 

0
"

SCALE:

DATE:

SHEET TITLE:

CITY APPROVAL STAMP:

DRAWING INDEX

STAMP:

As indicated

2
/1

3
/2

0
2
3
 7

:1
4
:1

6
 A

M

A.400

3
2

 E
. 

H
IG

G
IN

S
 R

D
G

IL
B

E
R

T
S

, 
IL

 6
0
1

3
6

P
U

B
 7

2
 F

I
R

S
T

 F
L

O
O

R
 A

D
D

I
T

I
O

N

T
H

O
M

A
S

 R
. 

T
R

IE
R

TYPICAL DETAILS

01/23/23

No. Description Date

1 ISSUED FOR PERMIT 01/23/23

SCALE:  1 1/2" = 1'-0"A.202

4 ROOF EAVE DETAIL

SCALE:  1" = 1'-0"A.202

2 CYLINDRICAL POST FOUNDATION DETAIL
SCALE:  1 1/2" = 1'-0"A.101

3 LEDGER CONNECTION DETAIL
SCALE:  1" = 1'-0"A.101

1 FOUNDATION DETAIL

G.001 COVER SHEET

G.002 GEN. NOTES & SYMBOLS

A.101 EXISTING FIRST FLOOR DEMO AND PROPOSED
FOUNDATION PLANS

A.102 PROPOSED 1ST FLOOR AND ROOF PLANS

A.201 BUIDING ELEVATIONS

A.202 BUILDING ELEVATIONS

A.400 TYPICAL DETAILS

H.100 HVAC FLOOR PLANS

E.101 1ST FLOOR ELECTRICAL PLAN



DN
DN

A
F

C
A

F
C

AFC AFC

AFCAFC

G
F

I

1111

11

1111

11

11

1

1

1 1

1
1

8

13 13

13

13 13 13

8

15 15

11

8

3

4

DINING HALL

101

EXISTING PUB SPACE

100

EXISTING
EXIT

EXISTING CONSTRUCTION
TO REMAIN

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION
(ADDITION)

1. ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR SHALL CONNECT NEW 
ELECTRICAL FIXTURES BACK TO SPARE CIRCUITS IN 
EXISTING ELEC. PANEL. 

2. ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE 15A CIRCUIT FOR 
ALL LIGHTING AND RECEPTACLES, U.N.O.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE LABELING IN ELECTRICAL 
PANEL SCHEDULE FOR ALL PROPOSED WORK.

GENERAL PLAN NOTES:

E

E

EM. LIGHT
W/BATTERY 
BACKUP, TYP.

PROPOSED 1ST LEVEL - ELECTRICAL SCHEDULE

TAG TYPE QTY REMARKS

1 ARC FAULT CIRCUIT OUTLET 6

3 DISCONNECT SWITCH 1

4 GFI OUTLET 1

8 SINGLE SWITCH 3

11 WALL SCONCE 7

13 RECESSED CAN 6

15 CEILING FAN 2

ELECTRICAL NOTES:

2002 ELECTRICAL CODE
ALL ELECTRICAL WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE FOLLOWING CODES AND ORDINANCES OF THE VILLAGE OF GILBERTS
ILLINOIS:
NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE NEC 2002, NFPA 70
GENERAL ELECTRICAL NOTES
SCOPE
ALL WORK TO BE COMPLETED UNDER THIS PHASE IS SUBJECT TO THE DESIGNFIRST CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT
SPECIFICATIONS.
1. ALL ELECTRICAL WORK SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH ALL THE NATIONAL, STATE AND LOCAL CODES,
    ORDINANCES AND HEALTH REGULATIONS SPECIFICALLY THE CHICAGO BUILDING CODE (WITH
    AMENDMENTS).
2. ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR SHALL THOROUGHLY FAMILIARIZE HIMSELF WITH THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND
    SHALL VERIFY EXISTING CONDITIONS AT THE JOB SITE BEFORE SUBMITTING BID. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPORT
    ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY. NO EXTRA COST WILL BE AUTHORIZED FOR FAILURE TO
    VERIFY ANY EXISTING CONDITIONS PRIOR TO BID.
3. ENTIRE INSTALLATION SHALL BE PERFORMED IN A FIRST CLASS WORKMANLIKE MANNER. THE COMPLETED
    SYSTEMS SHALL BE FULLY OPERATIONAL; ACCEPTANCE BY THE OWNER SHALL BE A CONDITION OF THE
    CONTRACT. START, ADJUST, AND CHECK PROPER OPERATION OF ALL SPECIFIED EQUIPMENT UNDER THIS
    CONTRACT. IN THE BID INCLUDE THE COST OF 1 YEAR WARRANTY SERVICE FOR ALL EQUIPMENT FROM DATE OF
    FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF THE WORK BY THE OWNER.
4. ALL WORK SHALL BE COORDINATED WITH OTHER TRADES TO AVOID OMISSIONS, INTERFERENCE, AND PRESERVE
    MAXIMUM HEADROOM. ALL WORK SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL LAWS, ORDINANCES, RULES AND REGULATIONS OF
    THE ALL GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITIES HAVING JURISDICTION. CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN AND PAY FOR ALL
    PERMITS AND REQUIRED INSPECTION FEES. ALL WORK SHALL MEET REQUIREMENTS OF LOCAL INSPECTION
    AUTHORITY. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL REQUIRED INSPECTIONS AND APPROVALS
    OF HIS WORK.
5. ELECTRICAL LAYOUT IS SCHEMATIC AND WORK SHALL BE INSTALLED TO MEET FIELD CONDITIONS AND
    EQUIPMENT SELECTED. PROVIDE SHOP DRAWINGS AS REQUIRED AND VERIFY CORRECTNESS OF EQUIPMENT
    SPECIFICATIONS.
6. CONDUIT SHALL BE CONCEALED WHERE POSSIBLE; WHERE EXPOSED; RUN IN STRAIGHT LINES PARALLEL AND/
    OR PERPENDICULAR TO BUILDING CONSTRUCTION. CONDUITS INSTALLED IN SLAB ON GRADE, UNDERGROUND OR
    IN AREAS SUBJECT TO MECHANICAL DAMAGE SHALL BE RIGID GALVANIZED OR INTERMEDIATE METAL TYPE.
    MINIMUM CONDUIT SHALL BE 1/2" DIA.
7. RECEPTACLES AND SWITCHES SHALL COMPLY WITH LOCAL CODES. VERIFY COLORS OF DEVICES WITH THE
    CONSTRUCTION SUPERINTENDENT. MOUNTING HEIGHTS SHALL BE AS FOLLOWS: SWITCHES @ 48" AFF,
    THERMOSTAT DIALS @ 58" AFF, OUTLETS @ 18" AFF.
8. ALL MATERIALS SHALL BE NEW AND BEAR THE UL. LABEL AND BE OF THE APPROPRIATE NFPA STANDARDS.
9. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE PROPER FIRE-PROOFING OF ALL CONDUIT PENETRATIONS OF ALL FLOOR AND CEILING
    PLANES.
10. IT IS INTENDED THAT THE EXISTING SYSTEM BE SHUT DOWN A MINIMUM TIME. SHUT DOWN SHALL BE
      COORDINATED WITH OWNER ON THE JOB SITE.

LIGHTING REQUIREMENTS:
1. PROVIDE EXTERIOR DISCONNECT ON NEW ELECTRICAL SERVICE.
2. RECESSED LIGHTS FOR INSULATED CEILINGS TO BE TYPE FOR DIRECT CONTACT WITH INSULATION
3. ANY CEILING ELECTRIC BOX WHICH COULD BE USED FOR A CEILING FAN SHALL BE IDENTIFIED FOR CEILING FAN
    SUPPORT

SMOKE AND CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS:
1. ALL SMOKE ALARM SHALL BE HARDWIRED WITH 110 VOLTS AND INTERCONNECTED.
2. INSTALL CARBON MONOXIDE DETECTORS ALL ROOMS WHERE GAS FIRED WATER HEATERS AND FURNACES ARE
LOCATED.

RECEPTACLE REQUIREMENTS:
1. IN ALL HABITABLE SPACE RECEPTACLES SHALL BE INSTALLED SO THAT NO POINT ALONG THE FLOOR LINE IN ANY
    WALL SPACE IS MORE THAN 6 FEET, MEASURED HORIZONTALLY FROM AN OUTLET IN THAT SPACE.
2. RECEPTACLE REQUIREMENTS IN COUNTER TOP LOCATIONS:
2A. WALL-COUNTER SPACE - A RECEPTACLE OUTLET SHALL BE INSTALLED AT EACH WALL COUNTER SPACE THAT IS
      12 IN. OR WIDER.
2B. RECEPTACLE OUTLETS SHALL BE INSTALLED SO THAT NO POINT ALONG THE WALL LINE IS MORE THAN 12FT.
      MEASURED HORIZONTALLY FROM RECEPTACLE
3. ALL ELECTRICAL DEVICES SHALL BE PLACED OR EQUIPPED TO PREVENT MOISTURE ACCUMULATION.
4. ALL RECEPTACLES INSIDE AREAS WITH PROXIMITY TO WET CONDITIONS OR EXTERIOR ARE TO BE GFI TYPE.

SCALE:

DATE:

SHEET TITLE:

CITY APPROVAL STAMP:

DRAWING INDEX

STAMP:

1/4" = 1'-0"

2
/1

3
/2

0
2
3
 7

:1
4
:1

6
 A

M

E.101

3
2

 E
. 

H
IG

G
IN

S
 R

D
G

IL
B

E
R

T
S

, 
IL

 6
0
1

3
6

P
U

B
 7

2
 F

I
R

S
T

 F
L

O
O

R
 A

D
D

I
T

I
O

N

T
H

O
M

A
S

 R
. 

T
R

IE
R

1ST FLOOR
ELECTRICAL
PLAN

01/23/23

T
H

IR
D

 F
L

O
O

R
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 T

O
 A

N
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 T

W
O

 S
T

O
R

Y
 B

R
IC

K
B

U
IL

D
IN

G

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"
1

PROPOSED 1ST  FLOOR ELECTRICAL PLAN

No. Description Date

1 ISSUED FOR PERMIT 01/23/23

G.001 COVER SHEET

G.002 GEN. NOTES & SYMBOLS

A.101 EXISTING FIRST FLOOR DEMO AND PROPOSED
FOUNDATION PLANS

A.102 PROPOSED 1ST FLOOR AND ROOF PLANS

A.201 BUIDING ELEVATIONS

A.202 BUILDING ELEVATIONS

A.400 TYPICAL DETAILS

H.100 HVAC FLOOR PLANS

E.101 1ST FLOOR ELECTRICAL PLAN

N



DN
DN

ALL DUCTWORK
UNDER FLOOR, TYP. 

ALL DUCTWORK IN CRAWLSPACE 
TO BE INSULATED, TYP. U.N.O.

HINGED
ACCESS FLOOR
PANEL

DINING HALL

101

EXISTING PUB SPACE

100

FLOOR REGISTER
TYP.

28X10
WALL RETURN
HI GRILLE

F-1

28X10
1500 CFM 
SUPPLY PLENUM

28X10
1500 CFM 
RETURN PLENUM

EXISTING CONSTRUCTION
TO REMAIN

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION
(ADDITION)

HEAT PUMP UNIT
FLEXX MODEL
FLEXX60HP230V1AO
OR EQ. REFER TO
SCHEDULE - INSTALL
OVER 4"
CONCRETE PAD

1
0

" 
D

IA
M

.

1
0

" 
D

IA
M

.

1
0

" 
D

IA
M

.
1

0
" 

D
IA

M
.

1
0

" 
D

IA
M

.

150,000 BTU/HR
AHU MODEL
CAUA-150 (REZNOR)

10X8
250 CFM
S/FLR. REG.

10X8
250 CFM
S/FLR. REG.

10X8
250 CFM
S/FLR. REG.

10X8
250 CFM
S/FLR. REG.

10X8
250 CFM
S/FLR. REG.

24X1020X1018X10

VD

VDVD

VD

VD

VOLUME
DAMPER (TYP)

2
8

X
1

0

N

SCALE:

DATE:

SHEET TITLE:

CITY APPROVAL STAMP:

DRAWING INDEX

STAMP:

1/4" = 1'-0"

2
/1

3
/2

0
2
3
 7

:1
4
:2

1
 A

M

H.100

3
2

 E
. 

H
IG

G
IN

S
 R

D
G

IL
B

E
R

T
S

, 
IL

 6
0
1

3
6

P
U

B
 7

2
 F

I
R

S
T

 F
L

O
O

R
 A

D
D

I
T

I
O

N

T
H

O
M

A
S

 R
. 

T
R

IE
R

HVAC FLOOR
PLANS

01/23/23

T
H

IR
D

 F
L

O
O

R
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 T

O
 A

N
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 T

W
O

 S
T

O
R

Y
 B

R
IC

K
B

U
IL

D
IN

G

No. Description Date

1 ISSUED FOR PERMIT 01/23/23

G.001 COVER SHEET

G.002 GEN. NOTES & SYMBOLS

A.101 EXISTING FIRST FLOOR DEMO AND PROPOSED
FOUNDATION PLANS

A.102 PROPOSED 1ST FLOOR AND ROOF PLANS

A.201 BUIDING ELEVATIONS

A.202 BUILDING ELEVATIONS

A.400 TYPICAL DETAILS

H.100 HVAC FLOOR PLANS

E.101 1ST FLOOR ELECTRICAL PLAN

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"
1

PROPOSED 1ST HVAC PLAN



UP DNUP DN

UP

UP

F
R

O
N

T
 Y

A
R

D

1
5

'  -
 0

"

SIDE YARD
10' - 0

"

RAMP

EXISTING 2-STORY FRAME
BUILDING W/BASEMENT

PROPOSED 1-STORY 
FRAME ADDITION 1,012 SF

R
E

A
R

 Y
A

R
D

1
5
' - 0

"

SIDE YARD10' - 0
"

4
8
.4

9
'

8
0
.6

7
'

132.55'

146.10'

6
.7

0
'

1
3
7
.4

5
'

8
4
.2

4
'

ELGIN (ILLINOIS ROUTE 72) STREET 
E. HIGGINS RD.

(TWO-WAY TRAFFIC)

EXISTING
ASPHALT PAVEMENT
AND PARKING

LANDSCAPING

LANDSCAPING

G
A

L
L
IG

A
N

 R
D

.

(T
W

O
-W

A
Y

 T
R

A
F
F

IC
)

EXISTING 
DECK

EXIST. CONC. SIDEWALK

E
X

IS
T

. C
O

N
C

. S
ID

E
W

A
L
K

EXIST.
ELEC. POLE

EXIST.
ELEC. POLE

EXIST.
OVERHEAD
WIRING ABOVE
TO SERVICE MAST

EXIST. ELEC. 
SERV. MAST
AND MAIN 
DISCONNECT

EXIST.
STREET
LIGHT

EXIST.
STOP
SIGN

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

5' - 0
 1/2"

9' - 0
"

1
8
' - 0

"

PARKING 
SPACE, TYP.

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2223

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

2' - 8
 1/2"

18' - 0
"

25' - 6
"

18' - 0
"

42' - 0
"

9
' - 0

"

FIRE TRUCK, TYP.

TURNING DIAMETER - W
ALL-TO-WALL

ø 75.72'

T
U

R
N

IN
G

 R
A

D
IU

S
 - C

U
R

B
-T

O
-C

U
R

B
R

 3
2
.9

7
'

FIRE TRUCK
PATH OF TRAVEL, TYP.

TURNING DIAMETER - WALL-TO-WALLø 75.72'

TU
R
N
IN

G
 R

A
D
IU

S
 - C

U
R
B
-TO

-C
U
R
B

R
 32.97'

SCALE:

DATE:

SHEET TITLE:

CITY APPROVAL STAMP:

DRAWING INDEX

STAMP:

1" = 10'-0"

3
/1

2
/2

0
2
3
 7

:5
9
:2

1
 P

M

GS.01

3
2

 E
. 

H
IG

G
IN

S
 R

D
G

IL
B

E
R

T
S

, 
IL

 6
0
1

3
6

P
U

B
 7

2
 F

I
R

S
T

 F
L

O
O

R
 A

D
D

I
T

I
O

N

T
H

O
M

A
S

 R
. 

T
R

IE
R

PROPOSED
PARKING & FIRE
TRUCK PATH
DIAGRAM

03/12/23

F
IR

S
T

 F
L

O
O

R
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 T

O
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 P

U
B

 A
N

D
 G

R
IL

L

No. Description Date

SCALE:  1" = 10'-0"
1

SITE PLAN - FIRE TRUCK PATH DIARGAM
N



 

ORDINANCE NO. 07-2023 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING  
A VARIANCE FROM THE GILBERTS UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE  

 
(38 East Higgins Road- Pub 72) 

 
 WHEREAS, Pub 72, Inc. (“Applicant”), is the occupant of the property located 38 E. 
Higgins Road, Gilberts, Illinois, which property is more specifically described in Exhibit A 
(“Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the current owner of the Property is the Home State Bank of Crystal Lake, 
as Trustee under a Trust Agreement dated October 5, 1988, and known as Trust 3523 (“Owner”); 
and  
 

WHEREAS, the Property is zoned in the C-1 Commercial zoning district; and 

WHEREAS, the Applicant currently operates a restaurant on the Property called “Pub 72 
Bar & Grill” (the “Restaurant”); and  

WHEREAS, the Applicant desires to expand the Restaurant on the Property to add an 
additional 1,000 square feet of net floor area; and 

WHEREAS, Section 9-1(B) of the Gilberts Unified Development Ordinance (“UDO”) 
provides the required number of off-street parking spaces for specific uses; and  

WHEREAS, with the expansion of the Restaurant and the corresponding increase in net 
floor area, the Property requires 38 off-street parking spaces under the UDO; and  

WHEREAS, the Applicant, with the permission of the Owner, has filed an application 
for a variance from Section 9-1(B) of the UDO to reduce the required off-street parking spaces 
for the Property from 38 spaces to 32 spaces (“Parking Variance”); and 

WHEREAS, the Gilberts Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals held a public 
hearing and reviewed the Applicant’s request for the Parking Variance on April 12, 2023, and at 
the conclusion of the public hearing voted to recommend approval of the Parking Variance; and  

WHEREAS, the Village Board makes the following findings of fact in reference to the 
Applicant’s request for approval of the Parking Variance for the Property: 

a. The Property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used 
only under the conditions allowed by the regulations in that district;  

 
b. The extraordinary or exceptional conditions of the Property requiring the request 

for the variances were not caused by the Applicant;  
 
c. The proposed variances will alleviate a peculiar, exceptional or undue hardship, 

as distinguished from a mere inconvenience or pecuniary hardship; 
 



ORDINANCE 07-2023 

d. The denial of the proposed variances will deprive the Applicant of the use 
permitted to be made by the owners of property in the immediate area;  

 
e. The proposed variances will result in structures that are appropriate to and 

compatible with the character and scale of structures in the area in which the 
variances are being requested, and 

 
f. There is no other means other than the requested variations by which the alleged 

hardship or difficulty can be avoided or remedied to a degree sufficient to permit 
a reasonable use of the Property.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD 

OF TRUSTEES of the Village of Gilberts, Kane County, Illinois as follows: 
 
Section 1.        Recitals.  The recitals are incorporated into this Section 1 as if fully set forth. 
 
Section  2.      Variance.  Subject to the conditions set forth in Section 3 of this Ordinance, the 
Village Board of Trustees hereby approves the following variance for the Property: 

 
A. A variance from Section 9-1(B) of the UDO to reduce the required number of off-street 

parking spaces for the Property from 38 spaces to 32 spaces.  
 
Section 3.   Conditions. The approval granted pursuant to Section 2 of this Ordinance is 
conditioned upon and limited by the following conditions, the violation of any of which shall, in 
the discretion of the President and Board of Trustees, be grounds for the repeal and revocation of 
the approval granted by this Ordinance in accordance with applicable law. In addition, any 
violation of this Ordinance will be deemed a violation of the UDO and subject the Owner to 
enforcement proceedings accordingly.  

 
A. No Authorization of Work.  This Ordinance does not authorize commencement of 

any work on the Property.  Except as otherwise specifically provided in writing in 
advance by the Village, no work of any kind may be commenced on the Property 
pursuant to the approvals granted in this Ordinance unless and until all conditions of 
this Ordinance precedent to that work have been fulfilled and after all permits, 
approvals, and other authorizations for the work have been properly applied for, paid 
for, and granted in accordance with applicable law. 

 
B. Compliance with Laws.  The UDO, the Building Code, and all other applicable 

Village ordinances and regulations shall continue to apply to the Property, and the 
development and use of the Property must comply with all laws and regulations of all 
other federal, state, and local governments and agencies having jurisdiction.   
 

C. Compliance with Plans.  The development, maintenance, and use of the Property will 
be in substantial conformance with the plans attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

Section 4. Severability.  In the event a court of competent jurisdiction finds this 
Ordinance or any provision hereof to be invalid or unenforceable as applied, such finding shall 



ORDINANCE 07-2023 

not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this ordinance and the application 
thereof to the greatest extent permitted by law. 
 
Section 5. Repeal and Saving Clause.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed; provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall affect any 
rights, actions, or cause of action which shall have accrued to the Village of Gilberts prior to 
the effective date of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 6.   Effective Date.  Upon its passage and approval according to law, this Ordinance 
shall, by authority of the Board of Trustees, be published in pamphlet form; provided, however, 
that this Ordinance shall be of no force or effect unless and until the Owner has executed and 
filed with the Village its unconditional agreement and consent, in the form attached to this 
Ordinance as Exhibit C, within 30 days following the passage of this Ordinance.   
 
PASSED BY VOTE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES of the Village of Gilberts, Kane 
County, Illinois, this 18th day of April 2023. 
 
    Ayes  Nays  Absent  Abstain 
Trustee Jeanne Allen  ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Dan Corbett  ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Lou Hacker  ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Brandon Coats ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Justin Redfield ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee David LeClercq Sr. ____  ____  _____  _____ 
President Guy Zambetti ____  ____  _____  _____ 
     
                   APPROVED this 18th day of April, 2023. 
 
(SEAL) 
      ____________________________ 
      Guy Zambetti, Village President  
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: ___________________________  
  Kelly Mastera,  Village Clerk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE 07-2023 

Exhibit A 
 

Description of the Property 
 

 
Common Address:  38 E. Higgins Road, Gilberts, Il 60136 
    
 
PINs:    02-24-154-004 
   02-24-154-012 
   02-24-154-010 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 



ORDINANCE 07-2023 

 

EXHIBIT B 

Plans 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



UP DNUP DN

UP

UP

F
R

O
N

T
 Y

A
R

D

1
5

'  -
 0

"

SIDE YARD
10' - 0

"

RAMP

EXISTING 2-STORY FRAME
BUILDING W/BASEMENT

PROPOSED 1-STORY 
FRAME ADDITION 1,012 SF

R
E

A
R

 Y
A

R
D

1
5
' - 0

"

SIDE YARD10' - 0
"

4
8
.4

9
'

8
0
.6

7
'

132.55'

146.10'

6
.7

0
'

1
3
7
.4

5
'

8
4
.2

4
'

ELGIN (ILLINOIS ROUTE 72) STREET 
E. HIGGINS RD.

(TWO-WAY TRAFFIC)

EXISTING
ASPHALT PAVEMENT
AND PARKING

LANDSCAPING

LANDSCAPING

G
A

L
L
IG

A
N

 R
D

.

(T
W

O
-W

A
Y

 T
R

A
F
F

IC
)

EXISTING 
DECK

EXIST. CONC. SIDEWALK

E
X

IS
T

. C
O

N
C

. S
ID

E
W

A
L
K

EXIST.
ELEC. POLE

EXIST.
ELEC. POLE

EXIST.
OVERHEAD
WIRING ABOVE
TO SERVICE MAST

EXIST. ELEC. 
SERV. MAST
AND MAIN 
DISCONNECT

EXIST.
STREET
LIGHT

EXIST.
STOP
SIGN

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

9' - 0
"

5' - 0
 1/2"

9' - 0
"

1
8
' - 0

"

PARKING 
SPACE, TYP.

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2223

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

9
' - 0

"

2' - 8
 1/2"

18' - 0
"

25' - 6
"

18' - 0
"

42' - 0
"

9
' - 0

"

FIRE TRUCK, TYP.

TURNING DIAMETER - W
ALL-TO-WALL

ø 75.72'

T
U

R
N

IN
G

 R
A

D
IU

S
 - C

U
R

B
-T

O
-C

U
R

B
R

 3
2
.9

7
'

FIRE TRUCK
PATH OF TRAVEL, TYP.

TURNING DIAMETER - WALL-TO-WALLø 75.72'

TU
R
N
IN

G
 R

A
D
IU

S
 - C

U
R
B
-TO

-C
U
R
B

R
 32.97'

SCALE:

DATE:

SHEET TITLE:

CITY APPROVAL STAMP:

DRAWING INDEX

STAMP:

1" = 10'-0"

3
/1

2
/2

0
2
3
 7

:5
9
:2

1
 P

M

GS.01

3
2

 E
. 

H
IG

G
IN

S
 R

D
G

IL
B

E
R

T
S

, 
IL

 6
0
1

3
6

P
U

B
 7

2
 F

I
R

S
T

 F
L

O
O

R
 A

D
D

I
T

I
O

N

T
H

O
M

A
S

 R
. 

T
R

IE
R

PROPOSED
PARKING & FIRE
TRUCK PATH
DIAGRAM

03/12/23

F
IR

S
T

 F
L

O
O

R
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 T

O
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 P

U
B

 A
N

D
 G

R
IL

L

No. Description Date

SCALE:  1" = 10'-0"
1

SITE PLAN - FIRE TRUCK PATH DIARGAM
N



ORDINANCE 07-2023 

 

EXHIBIT C 

Unconditional Agreement and Consent 

Pursuant to Section 6 of Ordinance No. 07-2023, and to induce the Village to grant the approvals 
provided for in that Ordinance, the undersigned acknowledges for itself and its successors and 
assigns in title to the Property that it: 

1. has read and understand all of the terms and provisions of Ordinance No. 07-2023;  

2. hereby unconditionally agrees to accept, consent to, and abide by all of the terms, 
conditions, restrictions, and provisions of this Ordinance, the UDO, and all other 
applicable codes, ordinances, rules, and regulations; 

3. acknowledges and agrees that the Village is not and shall not be, in any way, liable for 
any damages or injuries that may be sustained as a result of the Village’s issuance of any 
permits for the use of the Property, and that the Village’s issuance of any permit does not, 
and shall not, in any way, be deemed to insure the Applicant or Owner against damage or 
injury of any kind and at any time; 

4. acknowledges that the public notices and hearings have been properly given and held 
with respect to the adoption of the Ordinance, have considered the possibility of the 
revocation provided for in the Ordinance, and agree not to challenge any revocation on 
the grounds of any procedural infirmity or any denial of any procedural right; and 

5. represents and acknowledges that the person signing this Unconditional Agreement and 
Consent is duly authorized to do so on behalf of the Applicant and Owner.  

 

PUB 72, INC. 

By: ________________________________ 

Its: ________________________________ 

Date: ______________________________ 



Village of Gilberts 
Village Hall 

87 Galligan Road, Gilberts, Illinois 60136 
Ph. 847-428-2861      Fax: 847-428-2955 

www.villageofgilberts.com 
 

1 
 

To: President Zambetti & Board of Trustees 
From: Riley Lynch, Management Analyst 
Cc: Brian Bourdeau, Village Administrator 
Date: April 18, 2023 Village Board Meeting  
Re: Item 6.I – An Ordinance Approving a Special Use Permit and Variances (Cruisin’ 

Gilberts – 11 Galligan Road) (Ordinance 08-2023) 
Summary: 

D.R.D Bar & Eatery, INC (Crusin’) is requesting: (1) a special use permit to have an outdoor 
seating area, (2) a variance to have a wall sign up to 180 square feet in area, (3) a variance to allow 
a wall sign to have a background that is not the wall, (4) and a variance to allow a wall sign to go 
above the parapet line of the wall to which it is affixed. The Plan Commission passed a unanimous 
recommendation with one abstention that the special use and variances be approved as proposed. 

 

Background: 

D.R.D. Bar & Eatery, INC (“Applicant”) operates the 
restaurant Cruisin’ located at 11 Galligan Road (PIN: 
02-24-155-002). The property is primarily used for 
the restaurant, but it also contains 2 legal non-
conforming residential dwelling units on the second 
floor.   

The Applicant is looking to install a 39’ by 17’ patio 
on the western portion of the building for the purposes 
of providing an outdoor dining area (See figure 2). 
This area will be accessible through the inside of the 
restaurant via new sliding doors that were recently 
installed. The patio will take up the space of 4 existing 
parking spaces which means there will be a total of 53 
parking spaces for all uses on the property. Note that 
this amount of parking satisfies the Village’s parking requirements. A special use permit is 
required in order to operate an outdoor dining area accessory to a restaurant. 

Additionally, to serve alcohol and food outside to this patio area, the Applicant will be required to 
have a Class OS Liquor License and to comply with the restrictions as part of that license. 3-2-
7(H) of the Village Code details these restrictions. A few key restrictions to keep in mind for this 
request are: 

• Outdoor alcohol consumption may only occur within a secured area, with access to the 
serving area strictly controlled through the principal structure for which a valid Class A, B 
or F license has been issued. 

Figure 1 - GIS Snapshot of Cruisin' 



April 18th, 2023 Village Board Meeting 

2 
 

• The outdoor seating area shall be enclosed by a wooden or wrought iron (or similarly 
appearing) fence that is at least 50 percent open and does not exceed three feet in height, 
unless otherwise required to comply with applicable Building or Life Safety Codes. The 
fence shall match the color and appearance of the principal structure. 

• The outdoor seating area shall be used for seated food and beverage service only; it shall 
not be used for private parties or special events, nor shall it function as an 
enclosed beer garden where only liquor is principally served. 

• Use of the outdoor seating area shall be limited to between 10:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m.  
• Use of the outdoor seating area shall comply with the noise ordinance. No outdoor music, 

amplified sound, live performances or other noise or vibration generating activities shall 
be permitted within or directed at the outdoor seating area. 

• No smoking shall be permitted in the outdoor seating area, which shall be treated as an 
extension of the restaurant's/bar's public serving area. 

• Any lighting and landscaping of the outdoor seating area shall comply with the Village's 
unified development ordinance unless otherwise expressly provided in a PUD, special use, 
variance or other zoning approval ordinance. 

• All alcohol shall be dispensed from within the principal structure/establishment. No bar 
may be set up or operated within the outdoor seating area. 

The Applicant is also looking to install a new wall sign on the southernmost wall of the building. 
This sign will have a total area of 180sqft and will have white lettering upon a black decorative 
background. A portion of the sign is intended to protrude above the roofline of the building (see 
exhibit 3) The Village’s Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) restricts the size of wall signs on 
this type of commercial property to 80 square feet. The UDO also only allows wall signs with 
alphanumeric lettering, symbolling, or logos without a background besides the wall to which the 
sign is affixed to. Furthermore, signs are not permitted to rise above the parapet of the wall to 
which the sign is affixed or 20ft, whichever is less. In order to proceed with this sign as proposed, 
the Applicant is pursuing variances from these provisions. 

Figure 2 - Patio Design Render Figure 3 - Wall Sign Design Render 



April 18th, 2023 Village Board Meeting 

3 
 

 

Public Hearing & Plan Commission: 

On April 12th, the Plan Commission held a public hearing to review the Applicant’s zoning relief 
request. After the public hearing and sufficient deliberation, the Plan Commission passed a 
unanimous recommendation with one abstention to the Board that the special use and variances be 
approved as requested. 

 
Attachments: 

• Exhibit 1 – April 12th Plan Commission Packet Material – Cruisin’ 
• Exhibit 2 – Ordinance 08-2023 Authorizing a Special Use and Variances. 



Village of Gilberts 
Village Hall 

87 Galligan Road, Gilberts, Illinois 60136 
Ph. 847-428-2861      Fax: 847-428-2955 

www.villageofgilberts.com 
 

1 
 

To: Plan Commission 
From: Riley Lynch, Management Analyst 
Cc: Brian Bourdeau, Village Administrator 
Date: April 12, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting  
Re: Item 7 – Consideration and Recommendation to the Village Board of Trustees 

Regarding a Special Use Permit for Outdoor Dining and for Variances Related to 
a Wall Sign at Cruisin’. 

 

Summary: 

D.R.D Bar & Eatery, INC (Crusin’) is requesting: (1) a special use permit to have an outdoor 
seating area, (2) a variance to have a wall sign up to 180 square feet in area, (3) a variance to allow 
a wall sign to have a background that is not the wall, (4) and a variance to allow a wall sign to go 
above the parapet line of the wall to which it is affixed. 

Background: 

D.R.D. Bar & Eatery, INC (“Applicant”) operates the 
restaurant Cruisin’ located at 11 Galligan Road (PIN: 
02-24-155-002). The property is primarily used for 
the restaurant, but it also contains 2 legal non-
conforming residential dwelling units on the second 
floor.  

The property is located within a C-1 Commercial 
District. To the north is another commercially zoned 
property and beyond that are residences part of Old 
Town and Town Square Park. To the east is the 
commercial property owned by Red Barn Holdings 
LLC. To the south across Route 72 are I-1 industrial 
properties home to multiple businesses. To the west 
across Galligan Road is Pub 72 and more residences 
within the Old Town district.  

The Applicant is looking to install a 39’ by 17’ patio on the south western portion of the building 
for the purposes of providing an outdoor dining area. This area will be accessible through the inside 
of the restaurant via new sliding doors that were recently installed. The patio will take up the space 
of 4 existing parking spaces which means there will be a total of 53 parking spaces for all uses on 
the property. 

The Applicant is also looking to install a new wall sign on the southernmost wall of the building. 
The sign is to be 41 feet long and about 4 feet tall for a total area of 180 square feet. The sign is to 
white lettering upon a black decorative background. A portion of the sign is intended to protrude 
above the roofline of the building. See figure 2 and attached exhibit for more information. 

Figure 1 - GIS Snapshot of Cruisin' 



April 12th, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting 

2 
 

 

Special Use Permit and Variance Requests: 

4-3-2(e) of the Village’s Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) specifies that permanent outdoor 
seating areas accessory to restaurants require a special use permit in C-1 commercial districts. 
Therefore, the Applicant is requesting a special use permit to construct their patio and use it as an 
outdoor dining area. Note that to serve alcohol and food outside to this patio area, the Applicant 
will be required to have a Class OS Liquor License and to comply with the restrictions as part of 
that license. 3-2-7(H) of the Village Code details these restrictions. A few key restrictions to keep 
in mind for this request are: 

• Outdoor alcohol consumption may only occur within a secured area, with access to the 
serving area strictly controlled through the principal structure for which a valid Class A, B 
or F license has been issued. 

• The outdoor seating area shall be enclosed by a wooden or wrought iron (or similarly 
appearing) fence that is at least 50 percent open and does not exceed three feet in height, 
unless otherwise required to comply with applicable Building or Life Safety Codes. The 
fence shall match the color and appearance of the principal structure. 

• The outdoor seating area shall be used for seated food and beverage service only; it shall 
not be used for private parties or special events, nor shall it function as an 
enclosed beer garden where only liquor is principally served. 

• Use of the outdoor seating area shall be limited to between 10:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. daily, 
subject to further restriction by any applicable requirements associated with the 
prerequisite Class A, B or F license or liquor licenses in general. 

• Use of the outdoor seating area shall comply with the noise ordinance (title 4, chapter 6 of 
this Code) and subsection 3-2-16A of this chapter. No outdoor music, amplified sound, live 
performances or other noise or vibration generating activities shall be permitted within or 
directed at the outdoor seating area. 

Figure 2 - Patio Design Render Figure 3 - Wall Sign Design Render 



April 12th, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting 

3 
 

• No smoking shall be permitted in the outdoor seating area, which shall be treated as an 
extension of the restaurant's/bar's public serving area. 

• Any lighting and landscaping of the outdoor seating area shall comply with the Village's 
unified development ordinance unless otherwise expressly provided in a PUD, special use, 
variance or other zoning approval ordinance. 

• All alcohol shall be dispensed from within the principal structure/establishment. No bar 
may be set up or operated within the outdoor seating area. 

9-2(L)(1)(a) of the UDO specifies that commercial wall signs on a building with a setback less 
than 100 feet cannot be larger than 80 square feet in area. Additionally, the same section specifies 
that wall signs can only contain individual lettering or symbols without a background. 
Furthermore, it specifies that these wall signs cannot project higher than 20 feet or project higher 
than the parapet line of the wall to which the sign is attached. To install the sign as the Applicant 
has designed, they are seeking variances from these provisions of the UDO to allow the sign to be 
180 square feet in surface area, to allow the sign to have lettering with a decorative background, 
and to allow the sign to slightly rise above the parapet line of the wall to which it would be affixed. 

Note that even with the patio and reduction in parking spaces, the property would have enough 
spaces to satisfy the UDO’s parking requirements for both the restaurant uses and the residential 
uses. Therefore, the Applicant is not seeking a variance from parking regulations.  

 

Points for Discussion: 

In considering the Applicant’s request for a special use permit, the Plan Commission should review 
the standards for variations as outlined in Section 11-11(F) of the UDO: 

 

Special Use Standards 

a. The proposed special use complies with all provisions of the applicable district 
regulations. 

b. The proposed special use will not be unreasonably detrimental to the value of other 
property in the neighborhood in which it is to be located or to the public 
welfare at large. 

c. The location and size of the special use, the nature and intensity of the operation 
involved in or conducted in connection with it, and the location of the site 
with respect to streets giving access to it are such that the special use will 
not dominate the immediate neighborhood so as to prevent development and 
use of neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning 
district regulations.  In determining whether the special use will so 
dominate the immediate neighborhood, consideration shall be given to: 

 i. The location, nature and height of buildings, structures, walls and 
fences on the site; and 



April 12th, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting 

4 
 

 ii. The nature and extent of proposed landscaping and screening on the 
proposed site. 

d. Adequate utility, drainage and other such necessary facilities have been or will be 
provided. 

e. The proposed special use, where such developments and uses are deemed 
consistent with good planning practice, can be operated in a manner that is 
not detrimental to the permitted developments and uses in the district; can 
be developed and operated in a manner that is visually compatible with the 
permitted uses in the surrounding area; shall in all other respects conform 
to the applicable regulations of the district in which it is located; and is 
deemed essential or desirable to preserve and promote the public health, 
safety and general welfare of the Village of Gilberts. 

See Exhibit 2 for the Applicant’s response to these standards 

 
In considering the Applicant’s request for variances, the Plan Commission should review the 
standards for variations as outlined in Section 11-10(F) of the UDO: 

Standards for Variations 
1.  General Standard. No variation shall be recommended or granted pursuant to this 

section unless the owner shall establish that carrying out the strict letter of the provisions 
of this code would create a particular hardship or a practical difficulty.  

2.  Supplemental Standards. In considering proposed variations to this code, the Board of 
Appeals will consider whether the proposed variation will:  
a.  Impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property.  
b.  Unreasonable increase the congestion in public streets.  
c.  Increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety.  
d.  Unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the surrounding 

area.  
e.  In any other respects impair the public health, safety, or welfare of the inhabitants 

of the village.  
3.  Findings of Fact. Upon review of the application and information presented at the public 

hearing, the Board of Appeals shall consider and adopt findings of fact sustaining each 
of the following criteria which are consistent with the rules provided to govern 
determinations of the Board of Appeals as referenced by state statute.  
a.  The property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used 

only under the conditions allowed by the regulations in that district.  
b.  The extraordinary or exceptional conditions of the property requiring the request 

for the variance were not caused by the applicant.  



April 12th, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting 

5 
 

c.  The proposed variance will alleviate a peculiar, exceptional or undue hardship, as 
distinguished from a mere inconvenience or pecuniary hardship.  

d.  The denial of the proposed variance will deprive the applicant the use permitted to 
be made by the owners of property in the immediate area.  

e.  The proposed variance will result in a structure that is appropriate to and compatible 
with the character and scale of structures in the area in which the variance is being 
requested.  

f.  There is no other means other than the requested variation by which the alleged 
hardship or difficulty can be avoided or remedied to a degree sufficient to permit a 
reasonable use of the subject property.  

 
Attachments: 

• Exhibit 1 – Notice of Public Hearing  
• Exhibit 2 – Application for a Special Use & Variance 
• Exhibit 3 – 11 Galligan Road Plat of Survey 
• Exhibit 4 – Proposed Patio Designs 
• Exhibit 5 – Proposed Wall Sign Design 



VILLAGE OF GILBERTS 
PUBLIC NOTICE REGARDING A HEARING ON A SPECIAL USE PERMIT AND 

VARIANCE APPLICATION 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Gilberts Plan Commission will conduct a 
public hearing on Wednesday, April 12, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. at the Gilberts Village Hall, 
87 Galligan Road, Gilberts, Illinois, to consider an application from D.R.D. Bar & Eatery, 
Inc. (“Applicant”) concerning the property located at 11 Galligan Road, Gilberts, Illinois, 
and identified by PIN 02-24-155-002 (“Property”). The Applicant requests approval of (1) 
variances from Section 9-2 of the Gilberts Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) to 
allow for a wall sign to exceed the height and size requirements and to include a 
background; and (2) approval of a special use permit for the Property to allow for the 
operation of a permanent outdoor seating area accessory to a restaurant, and for such 
other and further zoning relief as may be required. 
 
All persons interested in the special use and variance application should attend and will 
be given an opportunity to provide written and oral testimony. Members of the public 
can also submit written comments via email at info@villageofgilberts.com. Additional 
information about the special use and variance application and the public hearing are 
available from the Village of Gilberts at (847) 428-2861. The public hearing may be 
continued from time to time without further public notice. 
 
Gilberts Plan Commission 
Village of Gilberts 
 
 
4825-4556-6526, v.  1 

mailto:info@villageofgilberts.com




Application for Development Approval 

Please complete this section before any other part of this packet. 

Developmentname �, ha£ '1:Mct J_ � 
Address of subject property: ft Mr--/11, UdJ U &2t5C:z

Parcel identification number(P.I.N.): ()j,-;l{f- 15"5'-00;L

I. 

Address: .....1-1.,......._�f.U4��:-:L.L..__J:.....l.£4,....:..._�:..__ ____________ _

City: _L.(:;i:::::..14£.=.i..CIL..l----- State: U Zip code: __ (;_0'--+/..._3 ...... ��----
Phone: {Jjl,/":f) � 'X) -J-a/22 Email: (jfM3e-SY@2a.al.com 

II. Property Owner(s): -&-�......... _t_�=--rl'"'-""--=--------
Address: l/{)y/fjqS- f� CL_ 
City: u� . r State: -i::./2- Zip code: _&i

.......,
(}�1�l/(�0�----

Phone {<l l{'l) :i_ 'i l-f -)'O ti'.) Em fill J!f 14.ctl(@ !(f}UxJ. ('fi&\

III. Primary contact: � �

Check one that best appl::
□ Owner □ Attorney □ Engineer □ Assistant Other: ___

Phone {"dlfl) /2$) - ;L'ilbJ:. Email (t,f�nge.,S]'@aol.CLJm 

IV. Other staff

□ 

Phone: 

Name: 

Check one that best applies: 

□ Owner D 

Phone: 

5jPage 

□ Engineer □ Assistant

Email: 

Attorney D Engineer 

Email: 

Other: 

Other: 

D.R.D. Bar & Eatery, INC.







D.R.D. Bar & Eatery, INC.

229 Garden Dr. Elgin IL
Special Use Permit & Variance

























1 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 08-2023 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING  
A SPECIAL USE PERMIT AND VARIANCES 

 
(Crusin’ Gilberts – 11 Galligan Road) 

 
 WHEREAS, D.R.D. Bar & Eatery, Inc. (“Applicant”) is a tenant in the existing building 
located on the property at 11 Galligan Road, Gilberts, Illinois, which property is more 
specifically described in Exhibit A (the “Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the current owner of the Property is Joseph Lazar (“Owner”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Applicant currently operates a restaurant on the Property called 
“Cruisin’ Great Food and Spirits” (the “Restaurant”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Property is currently zoned in the C-1 Commercial District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, under Section 4-3-2(e) of the Gilberts Unified Development Ordinance 
(“UDO”), permanent outdoor seating areas accessory to bars, restaurants, and taverns are 
allowed in the C-1 Commercial District subject to the issuance of a special use permit; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Applicant, with the permission of the Owner, has applied for a special 
use permit to construct and operate a permanent outdoor seating area accessory to the Restaurant 
on the Property; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Applicant has also applied for variancse from Section 9-2(L)(1)(a) of 
the UDO to allow for a wall sign that is (1) 180 square feet instead of the maximum 80 square 
feet; (2) has lettering with a decorative background; and (3) projects higher than the parapet line 
of the wall to which it will be affixed; and  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to notice duly published, the Gilberts Plan Commission/Zoning 
Board of Appeals held a public hearing and reviewed the Applicant’s request for a special use 
permit and variances (collectively, the “Zoning Relief”) on April 12, 2023: and  
 
 WHEREAS, at the conclusion of the public hearing on April 12, 2023, the Gilberts Plan 
Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals voted to recommend approval of the Applicant’s 
requested Zoning Relief, subject to certain conditions; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Village Board makes the following findings of fact in reference to the 
Applicant’s request for approval of a special use permit to allow for the construction and 
operation of a permanent outdoor seating area accessory to the Restaurant on the Property: 

1. The proposed special use complies with all provisions of the C-1 Commercial 
District. 



 

2 

 

2. The proposed special use will not be unreasonably detrimental to the value of 
other property in the neighborhood in which it is to be located or to the public 
welfare at large.  

3. The location and size of the special use, the nature and intensity of the operation 
involved in or conducted in connection with it, and the location of the site with 
respect to streets giving access to it are such that the special use will not 
dominate the immediate neighborhood so as to prevent development and use of 
neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning district 
regulations.  

4. Adequate utility, drainage, and other necessary facilities have been or will be 
provided for the Property.  

5. The proposed special use, where such developments and uses are deemed 
consistent with good planning practice, can be operated in a manner that is not 
detrimental to the permitted developments and uses in the district, can be 
developed and operated in a manner that is visually compatible with the permitted 
uses in the surrounding area; shall conform to the applicable regulations of the 
district; and is deemed essential or desirable to preserve and promote the public 
health, safety, and general welfare of the Village.  

WHEREAS, the Village Board makes the following findings of fact in reference to the 
Applicant’s request for approval of the variances from Section 9-2(L)(1)(a) for the installation of 
the wall sign on the Property:  

1. The Property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used 
only under the conditions allowed by the regulations in that district;  

 
2. The extraordinary or exceptional conditions of the Property requiring the request 

for the variances were not caused by the Applicant;  
 
3. The proposed variances will alleviate a peculiar, exceptional or undue hardship, 

as distinguished from a mere inconvenience or pecuniary hardship; 
 
4. The denial of the proposed variances will deprive the Applicant of the use 

permitted to be made by the owners of property in the immediate area;  
 
5. The proposed variances will result in structures that are appropriate to and 

compatible with the character and scale of structures in the area in which the 
variances are being requested, and 

 
6. There is no other means other than the requested variances by which the alleged 

hardship or difficulty can be avoided or remedied to a degree sufficient to permit 
a reasonable use of the Property.  



 

3 

 

 

WHEREAS, based on the findings of fact detailed above, the Village Board has 
determined that the Applicant’s request meets the standards of both state statute and the UDO for 
approval of the Zoning Relief, subject to the conditions set forth in this Ordinance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD 
OF TRUSTEES of the Village of Gilberts, Kane County, Illinois as follows: 
 
Section 1.     Recitals.  The recitals are incorporated into this Section 1 as if fully set forth. 
 
Section 2.  Special Use Permit. Subject to the conditions set forth in Section 4 of this 
Ordinance, the Village Board of Trustees hereby approves a special use permit for the Applicant 
to construction and operate a permanent outdoor seating area accessory to the Restaurant on the 
Property.  

Section 3.   Variances.  Subject to the conditions set forth in Section 4 of this Ordinance, the 
Village Board of Trustees hereby approves the following variances for the Property: 
 

(1) A variance from Section 9-2(L)(1)(a) to allow for a 180 square foot wall sign 
on the Property instead of the maximum 80 square feet for wall signs.    
 

(2) A variance from Section 9-2(L)(1)(a) to allow for the wall sign on the 
 Property to have lettering with a decorative background. 
 

(3) A variance from Section 9-2(L)(1)(a) to allow for the wall sign on the 
 Property to project higher than the parapet line of the wall to which it will be 
 affixed.  
 

Section 4.  Conditions. The approvals granted pursuant to Section 2 and Section 3 of this 
Ordinance are conditioned upon and limited by the following conditions, the violation of any of 
which shall, in the discretion of the President and Board of Trustees, be grounds for the repeal 
and revocation of the approvals granted by Section 2 and Section 3 of this Ordinance in 
accordance with applicable law.  In addition, any violation of this Ordinance will be deemed a 
violation of the UDO and subject the Owners to enforcement proceedings accordingly.  
 

A. No Authorization of Work. This Ordinance does not authorize commencement of any 
work on the Property. Except as otherwise specifically provided in writing in advance 
by the Village, no work of any kind may be commenced on the Property pursuant to 
the approvals granted in this Ordinance unless and until all conditions of this 
Ordinance precedent to that work have been fulfilled and after all permits, approvals, 
and other authorizations for the work have been properly applied for, paid for, and 
granted in accordance with applicable law, including, without limitation, final 
engineering approval. 



 

4 

 

 
B. Compliance with Laws.  The UDO, the Building Code, and all other applicable 

Village ordinances and regulations shall continue to apply to the Property, and the 
development and use of the Property must comply with all laws and regulations of all 
other federal, state, and local governments and agencies having jurisdiction.    
 

C. Compliance with Plans.  The development, maintenance, and use of the Property will 
be in substantial conformance with the plans attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

Section 5.  Failure to Comply.  Upon failure or refusal of the Applicant to comply with any or 
all of the conditions, restrictions, or provisions of this Ordinance, the approvals in Section 2 and 
Section 3 this Ordinance (“Conditioned Approval”), will, at the sole discretion of the Board of 
Trustees, by ordinance duly adopted, be revoked and become null and void; provided, however, 
that the Board of Trustees will not revoke the Conditioned Approval unless it first provides the 
Applicant with two months advance written notice of the reasons for revocation and an 
opportunity to be heard at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees regarding the revocation.  
In the event of revocation, the development and use of the Property will be governed solely by 
the regulations of the C-1 Commercial District, as the same may, from time to time, be amended.  
Further, in the event of revocation, the Village Administrator and Village Attorney are 
authorized and directed to bring all zoning enforcement action as may be appropriate under the 
circumstances. The Applicant acknowledges that public notices and hearings have been held 
with respect to the adoption of this Ordinance, have considered the possibility of the revocation 
provided for in this Section 5, and agree not to challenge any revocation on the grounds of any 
procedural infirmity or any denial of any procedural right, provided that the notice to the Owner 
required by this Section 5 is given. 
 
Section 6.  Binding Effect; Non-Transferability. The privileges, obligations, and provisions of 
each and every section of this Ordinance are for the sole benefit of, and shall be binding on, the 
Applicant. Nothing in this Ordinance will be deemed to allow the Special Use Permit granted 
pursuant to this Ordinance to be transferred to any person or entity without a new application for 
approval for any person or entity other than the Applicant. 
 
Section 7. Severability.  In the event a court of competent jurisdiction finds this 
Ordinance or any provision hereof to be invalid or unenforceable as applied, such finding shall 
not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this ordinance and the application 
thereof to the greatest extent permitted by law. 
 
Section 8. Repeal and Saving Clause.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed; provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall affect any 
rights, actions, or cause of action which shall have accrued to the Village of Gilberts prior to 
the effective date of this Ordinance. 
 



 

5 

 

Section 9.   Effective Date.  Upon its passage and approval according to law, this Ordinance 
shall, by authority of the Board of Trustees, be published in pamphlet form; provided, however, 
that this Ordinance shall be of no force or effect unless and until the Applicant has executed and 
filed with the Village its unconditional agreement and consent, in the form attached to this 
Ordinance as Exhibit C, within 30 days following the passage of this Ordinance.   
 
PASSED BY VOTE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES of the Village of Gilberts, Kane 
County, Illinois, this ____ day of __________2023. 
 
    Ayes  Nays  Absent  Abstain 
Trustee Jeanne Allen  ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Dan Corbett  ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Lou Hacker  ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Brandon Coats ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Justin Redfield ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee David LeClercq Sr. ____  ____  _____  _____ 
President Guy Zambetti ____  ____  _____  _____ 
     
    APPROVED this ________ day of __________, 2023. 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
      ____________________________ 
      Village President Guy Zambetti 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: ___________________________  
  Village Clerk, Kelly Mastera 
 



 

6 

 

Exhibit A 
 

 Description of the Property 
 
LOTS 1 AND 2 IN BLOCK 11 OF RUTLANDVILLE, IN THE VILLAGE OF GILBERTS, 
KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
 
Common Address:  11 Galligan Road, Gilberts, IL 
    
PINs:    02-24-155-002 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

7 

 

Exhibit B 

Plans 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

















 

8 

 

EXHIBIT C 

Unconditional Agreement and Consent 

Pursuant to Section 9 of Ordinance No. 08-2023, and to induce the Village to grant the approvals 
provided for in that Ordinance, the undersigned acknowledges for itself and its successors and 
assigns in title to the Property that it: 

1. has read and understand all of the terms and provisions of Ordinance No. 08-2023;  

2. hereby unconditionally agrees to accept, consent to, and abide by all of the terms, 
conditions, restrictions, and provisions of this Ordinance, the UDO, and all other 
applicable codes, ordinances, rules, and regulations; 

3. acknowledges and agrees that the Village is not and shall not be, in any way, liable for 
any damages or injuries that may be sustained as a result of the Village’s issuance of any 
permits for the use of the Property, and that the Village’s issuance of any permit does not, 
and shall not, in any way, be deemed to insure the Applicant or Owner against damage or 
injury of any kind and at any time; 

4. acknowledges that the public notices and hearings have been properly given and held 
with respect to the adoption of the Ordinance, have considered the possibility of the 
revocation provided for in the Ordinance, and agree not to challenge any revocation on 
the grounds of any procedural infirmity or any denial of any procedural right; and 

5. represents and acknowledges that the person signing this Unconditional Agreement and 
Consent is duly authorized to do so on behalf of the Applicant and Owner.  

 

D.R.D. Bar & Eatery, Inc. 

By: ________________________________ 

Its:  ________________________________ 

Date: ______________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Village of Gilberts 
Village Hall 

87 Galligan Road, Gilberts, Illinois 60136 
Ph. 847-428-2861      Fax: 847-428-2955 

www.villageofgilberts.com 
 

 

 
 

To: Village President and Board of Trustees  
From: Brian Bourdeau, Village Administrator 
Date: April 18, 2023 Village Board Meeting  
Re: Item 6.J: 55 Galligan Property Acquisition 
 

 
Included for consideration is the Ordinance approving the Purchase and Sale Agreement for the property 
commonly known as 55 Galligan for public purposes.  
 



1 
 

 Ordinance No. _____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 
FOR THE PROPERTY COMMONLY KNOWN AS 55 GALLIGAN ROAD 

FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES 
 
 WHEREAS, the Village of Gilberts is an Illinois municipal corporation organized and 
operated under the laws of the State of Illinois; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Village is authorized and empowered by the General Assembly 
pursuant to 65 ILCS 5/2-3-8 to acquire and hold property for public purposes; and 
 

WHEREAS, the owner of the property at 55 Galligan Road, Gilberts, Illinois, bearing 
PIN #02-24-153-003 (“Property”), has offered to sell the Property to the Village; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Property is useful, necessary, and advantageous for the Village to 

acquire for public purposes; and 
 
WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the Village hereby find and determine that it is 

in the public interest to enter into the purchase and sale agreement for the Property attached as 
Exhibit A, to provide for the purchase of the Property by the Village. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Village Board of the Village of 
Gilberts, Kane County, Illinois, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1.  RECITALS The recitals set forth above are incorporated into Section 1 as 
set forth herein. 
 

SECTION 2. APPROVAL; AUTHORIZATION.  

A. The Village President is hereby authorized and directed to execute, and the Village 
Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to attest, the Purchase and Sale Agreement 
(“Agreement”) attached as Exhibit A and incorporated as though fully set forth 
herein. 
 

B. The Village Finance Director or her designee is authorized and directed to draw upon 
Village funds and write a check in the sum set forth in the Agreement, plus any 
required closing costs incurred by the Village, payable to Seller, in order to effectuate 
the purchase and recordation of the deed to the Property. 
 

C. The Village Administrator is authorized and directed to take all steps necessary to 
implement and enforce the Agreement’s terms, including, without limitation, 
executing all documents necessary to complete the Village’s acquisition of the 
Property. 

 
 



2 
 

SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY.  In the event that any section, clause, provision, or part 
of this Ordinance shall be found and determined to be invalid by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, all valid parts that are severable from the invalid pars shall remain in full force and 
effect.  If any part of this Ordinance is found to be invalid in any one or more of its several 
applications, all valid applications shall remain in effect. 
 
 SECTION 4.  REPEAL AND SAVINGS CLAUSE.  All ordinances or parts of 
ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed; provided, however that nothing in this 
Ordinance shall affect any rights, actions, or causes of action which shall have accrued to the 
Village of Gilberts prior to the effective date of this Ordinance. 
 
 SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Ordinance shall only be effective upon the 
passage, approval, and publication in the manner required by law.  

 PASSED BY VOTE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES of the Village of Gilberts, 
Kane County, Illinois, this ____ day of __________2023. 
 
    Ayes  Nays  Absent  Abstain 
Trustee Jeanne Allen  ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Dan Corbett  ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Lou Hacker  ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Brandon Coats ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee Justin Redfield ____  ____  _____  _____ 
Trustee David LeClercq Sr. ____  ____  _____  _____ 
President Guy Zambetti ____  ____  _____  _____ 
     
    APPROVED this ________ day of __________, 2023. 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
      ____________________________ 
      Village President Guy Zambetti 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: ___________________________  
  Village Clerk, Kelly Mastera 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Purchase and Sale Agreement 



Execution Copy 

 

1 
 

PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 

 
THIS PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into 

as of this ____ day of ______________, 2023 (“Effective Date”), between the VILLAGE OF 

GILBERTS, an Illinois municipal corporation (“Buyer”), and THE FRANCES Y. ROW 

TRUST DATED APRIL 25, 2013 an Illinois land trust (“Seller”) (collectively, the Buyer and 
Seller are the “Parties” and individually, sometimes, a “Party”). 

 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Seller owns certain real property commonly known as 55 Galligan Road 
Gilberts, Illinois 60136, legally described and depicted on Exhibit A and Exhibit B, generally 
measuring 132 feet (north-south) by 66 feet (east-west), and encompassing +/-8,700 square feet 
(the real property and all structures and improvements located thereon are, collectively, the 
“Property”); and 

 WHEREAS, the Property is currently improved with single-family home, detached 
garage, and related appurtenances, and is adjacent to property owned or controlled by the Buyer; 
and 

 WHEREAS, the Buyer wishes to acquire the Property from the Seller, and the Seller 
wishes to convey the Property to the Buyer, all in accordance with and subject to this Agreement’s 
terms; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Buyer is authorized to acquire the Property in accordance with applicable 
law, including, without limitation, 65 ILCS 5/2-3-8; 
 

AGREEMENT 

 

In consideration of the recitals, covenants, and agreements contained herein, the Parties 
agree as follows: 

1.  Recitals and Exhibits; Property to be Purchased.   

(a) The foregoing recitals and exhibits attached to this Agreement are 
incorporated as though fully set forth in this Section. 

(b) Subject to this Agreement’s terms and conditions, Seller agrees to convey 
to Buyer and Buyer agrees to purchase from Seller the Property. 

2. Purchase Price; No Financing. The purchase price for the Property shall be TWO 

HUNDRED SEVENTEEN THOUSAND AND NO 100THS ($217,000.00) DOLLARS 
(“Purchase Price”).  Buyer shall pay the Purchase Price in immediately available funds at Closing, 
minus any credits provided by Seller or authorized by this Agreement plus any closing costs 
assessed to Buyer.  Buyer represents and warrants that this is a cash deal and that the Buyer will 
not use third party financing to pay at Closing the Purchase Price or any portion thereof. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F2B864CC-D3FE-4BCC-8C1A-FD81BA783AE9

April 1st



Execution Copy 

 

2 
 

3. Earnest Money. Buyer will deliver, within five (5) business days of the Effective 
Date, a check or wire transfer in the amount of FIVE THOUSAND AND NO 100THS 

($5,000.00) DOLLARS to Home Solutions Real Estate Company (“Home Solutions”)  (the 
money delivered to Home Solutions, together with interest thereon and all other deposits hereafter 
made by Buyer pursuant to this Agreement, is hereinafter referred to as the “Earnest Money”), to 
be held and disbursed by the Home Solutions in accordance with the terms of the Strict Joint Order 
Escrow Agreement.  The Earnest Money plus any interest accrued shall be applied to the Purchase 
Price to be paid by Buyer at Closing (as defined in Section 5 below).  Except as provided in this 
Agreement, the Earnest Money shall be nonrefundable and shall be retainer by the Seller should 
the Buyer fail to purchase the Property. 

 
4. Closing.  The Buyer will schedule a closing of the Property’s purchase and sale 

(“Closing”) within fifteen (15) days (“Closing Date”) of (1) the expiration of the Inspection Period 
as set forth in Section 5 of this Agreement; or (2) the expiration or waiver of Buyer’s right to 
terminate this Agreement under Section 5(b) of this Agreement, whichever is later. The Closing 
will be at a mutually agreeable time at the offices of Chicago Title Company Insurance Company 
(“Title Company”), or such other place and time as may be agreed upon by the Parties.   

5.  Inspection Contingency. 

(a) Inspections. Upon the Effective Date and ending forty five (45) days 
thereafter (as such period may be extended by mutual agreement of the Parties, the 
“Inspection Period”), Buyer and its employees, agents, contractors, consultants, 
representatives and designees shall, at Buyer’s sole expense, have the right to examine and 
test the Property, and shall further have the right of reasonable ingress and egress with 
advance notice to, and cooperation of, Seller for the purpose of making or conducting all 
studies, tests, assessments of the surface and subsurface conditions and other tests, 
examinations, explorations and inspections as Buyer deems appropriate, including, but not 
limited to, the right to core drill upon, and to remove samples of stone from, the Property, 
and conduct inspections on any structure contained thereon, including, without limitation, 
review of the Title Commitment (“Inspection Work”). During the Inspection Period and 
any extension thereof, Buyer shall have the further right to make such inquiries of 
governmental agencies and utility companies, and to make such feasibility studies and 
analyses as it considers appropriate, and to apply for and obtain all necessary regulatory 
approvals from any local, state, or federal governmental entity or agency necessary for the 
Buyer’s development, use, and operation of the Property. Seller will cooperate with Buyer 
with respect to all inspections and regulatory approvals processes, including but not limited 
to the execution of any documents reasonably necessary for such inspections and 
participation in the regulatory approval processes. Upon the voluntary or involuntary 
termination of the Inspection Period, Buyer shall return the Property to its condition as it 
existed upon the Effective Date, reasonable wear and tear excepted.  

(b) Right of Termination. The Buyer’s obligations under this Agreement are 
subject to and conditioned upon the determination by Buyer, in its sole discretion and 
judgment, that the Property is in satisfactory condition for the Buyer’s purposes.  In the 
event such conditions to Buyer’s obligations have not been satisfied within Inspection 
Period, as determined solely by Buyer, Buyer shall have the right, by written notice 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F2B864CC-D3FE-4BCC-8C1A-FD81BA783AE9



Execution Copy 

 

3 
 

delivered to Seller on or before the last day of the Inspection Period, to terminate this 
Agreement for any reason, or no reason at all.  Should such termination be delivered on or 
before the end of the Inspection Period, this Agreement shall be deemed null and void, 
neither Party shall have any further rights and obligations under this Agreement, and, in 
the event of such termination, the Earnest Money shall be promptly returned to the Buyer.  
Buyer’s failure to deliver notice on or before the end of the Inspection Period shall be 
deemed to be Buyer’s acceptance of the Property in the condition that exists at the end of 
the Inspection Period. 

6. Survey and Title Review. 

(a) Receipt of Survey and Title Commitment.  Seller shall obtain and deliver to 
Buyer (i) within 10 business days after the Effective Date, an ALTA title insurance 
commitment issued by the Title Company showing the condition of title to the Property 
(“Title Commitment”), together with copies of all recorded documents listed or disclosed 
therein (“Recorded Documents”); and (ii) any existing survey depicting the Property 
(“Survey”).   

 
(b) Objections.  Buyer shall have until seven (7) days after the delivery of the 

last of the Survey, the Title Commitment, and the Recorded Documents to examine the 
same and to provide written objections to Seller of matters set forth on the Survey and/or 
the Title Commitment that are unsuitable or make the Property undesirable for Buyer’s 
purposes (collectively, “Objections”).   

 
(c) Cure Period.  If Buyer gives timely written notice of its Objections, Seller 

will (i) notify Buyer in writing within seven (7) days after receiving Buyer’s Objections as 
to Seller's proposed steps to cure the Objections, and (ii) take reasonable steps to cure 
Buyer’s Objections for a period of ten (10) days following receipt by Seller of Buyer’s 
Objections (“Cure Period”).  

 
(d) Failure to Cure. In the event Seller is unable to cure any one or more of 

Buyer’s Objections within the Cure Period, Buyer’s remedy under this Agreement shall be 
to either: (i) elect to terminate this Agreement, in which event the Earnest Money will be 
promptly returned to the Buyer and the Parties shall have no further right or obligation 
under this Agreement (except for rights or obligations which expressly survive the 
termination of this Agreement); or (ii) waive the Objections and continue the purchase 
contemplated by this Agreement.  Buyer must provide written notice to Seller of its election 
to either terminate this Agreement or to waive the Objections not later than seven (7) days 
after the expiration of the Cure Period. 

 
7. Control of Property.  Prior to the Closing, Seller shall have the full responsibility 

and liability for any and all damages or injury to the Property.  If, prior to the Closing Date, the 
Property is materially damaged or the Property is the subject of an action in eminent domain or a 
proposed taking by a governmental authority, whether temporary or permanent, Buyer, at its sole 
discretion, shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon notice to Seller by so notifying 
Seller.  If Buyer exercises its right of termination, the Earnest Money will be promptly returned to 
the Buyer.  If Buyer does not exercise its right of termination, any and all proceeds arising out of 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F2B864CC-D3FE-4BCC-8C1A-FD81BA783AE9



Execution Copy 

 

4 
 

such damage or destruction, if the same be insured, or out of any such eminent domain or taking, 
shall be paid to the Buyer on the Closing Date.   

8.  Representations.   To induce Buyer to enter into this Agreement, Seller represents, 
warrants, and covenants to Buyer as set forth below. 

(a) Seller is Trust. Seller has the full right, power and authority to enter into 
this Agreement, to perform under this Agreement, and to consummate the transactions 
contemplated by this Agreement, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated 
by this Agreement will not violate any other agreement to which Seller is a party.   

(b) This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by Seller, 
creates legal, valid and binding obligations of Seller, and does not violate and will not 
conflict with or result in a breach of any of the terms or provisions of, or constitute a default 
under, any judicial order, agreement, arrangements, understanding, accord, document or 
instrument by which Seller or the Property is bound.   

(c) No consent, waiver, approval or authorization is required from any person 
or entity in connection with the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by 
Seller. 

(d) Seller has not received any written notice of a pending action, suit, 
arbitration, unsatisfied order or judgment, government investigation or proceeding 
(including, without limitation, condemnation or eminent domain proceedings) nor, to 
Seller’s knowledge, has any such investigation or proceeding been threatened against 
Seller or the Property, in any case that would materially impair Seller’s ability to 
consummate the transactions in the manner required by this Agreement. 

(e) To the best of Seller’s knowledge, the Property is not subject to any 
easements, covenants, conditions, restrictions, agreements, liens or encumbrances that are 
not of record, excluding the encroachments of the garage and driveway onto the adjoining 
property owned by Buyer.  

(f) To the best of Seller’s knowledge, the Property is not a part of an association 
or other common ownership regime except as may be otherwise disclosed by the Title 
Commitment. 

(g) Seller has not entered into any contract, agreement or option that remains in 
effect, other than this Agreement, granting to any party the right to purchase the Property. 

(h) Seller has not received any written notice from any municipal, county, state 
or other governmental authority of any ongoing violation of any statutes, codes, ordinances, 
rules or regulations with respect to the Property.   

(i) Seller is not a party to any leases of any interest in the Property, or any 
contract, operating arrangement or other agreement affecting the ownership, use or 
operation of the Property that could be binding upon Buyer after Closing, and Buyer shall 
have the exclusive right to possession of the Property after Closing.  There is no other 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F2B864CC-D3FE-4BCC-8C1A-FD81BA783AE9



Execution Copy 

 

5 
 

agreement, written or oral, under which Seller is or could become obligated to convey, 
lease or license the Property or any interest therein, to a third party, and Seller will not 
enter into any such agreement before Closing without the prior written consent of Buyer. 

(j) To the best of Seller’s knowledge, there are no, and Seller shall not initiate 
or participate in any, changes in zoning for the Property proposed by any applicable zoning 
authority unless requested to do so by Buyer. 

(k) Seller is not a “foreign person” as that term is defined in Section 1445 of 
the Internal Revenue Code.  

(l) No Hazardous Substance (as defined below) has been generated, stored, 
released, discharged or disposed of, from or on the Property in violation of any 
Environmental Law (as defined below). “Hazardous Substance” shall mean any and all 
pollutants, contaminants, toxic or hazardous wastes or any other substances that might pose 
a hazard to health or safety, the removal of which may be required or the generation, 
manufacture, refining, production, processing, treatment, storage, handling, transportation, 
transfer, use, disposal, release, discharge, spillage, seepage or filtration of which is or shall 
be restricted, prohibited or penalized under any Environmental Law.  “Environmental 

Law” shall mean any law, ordinance, rule, regulation, order, judgment, injunction or decree 
relating to pollution or substances or materials which are considered to be hazardous or 
toxic, including, without limitation, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, the 
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, the Hazardous 
Materials Transportation Act, the Clean Water Act, the Toxic Substances Control Act, the 
Emergency Planning and Community Right to Know Act, and any state and local 
environmental law. 

(m) Seller is in compliance with the requirements of Executive Order No. 
133224, 66 Fed Reg. 49079 (September 25, 2001) (“Order”) and other similar 
requirements contained in the rules and regulations of the Office of Foreign Asset Control, 
Department of the Treasury (“OFAC”) and in any enabling legislation or other Executive 
Orders in respect thereof (the Order and such other rules, regulations, legislation, or orders 
are collectively called the “Orders”).  Neither Seller nor any beneficial owner of Seller is 
listed on the Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons List maintained by 
OFAC pursuant to the Order and/or on any other list of terrorists or terrorist organizations 
maintained pursuant to any of the rules and regulations of OFAC or pursuant to any other 
applicable Orders. 

(n) Seller has good and marketable title to all items of personal property located 
on the Property free and clear of all liens, claims, and encumbrances. 

(o) The 2021 (payable in 2022) real estate taxes for the Property were $2,269.26 
and included a “senior freeze” tax exemption or other senior exemptions (“Senior Freeze”) 
that reduced the real estate tax that would otherwise apply to the Property. Seller has not 
received any notice of any increase in the Property’s assessed value, including, without 
limitation, any revocation or reduction of the Senior Freeze.  Seller will promptly notify 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F2B864CC-D3FE-4BCC-8C1A-FD81BA783AE9



Execution Copy 

 

6 
 

Buyer of any increase in the Property’s assessed value occurring between the Effective 
Date and the Closing Date. 

Notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary herein, the representations and warranties 
of Seller contained in this Section 8 shall survive the Closing for a period of one (1) year (Seller 
hereby agreeing to indemnify and hold harmless Buyer and Buyer’s affiliates from any and all 
liabilities, costs, damages and expenses arising from or related to the breach of any such 
representations or warranties, as to conditions existing prior to the Closing Date, for such period 
ending one (1) year after the Closing Date), at which time such representations and warranties (and 
such indemnity obligation) shall terminate and be of no further force or effect, except for any 
claims made prior to the end of such 1-year period.   

 
9. Representations and Warranties of Buyer.  Buyer hereby represents and 

warrants to Seller that, as of the Effective Date and deemed to be remade on the Closing Date: 
 

a. Buyer has the full right, power and authority to enter into this Agreement, 
to perform under this Agreement, and to consummate the transactions contemplated by this 
Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement will 
not violate any other agreement to which Buyer is a party. 

 
b. This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by Buyer, 

creates legal, valid and binding obligations of Buyer, and does not violate and will not 
conflict with or result in a breach of any of the terms or provisions of, or constitute a default 
under, any judicial order, agreement, arrangements, understanding, accord, document or 
instrument by which Buyer is bound.   

 
c. No consent, waiver, approval or authorization is required from any person 

or entity in connection with the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by 
Buyer. 

 
d. Buyer is in compliance with the requirements of the Orders.  Neither Buyer 

nor any beneficial owner of Buyer is listed on the Specially Designated Nationals and 
Blocked Persons List maintained by OFAC pursuant to the Order and/or on any other list 
of terrorists or terrorist organizations maintained pursuant to any of the rules and 
regulations of OFAC or pursuant to any other applicable Orders. 

 
Notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary herein, the representations and warranties 

of Buyer contained in this Section 9 shall survive the Closing for a period of one (1) year (Buyer 
hereby agreeing to indemnify and hold harmless Seller from any and all liabilities, costs, damages 
and expenses arising from or related to the breach of any such representations or warranties, as to 
conditions existing prior to the Closing Date, for such period ending one (1) year after the Closing 
Date), at which time such representations and warranties (and such indemnity obligation) shall 
terminate and be of no further force or effect, except for any claims made prior to the end of such 
1-year period.   

10. Closing Conditions.  
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F2B864CC-D3FE-4BCC-8C1A-FD81BA783AE9



Execution Copy 

 

7 
 

(a) Buyer Closing Conditions. Buyer’s obligations under this Agreement are 
contingent upon satisfaction or waiver of the following conditions (collectively, “Buyer 

Closing Conditions”): 
 

(i) Each and every representation and warranty of Seller expressed in 
this Agreement shall be true, complete and accurate in all material 
respects as of the Closing Date; 

 
(ii) As of the Closing Date, Seller shall have kept, observed, performed, 

satisfied and complied with all material terms, covenants, 
conditions, agreements, requirements, restrictions and provisions 
required by this Agreement to be kept, observed, performed, 
satisfied or complied with by Seller in all material respects; 

 
(iii) Seller shall not be a party to or the subject of any pending or 

threatened actions, suits, arbitrations, claims, attachments, 
proceedings, assignments for the benefit of creditors, insolvency, 
bankruptcy, reorganization or other proceedings, that would 
materially and adversely affect Seller’s ability to perform its 
obligations under this Agreement; 

 
(iv) The issuance by Title Company of a 2006 ALTA owner’s title 

insurance policy, or a “marked up” written commitment 
unconditionally obligating the Title Company to issue a 2006 ALTA 
owner’s title insurance policy, pursuant to the terms of the Title 
Commitment, with such changes thereto as were negotiated between 
Buyer and the Title Company during the Inspection Period, in the 
amount of the Purchase Price, subject only to the Objections waived 
by the Buyer (if any), to be dated as of the recording of the Deed, 
naming Buyer (or its assignee) as the insured (“Title Policy”). 

 
(b) Failure of the Buyer Closing Conditions.  If one or more of the Buyer 

Closing Conditions have not been satisfied on or before the Closing Date, and the same is 
not due to a default by Buyer under this Agreement, then Buyer may elect to terminate this 
Agreement by written notice to Seller on the Closing Date, in which event the Earnest 
Money shall be promptly returned to the Buyer and the Parties shall have no further right 
or obligation under this Agreement (except for rights or obligations which expressly 
survive the termination of this Agreement), provided that Buyer may unilaterally extend 
the Closing Date allow additional time for the satisfaction of any such unsatisfied 
conditions.  Buyer shall have the right to unilaterally waive the Buyer Closing Conditions 
by proceeding to and consummating Closing.  Nothing in the foregoing shall limit or 
otherwise affect Buyer’s rights or remedies under this Agreement.  

 
(c) Seller Closing Conditions.  Seller’s obligations under this Agreement are 

contingent upon satisfaction or waiver of the following conditions (collectively, “Seller 

Closing Conditions”): 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F2B864CC-D3FE-4BCC-8C1A-FD81BA783AE9



Execution Copy 

 

8 
 

 
(i) Each and every representation and warranty of Buyer expressed in 

this Agreement shall be true, complete and accurate in all material 
respects as of the Closing Date; 

(ii) As of the Closing Date, Buyer shall have kept, observed, performed, 
satisfied and complied with all material terms, covenants, 
conditions, agreements, requirements, restrictions and provisions 
required by this Agreement to be kept, observed, performed, 
satisfied or complied with by Buyer in all material respects; and 

(iii) Buyer shall not be a party to or the subject of any pending or 
threatened actions, suits, arbitrations, claims, attachments, 
proceedings, assignments for the benefit of creditors, insolvency, 
bankruptcy, reorganization or other proceedings, that would 
materially and adversely affect Buyer’s ability to perform its 
obligations under this Agreement. 

(d) Failure of the Seller Closing Conditions. If one or more of the Seller Closing 
Conditions have not been satisfied on or before the Closing Date, and the same is not due 
to a default by Seller under this Agreement, then Seller or Buyer may elect to terminate 
this Agreement by written notice to Buyer on the Closing Date, in which event the Earnest 
Money shall be retained by Seller and the Parties shall have no further right or obligation 
under this Agreement (except for rights or obligations which expressly survive the 
termination of this Agreement), provided that Seller may extend the Closing Date to allow 
additional time for the satisfaction of any such unsatisfied conditions. Seller shall have the 
right to unilaterally waive the Seller Closing Conditions by proceeding to and 
consummating Closing.  Nothing in the foregoing shall limit or otherwise affect Seller’s 
rights or remedies under this Agreement.  

 
11. Property Taxes and Assessments.  All real estate taxes and any special 

assessment imposed on the Property (“Taxes”) for the year in which the Closing occurs shall be 
prorated and adjusted to the Closing Date.  Seller shall pay (or cause to be paid) all Taxes due 
and payable on or prior to the Closing Date.  Buyer shall receive a credit prorated in accordance 
with this Section for all accrued and unpaid Taxes and the amount of the credit shall be calculated 
based on 100% of the most recent ascertainable full year real estate tax bill (first and second 
installments) excluding real estate tax bill reductions resulting from the Senior Freeze.  
Alternatively, Seller may on or before the Closing Date provide Buyer with written confirmation 
in form and substance acceptable to the Buyer that the Senior Freeze will remain in effect for all 
taxes accrued through the Closing Date; in which case, the Buyer shall receive a credit prorated in 
accordance with this Section for all accrued and unpaid Taxes calculated based on 100% of the 
most recent ascertainable full year real estate tax bill (first and second installments).  All pro-
rations will be on the basis of a 365-day year with the Closing Date being charged to the Seller. 
The proration of Taxes shall be final. 

 

12. Utilities. Seller will obtain as close to the Closing Date as practicable final meter 
readings for utilities serving the Property and will pay, by no later than the Closing Date, final 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F2B864CC-D3FE-4BCC-8C1A-FD81BA783AE9



Execution Copy 

 

9 
 

utility invoices.  Buyer will be responsible to open new accounts and pay such charges for the 
Closing Date and thereafter.   

 

13. Closing Deliveries and Costs.   
 

(a) Seller’s Deliveries.  At the Closing, Seller shall deliver the following to 
Buyer: 

(i) A signed duly recordable warranty deed for the Property with all 
required stamps affixed, at Seller’s sole cost and expense, conveying 
fee simple title to the Property and all of Seller’s rights appurtenant 
thereto, subject only to the waived Objections, if any (“Deed”). 
 

(ii) A bill of sale for the personal property. 
 

(iii) An affidavit certifying to Buyer that Seller is not a “foreign person” 
within the meaning of Sections 1445 or 7701 of the Internal 
Revenue Code. 

 
(iv) An affidavit certifying that there is no property manager at the 

Property. 
 

(v) An ALTA Statement and gap indemnity sufficient to permit the title 
insurance company to delete the so called “standard exceptions” to 
the Title Policy and to date the Title Policy no earlier than the date 
and time of recordation of the Deed. 

 
(vi) Affidavit of Title executed by Seller warranting that no outstanding 

mechanic’s lien rights exist and that the property is subject to no 
leases, liens, or other claims or encumbrances of title except those 
specifically permitted pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
(vii) The MyDec form and any other transfer tax forms required in 

connection with the Closing requiring Seller’s signature. 
 

(viii) Proof of payment of all outstanding utility fees and charges 
concerning or related to the Property. 

 
(ix) Satisfactory evidence of the authority of the signers of the 

conveyance documents to consummate the transactions on behalf of 
Seller. 

 
(x) A lien waiver executed by Seller’s Broker (if any). 

 
(xi) A closing statement executed by Seller in a form mutually 

acceptable to Seller and Buyer.  
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F2B864CC-D3FE-4BCC-8C1A-FD81BA783AE9



Execution Copy 

 

10 
 

(xii) Such other documents as may be required by the terms of this 
Agreement or by the Title Company, or as may reasonably be 
necessary in order to consummate the transactions contemplated by 
this Agreement.   

 
All of the documents and instruments referenced in this Section 13(a) shall be in a form 
reasonably acceptable to Buyer. 

 
(b) Buyer’s Deliveries.  At the Closing, Buyer shall deliver the following to 

Seller: 

(i) The Purchase Price less the Earnest Money and any prorations, plus 
any closing costs assessed to buyer.  
 

(ii) A closing statement executed by Buyer in a form mutually 
acceptable to Seller and Buyer.  

 
(iii) Any transfer tax forms required in connection with the Closing 

requiring Buyer’s signature. 
 

(iv) Such other documents as may be required by the terms of this 
Agreement or by the Title Company, or as may reasonably be 
necessary in order to consummate the transactions contemplated by 
this Agreement. 

 
(v) An ALTA Statement and gap indemnity sufficient to permit the title 

insurance company to delete the so called “standard exceptions” to 
the Title Policy and to date the Title Policy no earlier than the date 
and time of recordation of the Deed. 

 
(c) Closing Statement.  At the Closing, Seller and Buyer shall each execute a 

closing statement drafted by the Title Company and in form and content reasonably 
acceptable to both Buyer and Seller. 

(d) Closing Costs. 

(i) Seller shall pay Seller’s attorneys’ fees, the cost of the Title 
Commitment, the premium for the Title Policy (excluding the cost 
for any endorsements or extended coverage over the so called 
“standard exceptions” requested by Buyer), one-half of all closing 
costs charged by the Title Company, and all state, county, and 
municipal transfer taxes and fees.  

 
(ii) Buyer shall pay Buyer’s attorneys’ fees, the cost for Buyer’s 

endorsements and extended coverage over the so called “standard 
exceptions” to the Title Policy, if any, the escrow closing fee, all 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F2B864CC-D3FE-4BCC-8C1A-FD81BA783AE9



Execution Copy 

 

11 
 

recording charges for the Deed, all due diligence costs and expenses, 
and one-half of all closing costs charged by the Title Company. 

 
(iii) Any other costs, expenses and fees shall be allocated between the 

Parties as is customary and typical for similar types of transactions 
for real property in the location in which the Property is located. 

 

14. Delivery of Possession of Property.  The Seller shall deliver possession of the 
Property to Buyer at the Closing.  At Closing, the Seller shall provide the Buyer will all keys, 
remotes, access codes, and other information necessary to access the Property and all portions 
thereof.   

 

15. Indemnification. Buyer agrees to indemnify and fully protect, defend, and hold the 
Seller harmless from and against any and all claims, costs, liens, loss, damages, attorney’s fees, 
and expenses of every kind and nature that may be sustained by or made against the Seller resulting 
from or arising out of: 

 

(a) Inspections or repairs made by the Buyer or its agents, employees, 
contractors, successors or assigns; and 

 

(b) The Buyer’s use and/or occupancy of the Property before Closing, except 
to the extent caused by the negligent, willful, or intentional act of the Seller. 
 

16. Condemnation and Destruction. If, on the Closing Date, all or any portion of the 
Property is the subject of a pending or contemplated taking by eminent domain which has not been 
consummated or if the Property has been damaged or destroyed, Seller shall notify Buyer of such 
fact and Buyer shall have the right, but not the obligation, to terminate this Agreement, whereupon 
the Earnest Money shall be immediately paid by Home Solutions to the Buyer and the rights, duties 
and obligations of the Parties shall terminate and be of no further force or effect (provided, 
however, the Parties shall continue to have those rights and obligations which are expressly stated 
in this Agreement to survive termination).  If, after receipt of Seller’s notice, Buyer does not 
exercise its option to terminate this Agreement, the Parties shall remain bound hereunder and Seller 
shall assign and turn over, and Buyer shall be entitled to receive and keep, all awards for the taking 
by eminent domain described in said notice or all insurance proceeds payable as a result of such 
destruction or damage 

 

17. Brokerage Fees and Commissions.  Seller has contracted with Home Solutions 
Real Estate in connection with the negotiation and execution of this Agreement. Seller shall be 
solely responsible for the payment of any and all fees to Home Solutions Real Estate. Seller shall 
indemnify, defend, and hold Buyer harmless from and against any commission or other payment 
due to, or sought by Home Solutions Real Estate, or other any real estate broker, agent, finder or 
similar person in connection with this matter.  Buyer has not contracted with any real estate broker, 
agent, finder or similar person in connection with the negotiation and execution of this Agreement, 
the transactions contemplated hereby or the sale and purchase of the Property.  Buyer shall 
indemnify, defend, and hold Seller harmless from and against any commission or other payment 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F2B864CC-D3FE-4BCC-8C1A-FD81BA783AE9



Execution Copy 

 

12 
 

due to, or sought by, any real estate broker, agent, finder or similar person in connection with this 
matter.  The provisions set forth in this Section 17 shall survive Closing. 

 

18. Remedies.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Agreement 
or in any document delivered in connection with the transaction contemplated by this Agreement, 
the Parties agree that if Seller fails to comply with any of the provisions of this Agreement, Buyer 
shall have no adequate remedy at law. Accordingly, if Seller fails to comply with any provisions 
of this Agreement, Buyer shall have the right to either: (i) terminate this Agreement and receive 
an immediate refund of the Earnest Money; or (ii) obtain specific performance of Seller’s 
obligation to convey the Property.  In addition to the foregoing, Buyer shall be entitled to pursue 
any other rights or remedies provided in this Agreement, together with those available to it at law 
or in equity, including the right to monetary damages, upon the failure of Seller to carry out any 
of its obligations under this Agreement.  If Buyer fails to comply with the terms of this Agreement, 
Seller’s sole and exclusive remedy shall be the retention of the Earnest Money.   

 

19. Miscellaneous.   
 

(a) No Waiver.  The waiver by either Party hereto of any condition or the breach 
of any term, covenant or condition herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of 
any other condition or of any subsequent breach of the same or of any other term, covenant 
or condition herein contained.  Either Party, exercising its sole discretion, may waive any 
right conferred upon such Party by this Agreement; provided that such waiver shall only 
be made by giving the other Party written notice specifically describing the right waived. 

 

(b) Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement. 
 

(c) Governing Law.  This Agreement is made and executed under and in all 
respects to be governed and construed by the laws of the State of Illinois and the Parties 
hereby agree and consent and submit themselves to any court of competent jurisdiction 
situated in the County of Kane, State of Illinois. 
 

(d) Notices.  All notices and demands given or required to be given by any Party 
hereto to any other Party shall be deemed to have been properly given if and when delivered 
in person, sent by email, or 3 business days after having been deposited in any U.S. Postal 
Service and sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows (or 
sent to such other address as any Party shall specify to the other Party pursuant to the 
provisions of this Section):   

If to Seller: 

    
Valerie E. Herrmann 

   6512 Elm Street 
   Union, Illinois 60180 
   Email: hermann.valerie@att.net 
       

If to Buyer: 

   Village of Gilberts 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F2B864CC-D3FE-4BCC-8C1A-FD81BA783AE9

mailto:hermann.valerie@att.net


Execution Copy 

 

13 
 

   Attn: Brian Bourdeau, Village Administrator 
   87 Galligan Road 
   Gilberts, Illinois 60136 
   Email: bbourdeau@villageofgilberts.com 
  
   With a copy to: 

   Ancel Glink, P.C. 
   Attn: Gregory W. Jones 
   140 S. Dearborn Street, 6th Floor 
   Chicago, Illinois 60603 
   Email: gjones@ancelglink.com 
       

In the event either Party delivers a notice by email, as set forth above, such Party agrees to 
deposit the originals of the notice in a post office, branch post office, or mail depository 
maintained by the U.S. Postal Service, postage prepaid and addressed as set forth above.  
Such deposit in the U.S. Mail shall not affect the deemed delivery of the notice by email, 
provided that the procedures set forth above are fully complied with.  Any Party, by notice 
given as aforesaid, may change the address to which subsequent notices are to be sent to 
such Party. 

 
(e) Assignment, Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement, including, without 

limitation, any of a Party’s rights or obligations hereunder, may not be assigned by either 
Party without the consent of the other Party. 

 
(f) Severability.  If for any reason any term or provision of this Agreement shall 

be declared void and unenforceable by any court with jurisdiction over this Agreement, it 
shall only affect such particular term or provision of this Agreement and the balance of this 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall be binding upon the Parties. 
 

(g) Complete Agreement.  All understandings and agreements heretofore had 
between the Parties are merged into this Agreement which alone fully and completely 
expressed their agreement.  This Agreement may be amended or modified only in a writing 
signed by both Parties and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of each of the 
Parties and shall merge with the Deed at Closing, excluding those provisions that this 
Agreement provides will survive Closing. 
 

(h) No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  The covenants and agreements contained 
herein shall be binding upon and inure to the sole benefit of the Parties and their successors 
and assigns.  Nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon any 
other person, entity, company, or organization, any legal or equitable right, benefit or 
remedy of any nature whatsoever under or by reason of this Agreement. 
 

(i) Attorneys’ Fees. If any action is brought by either Party arising from, or 
related to, this Agreement, then the prevailing Party shall be entitled to receive from the 
non-prevailing Party its actual court costs and reasonable attorney’s fees incurred. This 
Section shall survive Closing or any earlier termination of this Agreement. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F2B864CC-D3FE-4BCC-8C1A-FD81BA783AE9

mailto:bbourdeau@villageofgilberts.com
mailto:gjones@ancelglink.com


Execution Copy 

 

14 
 

 
(j) Calculation of Days.  In the event that any date described in this Agreement 

for the performance of an action required hereunder by Seller and/or Buyer falls on a 
Saturday, Sunday or federal legal holiday, such date shall be deemed postponed until the 
next business day thereafter. 
 

(k) Interpretation. This Agreement and any related instruments shall not be 
construed more strictly against one Party than against the other by virtue of the fact that 
initial drafts were made and prepared by counsel for one of the Parties, it being recognized 
that this Agreement and any related instruments are the product of extensive negotiations 
between the Parties hereto and that both Parties hereto have contributed substantially and 
materially to the final preparation of this Agreement and all related instruments. 
 

(l) Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall 
constitute one and the same instrument, and any signatures to counterparts may be 
delivered by facsimile or other electronic transmission and shall have the same force and 
effect as original signatures. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the 
Effective Date. 
 

VILLAGE OF GILBERTS,    Attest: 

an Illinois municipal corporation 

 
 
__________________________________  __________________________________ 
Name:       Name: 
 
Title:       Title: 
 
 
Date: _____________________________  Date: _____________________________ 
 
 
 
SELLER: 

 

 
 
____________________________________  
       
 
Date: _______________________________   
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F2B864CC-D3FE-4BCC-8C1A-FD81BA783AE9

4/1/2023



Execution Copy 

 

15 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 

Legal Description 

 
LOT 2 IN BLOCK 12 OF RUTLANDVILLE, IN THE VILLAGE OF GILBERTS, FORMERLY 
RUTLAND, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 
 
P.I.N.:  02-24-153-003 
   
Address: 55 Galligan Road, Gilberts, Illinois 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F2B864CC-D3FE-4BCC-8C1A-FD81BA783AE9



Execution Copy 

 

16 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit B 
 

Depiction of Property 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F2B864CC-D3FE-4BCC-8C1A-FD81BA783AE9



Village of Gilberts 
Village Hall 

87 Galligan Road, Gilberts, Illinois 60136 
Ph. 847-428-2861      Fax: 847-428-2955 

www.villageofgilberts.com 
 

1 
 

To: President Zambetti & Board of Trustees 
From: Riley Lynch, Management Analyst 
Cc: Brian Bourdeau, Village Administrator 
Date: April 18, 2023 Village Board Meeting  
Re: Item 7.A – Conservancy Park 1 Site Plan Review 
 

Background: 

The First Amendment to the Conservancy Annexation Agreement requires a parkland dedication 
of 25 acres of useable parkland. Approximately 6.5 acres were dedicated for a park to be located 
on the south-western portion of the Conservancy development in between Brielle Boulevard and 
a Union Pacific Railway.  

In addition to the dedication of parkland, the First Amendment to Conservancy Annexation 
Agreement requires the developer to pay the village in form of park impact fees. These fees are 
based off of the number of bedrooms in each residential unit. Based on the units that have built so 
far and estimates of future units, the Village can expect to receive approximately $2.52 million in 
park impact fees. Note that this amount can vary depending on the types of units that are built. As 
of the end of February, we have collected $659,808.85 in park impact fees thus far. 

On February 7th 2023, the Board approved a professional engineering services proposal with 
Robinson Engineering for RFP preparation and construction oversight of Conservancy Public Park 
Number One. Through this proposal, Robinson and Hitchcock Design Group have produced 
preliminary cost opinions and conceptual designs of the proposed park and amenities. After 
collaboration with Robinson, Hitchcock, and staff, we have put together the best options for this 
park in terms of desired amenities and to cost savings. 

The Options: 

There are three proposed options presented before the board. These options revolve around the 
inclusion or exclusion of a bike path, and the inclusion or exclusion additional tennis/pickleball 
courts. Note that in these options, consideration of an off-street parking area was removed entirely 
due to the availability of on-street parking, the requirement to destroy an existing sidewalk to make 
space for the parking, and the cost of construction of the parking area (~$30,000). The options are 
outlined below. Look at the attached Exhibit 1 for more detailed concept plans. 

Option A 

This option includes 2 tennis/pickle ball courts, 2 bocce ball courts, and a 32ft hexagonal pavilion 
as the primary amenities. This also includes the possibility of having a mowed prairie path to 
extend north around the townhomes. The total cost for this option including a 10% contingency 
and the cost of the design task order is $661,000.61. 

 



April 18th, 2023 Village Board Meeting 

2 
 

Option B: 

This option is similar to option A, except it also includes an asphalt bike path to extend north 
around the townhomes. The total cost for this option including a 10% contingency and the cost of 
the design task order is $741,261.89. 

Option C: 

This option includes the same amenities as the previous options except it also includes the northern 
bike path and 2 additional tennis/pickleball courts for a total of 4 courts. The total cost for this 
option including a 10% contingency and the cost of the design task order is $981,979.20. 

 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends option A. This option will provide valuable amenities to residents of the 
conservancy, while still reserving impact fees for future parks.  

The bike path extending north behind the townhomes would essentially be redundant with the 
existing sidewalk along Brielle Boulevard. It would only loop around a portion of the townhomes 
before connecting back to Brielle Boulevard with the existing sidewalk anyway. Additionally, the 
omission of the asphalt path allows the opportunity for a mowed walking path also that would keep 
in the theme of a naturalized prairie area. However, the idea of any type of path in this area also 
raises concerns of public access and proximity to the rear yards of townhomes.  

The reduction in tennis/pickleball courts is primarily a cost savings benefit, as the addition of two 
courts add roughly $145,000 to project costs. Furthermore, leaving the space where 2 courts could 
go provides opportunities for future expansion, amenities, or open area. Having 2 tennis/pickleball 
courts will still provide a highly sought after amenity to the residents of the conservancy.  

For these reasons, staff recommend that option A is the best course of action. 

Discussion: 

Staff is looking for the board’s feedback on which of options the board feels is best. With a 
determination of the best option, staff will proceed with Robinson and Hitchcock and go out to bid 
for the desired park option.   

Attachments: 

• Exhibit 1 – Park Option Concept Site Plans 



8’ Mowed Path

8’ Mowed Path

Option A:
2 Tennis Courts, No Bike Path

Main Amenities
• 2 Tennis/Pickle Ball Courts
• 2 Bocce Courts
• Hexagonal Pavilion
• Possible Mowed Prairie Path

Costs:
Construction: $500,273.28
Design Task Order: $110,700.00
10% Contingency: $50,027.33
Total: $661,000.61

Split Rail Fence 
by developer

Tennis/Pickle Ball Courts
• 2 Total
• 10’ Perimeter Fencing
• Colored Surfacing
• Nets with center straps

On-Street 
Parking

Possible future 
mowed area/path



8’ Mowed Path

8’ Mowed Path

Option B:
Reduced Tennis Courts

Main Amenities
• 2 Tennis/Pickle Ball Courts
• 2 Bocce Courts
• Hexagonal Pavilion
• 8’ wide asphalt bike path to the north 

behind the townhomes

Costs:
Construction: $573,238.08
Design Task Order: $110,700.00
10% Contingency: $57,323.81
Total: $741,261.89

8’ Asphalt Path

8’ Asphalt Path

Split Rail Fence 
by developer

Tennis/Pickle Ball Courts
• 2 Total
• 10’ Perimeter Fencing
• Colored Surfacing
• Nets with center straps

On-Street 
Parking

Possible future 
mowed area/path



8’ Mowed Path

8’ Mowed Path8’ Asphalt Path

8’ Asphalt Path

Split Rail Fence 
by developer

Tennis/Pickle Ball Courts
• 4 Total
• 10’ Perimeter Fencing
• Colored Surfacing
• Nets with center straps

On-Street 
Parking

Possible future 
mowed area/path

Option C:
Everything but Parking

Main Amenities
• 4 Tennis/Pickle Ball Courts
• 2 Bocce Courts
• Hexagonal Pavilion
• 8’ wide asphalt bike path to the north 

behind the townhomes

Costs:
Construction: $792,072.00
Design Task Order: $110,700.00
10% Contingency: $79,207.20
Total: $981,979.20


	1 Agenda 041823 (AG revisions)
	ORDER OF BUSINESS

	5.A.1 03212023 VBM Min - Draft
	5.B.1 2023-04-04-23 InvoiceApprovalByDepartment
	5.C.1 2023-04-18 InvoiceApprovalByDepartment
	5.D March 2023 Treasurers Report
	2023-03 monthly board report
	2023-03 REV vs EXP - CHART 
	2023-03 REV vs EXP - SUMMARY 
	2023-03 REV vs EXP - DETAIL 

	5.E MFT Resolution
	6.ABC.1 FYE12-31-2023_Final Approval
	6.ABC.2 FY12-31-2023 Budget Ordinance
	6.ABC.3 12-2023 FINAL DRAFT Budget SUMMARY
	6.ABC.4 Certificate of Budget and Estimated Revenues
	6.D.1 Budget Amendment #2 memo
	6.D.2 Ord 04-2023 Budget Amendment 2
	6.E.0 Memo - Red Barn Public Hearing, AA Agreement, Variances
	6.F.1 Gilberts Ordinance - Approving 4th Amendment to GTC AA 4893-7688-3549
	6.F.2 Fourth Amendment to Town Center AA - Signs 4854-1847-7136
	6.G.1 April 12, 2023 PC Packet Material - Red Barn
	6.G.1 Memo to the PC - Red Barn Sign Height Variance
	6.G.2 PC Public Notice- Red Barn Animal Hospital Sign Variances 4858-2673-1864
	6.G.3 Var Application - Signage Variation Packet with Drawings 3.14.23
	6.G.4.1 Survey - 210222 Lot 290 Gilberts Town Center 2021.1030 Signed
	6.G.4.2 Red Barn Site Plan
	6.G.5.1 East Sign - Red Barn SO-0403-2
	6.G.5.2 West Sign - Red Barn SO-0403-6

	6.G.2 Gilberts Ordinance - Granting a Variance for Signage at Red Barn Animal Hospital 4867-1428-5917
	B. No Authorization of Work. This Ordinance does not authorize commencement of any work on the Property. Except as otherwise specifically provided in writing in advance by the Village, no work of any kind may be commenced on the Property pursuant to t...
	C. Compliance with Laws.  The UDO, the Building Code, and all other applicable Village ordinances and regulations shall continue to apply to the Property, and the development and use of the Property must comply with all laws and regulations of all oth...
	Section 4. Failure to Comply.  Upon failure or refusal of the Owner to comply with any or all of the conditions, restrictions, or provisions of this Ordinance, the approvals in Section 2 of this Ordinance for the Property (“Conditioned Approval”), wil...

	6.G.2.1 East Sign - Red Barn SO-0403-2
	6.G.2.2 West Sign - Red Barn SO-0403-6
	6.H.0 Memo - 38 Higgins (Pub 72) Variance
	6.H.1 April 12, 2023 PC Packet Material - Pub 72
	6. Memo to the PC - 38 Higgins (Pub 72) Variance
	6.1 Public Notice- Pub 72 Variances 4868-7189-9480
	6.2 Updated Pub 72 Variance Application
	Var App - Pub 72
	Var App - Pub 72
	Var App - Pub 72


	Pub 72 Revised App
	Pub 72 Revised App
	Var App - Pub 72
	Pub 72 Revised App
	Var App - Pub 72
	Disclosure of Beneficiaries pub 72
	Var App - Pub 72
	Responses to standards



	6.3 Pub 72 Old Plat of Survey
	6.4 Improvement Design - 32 E. Higgins - Permit Set Rev 1_2023.02.13
	Sheets
	A.101 - EXISTING FIRST FLOOR DEMO AND PROPOSED FOUNDATION PLANS
	A.102 - PROPOSED 1ST FLOOR AND ROOF PLANS
	A.201 - BUIDING ELEVATIONS
	A.202 - BUILDING ELEVATIONS
	A.400 - TYPICAL DETAILS
	E.101 - 1ST FLOOR ELECTRICAL PLAN
	G.001 - COVER SHEET
	G.002 - GEN. NOTES & SYMBOLS
	H.100 - HVAC FLOOR PLANS


	6.5 GS.01 PROPOSED PARKING AND FIRE TRUCK DIAGRAM
	Sheets
	GS.01 - PROPOSED PARKING & FIRE TRUCK PATH DIAGRAM



	6.H.2 Gilberts Ord- Pub 72 Parking Variance 4879-2086-7677
	A. No Authorization of Work.  This Ordinance does not authorize commencement of any work on the Property.  Except as otherwise specifically provided in writing in advance by the Village, no work of any kind may be commenced on the Property pursuant to...
	B. Compliance with Laws.  The UDO, the Building Code, and all other applicable Village ordinances and regulations shall continue to apply to the Property, and the development and use of the Property must comply with all laws and regulations of all oth...

	6.H.2.1 GS.01 PROPOSED PARKING AND FIRE TRUCK DIAGRAM
	Sheets
	GS.01 - PROPOSED PARKING & FIRE TRUCK PATH DIAGRAM


	6.I.0 Memo - Cruisin' SUP & Vars
	6.I.1 April 12, 2023 PC Packet Material - Cruisin
	7. Memo to the PC - Cruisin' SUP & Vars
	7.1 Public Notice- Cruisins SUP and Variances 4872-8143-4712
	7.2 SUP & Var App - Cruisin'
	7.3 Cruisin Plat of Survey
	7.4 Cruisin Patio Designs
	Cruisin' Patio design
	Cruisin sign & Patio design

	7.5 Cruisin Wall sign designs
	Cruisin Wall sign designs
	Cruisin sign & Patio design


	6.I.2 Gilberts Ord- Cruisins SUP and Variances 4854-8286-1917
	A. No Authorization of Work. This Ordinance does not authorize commencement of any work on the Property. Except as otherwise specifically provided in writing in advance by the Village, no work of any kind may be commenced on the Property pursuant to t...
	B. Compliance with Laws.  The UDO, the Building Code, and all other applicable Village ordinances and regulations shall continue to apply to the Property, and the development and use of the Property must comply with all laws and regulations of all oth...
	Section 5.  Failure to Comply.  Upon failure or refusal of the Applicant to comply with any or all of the conditions, restrictions, or provisions of this Ordinance, the approvals in Section 2 and Section 3 this Ordinance (“Conditioned Approval”), will...

	6.I.2.1 Cruisin Patio Designs
	Cruisin' Patio design
	Cruisin sign & Patio design

	6.I.2.2 Cruisin Wall sign designs
	Cruisin Wall sign designs
	Cruisin sign & Patio design

	6.J.1 House Purchase Memo
	6.J.2 VOG Ord- 55 Galligan PSA 4880-2821-6157
	6.J.3 55 Galligan Rd Signed Purchase Agreement by Day Row 04012023
	PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT
	PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT
	(a) Seller is Trust. Seller has the full right, power and authority to enter into this Agreement, to perform under this Agreement, and to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated...
	(b) This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by Seller, creates legal, valid and binding obligations of Seller, and does not violate and will not conflict with or result in a breach of any of the terms or provisions of, or const...
	(c) No consent, waiver, approval or authorization is required from any person or entity in connection with the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by Seller.
	(d) Seller has not received any written notice of a pending action, suit, arbitration, unsatisfied order or judgment, government investigation or proceeding (including, without limitation, condemnation or eminent domain proceedings) nor, to Seller’s k...
	(e) To the best of Seller’s knowledge, the Property is not subject to any easements, covenants, conditions, restrictions, agreements, liens or encumbrances that are not of record, excluding the encroachments of the garage and driveway onto the adjoini...
	(f) To the best of Seller’s knowledge, the Property is not a part of an association or other common ownership regime except as may be otherwise disclosed by the Title Commitment.
	(g) Seller has not entered into any contract, agreement or option that remains in effect, other than this Agreement, granting to any party the right to purchase the Property.
	(h) Seller has not received any written notice from any municipal, county, state or other governmental authority of any ongoing violation of any statutes, codes, ordinances, rules or regulations with respect to the Property.
	(i) Seller is not a party to any leases of any interest in the Property, or any contract, operating arrangement or other agreement affecting the ownership, use or operation of the Property that could be binding upon Buyer after Closing, and Buyer shal...

	PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT
	(j) To the best of Seller’s knowledge, there are no, and Seller shall not initiate or participate in any, changes in zoning for the Property proposed by any applicable zoning authority unless requested to do so by Buyer.
	(k) Seller is not a “foreign person” as that term is defined in Section 1445 of the Internal Revenue Code.
	(l) No Hazardous Substance (as defined below) has been generated, stored, released, discharged or disposed of, from or on the Property in violation of any Environmental Law (as defined below). “Hazardous Substance” shall mean any and all pollutants, c...
	(m) Seller is in compliance with the requirements of Executive Order No. 133224, 66 Fed Reg. 49079 (September 25, 2001) (“Order”) and other similar requirements contained in the rules and regulations of the Office of Foreign Asset Control, Department ...
	(n) Seller has good and marketable title to all items of personal property located on the Property free and clear of all liens, claims, and encumbrances.
	(o) The 2021 (payable in 2022) real estate taxes for the Property were $2,269.26 and included a “senior freeze” tax exemption or other senior exemptions (“Senior Freeze”) that reduced the real estate tax that would otherwise apply to the Property. Sel...

	PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT
	(i) Each and every representation and warranty of Buyer expressed in this Agreement shall be true, complete and accurate in all material respects as of the Closing Date;
	(ii) As of the Closing Date, Buyer shall have kept, observed, performed, satisfied and complied with all material terms, covenants, conditions, agreements, requirements, restrictions and provisions required by this Agreement to be kept, observed, perf...
	(iii) Buyer shall not be a party to or the subject of any pending or threatened actions, suits, arbitrations, claims, attachments, proceedings, assignments for the benefit of creditors, insolvency, bankruptcy, reorganization or other proceedings, that...


	7.A.0 Memo - Conservancy Park Discussion
	7.A.1 Park option Site Plans
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3


	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 1: 2-A Supply and install a new HVAC system just for the addition. Recessed can lights,  -
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 2: windows and doors will be installed.
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 3: 2-B The total addition is less then 1000 sq ft. This will not cause a congestion problem.
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 4: 2-C This is only a seating area. No meachanicals like ovens, or refrigeration added.
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 5: 2-D This addition will only increases property and surrounding areas. Offering new 
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 6: family gathering options, clean exterior, and well maintained exposure. 
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 7: 2-E This will not impair any health of safety issues. The Variance is only looking for 6
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 8: parking spots leniency. 
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 9: 
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 10: 3-A This additional will bring in a reasonable return by adding to the current business
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 11: space and offerings. This will benefit all, the village, the public, and the owners. It will
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 12: also promote surroundings to clean up and enhance. 
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 13: 3-B We are looking for additional spaces only or leniency of 6 spots.
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 14: 3-C Yes, we need 6 more spaces of parking to meet section 9.1 of the current code.
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 15: 3-D This variance will not effect or deprive any owners in the immediate area.
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 16: 3-E Yes, it will be seamless. New lines will be painted as well so it will be better.
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 17: 3-F We just don't have the space on the lot alone for the additional 6 spots. 
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 18: 
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 19: Thank you for your concideration.I hope that I understood your questions as intended
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 20: and replied as requested. If i can add or explain anything else please feel free to 
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 21: contact me directly and I will do my best to explain.
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 22: Sincerely,
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 23: Rick Csekme
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 24: FTCNPRO
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 25: 312-656-6130 cell / text
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 26: 630-885-8000 office 
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 27: ftcnpro@gmail.com
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 28: 
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 29: 
	Use this page or another sheet of paper for your responses to the Standards for Variations 30: 


